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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Macau E&M Holding Limited (the “Company” and together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | hereby announce the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year”).

During the Year, the economy of the Macau Special Administrative
Region (“Macau”) remained resilience, despite adverse geo-political
and economic headwinds. Macau continued its recovery in 2024, with
gross domestic product (“GDP”) growing by 8.8%' year-on-year. The
city’s robust economy can be attributed to the support of the Central
People’s Government, coupled with Macau’s active integration into the
motherland. This is evident in Macau’s recovering gaming and tourism
industries, which saw gaming revenue rise by 23.9%?2 and visitor
arrivals up 23.8%?2 year on year, respectively. As for the electrical and
mechanical (“E&M”) engineering industry in Macau, there has been a
steady stream of public and private projects, though at the same time
intensifying competition for securing the contracts in respect of such
projects.

With respect to the Group, total revenue of MOP92.1 million was
recorded for the Year, with gross profit at MOP7.2 million and gross
profit margin at 7.8%, up 2.0 percentage points for the latter year-
on-year. It is worth noting that we were able to secure a fair number
of projects, including one which involved closed-circuit television
(“CCTV”) work for a casino in Sri Lanka. At the same time, we have
continued to implement strict cost-control measures to fortify our
financial performance. Moreover, our organisational structure has
been streamlined to ensure that resources are allocated and utilised
efficiently and effectively.

! https://www.dsec.gov.mo/zh-MO/Home/News?id=30417

2 https://www.dicj.gov.mo/web/en/information/DadosEstat_mensal/2024/index.html
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Looking ahead to the new financial year ending 31 December 2025,
we are cautiously optimistic towards the economic prospects for the
region, as well as the outlook for the E&M industry in Macau as a
whole. According to the University of Macau, it has forecasted a GDP
growth rate of 7.7%* for Macau in 2025, despite an uncertain global
economic outlook taking into account the consequence of slowing
growth in Mainland China and uncertainties surrounding the economic
policies of various countries and their downside risks. Given that the
Macau Government will continue to diversify its economy, pursue
public administration reforms, and ensure social harmony, we will seek
to capitalise on such efforts. This will include seizing opportunities that
arise from public housing projects and new government initiatives.
In unison, we will look at diversifying our business interests abroad.
To promote the steady growth of our business, we will also continue
optimising all facets of operations to enhance efficiencies. Moreover,
we will embrace the latest construction solutions so that we remain one
of the top E&M engineering services works contractors in Macau and
overseas.

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of
the Company and its management, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all our shareholders, investors, customers and partners
for their trust in and continuous support for the Group. My heartfelt
appreciation also goes to all our staff members for their tremendous
effort and remarkable performance in 2024, despite the many obstacles
confronted.

CHEONG Ka Wo
Chairman, CEO and Executive Director

20 March 2025

4 https://www.gov.mo/en/news/350158/
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWNE DN

COMPANY OVERVIEW

As an integrated E&M engineering service works contractor registered
with the Land, Public Works and Transport Bureau of Macau,
the Company provides a comprehensive mix of E&M engineering
service works based on the needs of its customers in Macau. The
comprehensive mix of E&M engineering works involves a combination
of the supply and/or installation of (i) low voltage systems works; (ii)
heating, ventilation and air-conditioning systems works; and (iii) extra
low voltage systems works, and the relevant testing and commissioning
thereof as well as management and monitoring of quality and delivery
of E&M engineering services works in Macau. The Group began its
business through focusing on the public sector E&M engineering
services works projects and gradually expanded into the private
sector. The Group offers repair and maintenance service for property
and hospitality facilities in Macau, including world class hotels and
integrated entertainment resorts. The demand from this sector would be
driven by the strategy and planning of the casinos and hotel operators
in Macau, which would in turn increase the demand for repair and
maintenance related E&M works.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2024, the Macau E&M industry presents a mixed landscape, there
was a recovery in projects, yet this growth was met with heightened
competition and cost pressures. Major projects were predominantly
awarded to international firms because of their established brands and
economies of scale, while a vast number of local players competed for
minor projects with limited scope or slim profit margins.

For the Year, the Group recorded total revenue of MOP92.1 million,
slipping from MOP128.3 million in 2023 — a reflection of fewer
contracts secured by the Group during the Year. The decline in projects
won by the Group was largely due to intensified market rivalry and
subdued demand from both the entertainment and resorts sector
and public sectors, which remained cautious in their investment and
expansion plans, leading to fewer tendering opportunities. Despite
lower revenue, the Group reduced its net loss to MOP2.5 million
during the Year from MOP3.8 million in 2023, demonstrating progress
in managing costs and improving operational efficiency. During the
Year, the Group implemented strategic measures to streamline internal
operations in order to enhance cost efficiency. By optimising resource
allocation, reducing unnecessary expenditures, and improving project
execution, the Group was able to lower operating expenses and deliver
certain projects more effectively. These initiatives not only enhanced the
Group’s adaptability in a challenging market, but also contributed to a
2.0 percentage point increase in the gross profit margin year-on-year.

In 2024, the Group managed 25 projects, with 19 from the private
sector and 6 from the public sector. During the Year, the Group actively
submitted tenders for new projects to maintain revenue growth and
business stability. It secured a significant CCTV-related project for
a casino in Sri Lanka, with a contract sum of MOP26.5 million. This
marked a significant achievement for the Group for successfully
capitalising on overseas business ventures to drive future growth.

The Group remains in a healthy financial position. As at 31 December
2024, it had cash and bank balances (including short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits) of MOP141.6 million, as well as
bank mortgage borrowings of MOP12.3 million. The Group’s net current
assets totalled approximately MOP177.6 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue for
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

Bt %5 Bl 8
W &8

TRETAEBRE E2024F 2023 F 12
A31HIEFERURZEAA -

2024 2023
2024 £ 2023 4

MOP’000 MOP’000

FEF T FAEFIT

(Audited) (Audited)

(BER) (TE|iz)
E&M engineering works HE TR 89,700 97.4 124,738 97.2
Maintenance and repair services R & 4 1E AR 75 2,352 2.6 3,545 2.8
92,052 100 128,283 100

The Group recorded revenue of MOP 92.1 million for the Year, which
represented a year-on-year decrease of 28.2% (2023: MOP128.3
million), the decrease of which was primarily attributable to the awarded
projects with a smaller contract sum in the Year as compared to that in
2023.

Slow recovery and longer tendering process of the E&M industrial
market in Macau during the Year, especially for the projects from the
entertainment and resorts sector and public sector, resulted in sluggish
demand for E&M engineering services in Macau, and significantly
affected the Group’s revenue.

AEBRAFEEBIREE21 HERMT
A LR 2 28.2% (2023 4F : 128.3 & &8 P9
TT) OB ThE B AN E 2023 F ML
AEEFEBREENAENSERD -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Gross profit

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s gross profit
and gross margin for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

EA

TREY| A EBRE 22024 F 22023 F 12
A31HIEFEMEF REF EEFL

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
Gross Gross Gross Gross
profit margin profit margin
EF EF=E EA EH =X
MOP’000 % MOP’000 %
FHFIT TR T
(Audited) (Audited)
(REX) (fe &%)
E&M engineering works HE TR 6,838 7.6 7,410 5.9
Maintenance and repair services R % & 4 1E IR 383 16.3 (26) (0.7)
7,221 7.8 7,384 5.8

For the Year, the Group recorded a gross profit of MOP7.2 million (2023:
MOP?7.4 million), which represented a year-on-year decrease of 2.2%,
primarily attributable to (i) a decrease in the number of awarded projects
during the Year with a smaller contract sum as compared to that in
2023; and (i) slow recovery and longer tendering process of the E&M
industrial market in Macau during the Year, especially for the projects
from the entertainment and resorts sector and public sector, resulted in
sluggish demand for E&M engineering services in Macau, and indirectly
affected the Group’s gross profit.

Notwithstanding the profit has decreased slightly, the profit margin
increased by 2 percentage points year-on-year, mainly benefiting from
the stringent internal resources and cost control measures adopted
by the Group including optimisation of resource allocation, reduction
of unnecessary expenditures, and improvement in project execution.
Nevertheless, upon the combination of the above factors, the gross
profit for the Year was still unable to cover all the associated fixed costs
and salaries in respect of certain projects. Despite the challenging
business environment, during the Year, the Group still strives to be
socially responsible and with a view to maintain its competitiveness
and capability, the Group has maintained as many members within the
workforce as possible while striking a balance on project cost.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

Other income

During the Year, other income increased by MOP1.3 million to MOP5.1
million (2023: MOP3.8 million), which was primarily attributable to most
of the fixed deposit principal in high rank of interest rate during the year.

Impairment losses under expected credit model, net

The impairment losses in trade receivables and contract assets were
MOPO0.5 million for the Year (2023: MOPO.1 million). The increase
in the provision for impairment losses for the Year was attributable
to the higher receivables risk globally and taking into account the
increase in long-aged receivables from certain customers of the Group
as at 31 December 2024. The Group applied a simplified approach
to measure expected credit loss (“ECL”) which uses a lifetime ECL
for all trade receivables and contract assets in accordance with the
relevant accounting standards regardless of the settlement status of
the underlying receivables and assets subsequent to 31 December
2024. Trade receivables and contract assets with individual significant
balances are assessed for impairment individually, the remaining trade
receivables and contract assets are assessed collectively using a
collective basis with appropriate groupings.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by MOPO0.9 million to MOP14.0
million for the Year (2023: MOP14.9 million). The decrease was
contributed by the saving of MOPO0.4 million in rental cost as the Group
began to use its own properties as office and warehouse during Year
2023, with all previous rental contracts expired in the second quarter
of Year 2024. Another cost saving of MOPO0.5 million from professional
fees, transportation and other daily routine cost which benefited from
the Group’s strict cost control and re-negotiation with vendors.

Income tax (expense) credit

Income tax expense recorded for the Year amounted to MOP25,000
(2023: credit of MOP44,000) which was attributed to the written-back
of the overprovision of tax payable of MOP6,000 for the Year and the
provision of current tax of MOP31,000.

Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year

The Group recorded a loss for the Year of MOP2.5 million (2023: loss of
MOP3.8 million) which was primarily attributable to the combined effect
of the abovementioned items.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group adopts a prudent approach in cash management to minimise
financial and operational risks. The Group’s operations mainly rely on
internally generated cash flows from its core business and its savings.

In the management of liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows. The Company had a high level
of cash as at 31 December 2024. Due to economic uncertainty, the
Group prefers a conservative financial strategy to maintain a high year-
end cash balance to ensure liquidity for potential projects and mitigate
the liquidity risks.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had net current assets of
MOP177.6 million (2023: MOP179.6 million). The current ratio of the
Group as at 31 December 2024 was 8.5 times (2023: 5.3 times).

The Group has maintained a healthy liquidity position. As at 31
December 2024, the Group had total bank balances (including short-
term bank deposits and pledge bank deposits) of MOP141.6 million
(2023: MOP141.8 million). The Group’s bank balances were mainly
denominated in MOP and HK$.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had bank mortgage borrowing of
MOP12.3 million (2023: MOP12.8 million) at The Bank of China Macau
Branch with interest rate at 1 month Hibor +1.3% and capped interest
rate at Prime -3%, and the Group’s gearing ratio (calculated as total
debts dividing by total equity) was 6.1% (2023: 6.2%).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s share capital and reserves
amounted to MOP5.2 million and MOP197.8 million, respectively (2023:
MOPS5.2 million and MOP200.3 million, respectively).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in HK$ and MOP. While the Group’s business has entered
into a new geographic location due to the new project in Sri Lanka,
as the contract was confirmed in USD the Company considers that it
does not have significant impact on the Group’s exposure to foreign
exchange risks. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no exposure
to foreign exchange contracts, interest, currency swaps or other
financial derivatives.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENRR DN

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS, AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group had no significant investments held and no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures
during the Year.

The Group had no future plan for material investments or capital assets
as at 31 December 2024.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS, PERFORMANCE
BONDS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY

At 31 December 2024, the Group has issued the following promissory
notes:

a. an amount of MOP14.4 million (2023: MOP14.4 million) to secure
the bank borrowing of MOP12.3 million (2023: MOP12.8 million)
in favour of a bank, which is also secured by office premises with
carrying amount of MOP16.2 million (2023: MOP16.6 million); and

b. an amount of MOP20 million (2023: Nil) to secure a credit facility
of MOP20 million in favour of a bank.

In addition, a credit facility of MOP41.3 million was granted by a bank
with effect from 5 March 2025 which was secured by a promissory note
of MOP45.4 million provided by the Company.

Save as disclosed, the Group has no other pledge of assets or
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2024.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group did not have any
significant capital commitments.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group entered into labour contracts with its employees in
accordance with the labour laws of Macau. The remuneration package
offered to employees generally includes basic salaries, allowances,
benefits-in-kind and bonus. In general, the Group determines the
remuneration package of its employees based on each employee’s
qualification, position and seniority.

As the main contractor for some of the projects undertaken, the Group
applies for work permits for its non-Macau resident workers on a
project-by-project basis. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 49
(2023: 65) employees in Macau, comprising 30 Macau residents and 19
non-Macau residents (2023: 47 Macau residents and 18 non- Macau
residents).

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 11 September
2020, the purpose of which is to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that the eligible participants had or may have made to the
Group.

PROSPECTS

Although the Group will continue to be confronted by intense
competition and ongoing macroeconomic developments, there are
encouraging signs of recovery in key markets, offering a sense of
cautious optimism moving forward. Moreover, Macau, benefiting from
the Central People’s Government’s support and the efforts of different
local sectors, will achieve greater economic diversification and further
rise in its stature as a global leisure and tourism hub. This will, in turn,
give rise to the development of large-scale resorts, entertainment
venues and infrastructure projects, all of which will create tremendous
opportunities for E&M companies such as the Group to provide
advanced engineering and maintenance solutions.

Ready to capitalise on Macau’s economic recovery, the Group
is in robust financial health and has a solid business foundation.
Furthermore, it is a leading member of the E&M industry in Macau
with a sterling reputation, which is why it secured 16 projects that are
expected to contribute revenue to the Group in 2025. Moreover, the
Group has received numerous tender invitations from government
departments, casinos, hotels, and resorts in Macau for 2025, which
present opportunities to expand its project portfolio and sustain long-
term growth.
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Beyond Macau, the successful tender for the CCTV-related project
in Sri Lanka marks a strategic milestone in the Group’s overseas
expansion. Building on the success of this project, the Group plans
to actively pursue new opportunities in the region. By delivering high-
quality and large-scale projects, the Group aims to establish itself as
a trusted partner for international clients in the E&M sector, further
diversifying its revenue streams and strengthening its presence in the
target key markets.

To ensure that long-term sustainable growth is realised, the Group will
continue adhering to a prudent management approach so that all costs
are well reined in. It will also observe stringent budgeting practices,
review operational expenses in a timely manner, and maintain financial
discipline while allocating resources. At the same time, focus will be
directed towards identifying cost-saving opportunities that do not
compromise efficiency or service quality. This meticulous approach will
enable the Group to navigate market challenges effectively and drive
profitability.

Despite the challenges posed by the current economic climate,
the Group is unperturbed. It remains poised to capture emerging
opportunities by leveraging its market leadership, solid financial
position, and commitment to operational excellence. With proven areas
of expertise and the determination to create lasting value, the Group
is confident in its ability to overcome adversity, achieve sustainable
progress, and deliver favourable returns to its stakeholders.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year (2023: nil per ordinary share of the Company (the “Share(s)”).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R - dHERELGHRS

About this Report

The Group is pleased to present its fourth Environment, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”). This Report articulates
the Group’s comprehensive management approaches, policies and
practices regarding environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
matters for the benefit of our key stakeholders.

Reporting Boundary

This Report encompasses the Group’s material ESG performance for
the period from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024 (the “Reporting
Period” or “year”). Consistent with our previous report, it focuses
primarily on the operation of electrical and mechanical engineering
works and management and repair services, which collectively
constitute the entirety of the Group’s total revenue for the year. The
environmental key performance indicators (“KPIs”) primarily pertain
to the Group’s corporate offices and warehouse facility in Macau, as
these locations exert significant influence on the Group’s operations.
The Group remains committed to ongoing assessment of its business
operations and development, implementing appropriate adjustments to
the reporting boundary in accordance with the principle of materiality
when deemed necessary.

Reporting Standards

The ESG Report has been meticulously prepared in accordance with
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) as stipulated in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The four fundamental reporting
principles — materiality, quantitative, balance, and consistency —
outlined in the ESG Guide have been rigorously applied throughout the
preparation of this ESG Report.

Reporting Principles The Group’s Application
rEENER
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The Group conducted comprehensive stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment
during the year to identify material issues warranting key disclosures in the ESG Report.

AEBEAFECETEENFNE2RLREEMN G LB FEHEESGRETETE

Quantifiable KPIs and comparative data are disclosed in the ESG Report where feasible,
accompanied by detailed information regarding the standards, methodologies and

TR KPR LB - AR 3t H3BIE R HY L

All disclosures presented in the ESG Report maintain an objective and transparent
approach, providing stakeholders with a comprehensive and balanced overview of the

ESGHEMMBRBEANTEREANTAZR  ARNEREAREESGERNEZE K

Unless explicitly specified otherwise, the Group employs consistent methodologies for
data collection and disclosures to the extent practicable, thereby facilitating meaningful

Materiality
BEM
ERBENEANRE
Quantitative
assumptions employed in the calculation process.
21t FERIITEIER T - ESGoE S
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Balance
Group’s ESG performance.
i
P o
Consistency
comparison of ESG performance.
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Report Approval

The Group maintains an unwavering commitment to ensuring the
accuracy and reliability of all information presented in the ESG Report.
All data and information contained within this ESG Report are derived
from official documents and statistical records maintained by the
Group. This ESG Report received formal confirmation and approval
from the Board on 20 March 2025.

W E R
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Report Publication and Contact

The ESG Report has been prepared in both Chinese and English
languages and is accessible on the official websites of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the “HKEX”) (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Group.

The Group sincerely welcomes and values all feedback and
opinions regarding the ESG Report or its ESG performance from our
stakeholders.

Email: info@macauem.com

Tel: (853) 2872 0006

Mail: Avenida da Concordia, nos 175-181,

Edificio Industrial Wang Fu, 10 Andar B e D Macau
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T4 1 (853) 2872 0006
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Our Approach to Sustainability
Sustainability Governance

In view of increasing stakeholder focus on sustainability performance,
the Group recognizes that establishing a robust governance culture
and framework is imperative for sustainable long-term growth. The
Group maintains an unwavering commitment to sound corporate
governance practices and upholds the highest ethical standards. Our
strategic objective is to seamlessly integrate Environmental, Social,
and Governance (ESG) considerations into our corporate decision-
making processes, thereby demonstrating our dedication to responsible
corporate citizenship.
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Governance Structure
The Board

The Board of Directors, serving as the Group’s highest governing
authority, assumes overarching responsibility for and actively stewards
all material ESG and climate-related matters. To ensure optimal
governance efficacy, the Board conducts regular reviews and rigorous
monitoring of progress towards established ESG-related strategies and
objectives. When deemed necessary, the Board implements expansions
and enhancements to management approaches in these critical areas.
The Board’s principal functions include:

° formulating comprehensive corporate management strategies and
business directives

° reviewing and refining risk management frameworks and internal
control mechanisms

° providing oversight of senior management performance and
accountability

° ensuring effective implementation of sustainability initiatives
across all operational divisions

The ESG Committee

The ESG Committee, under the chairmanship of the Board Chairman,
comprises cross-functional representatives and convenes formally
at minimum once per annum. Operating under the Board’s strategic
direction, the Committee maintains operational management of the
Group’s ESG and climate-related initiatives. As formally documented
in its Terms of Reference, the Committee’s primary responsibilities
encompass:

° overseeing the strategic development of ESG and climate-
related matters and formulating recommendations for Board

consideration

° supervising the establishment and effective implementation of
comprehensive ESG and climate-related policies and practices

° reviewing and monitoring professional development programs for
Directors and executive management

° executing Board-approved ESG policies and operational practices

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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° conducting systematic assessments of ESG and climate-related
risk factors

o evaluating and providing strategic guidance on the Group’s ESG
performance metrics and disclosure practices

During the Reporting Period, the Committee conducted two formal
meetings to deliberate upon and review ESG-related initiatives and
strategic action plans. Prospectively, the Group shall engage in
comprehensive discussions to develop forward-looking strategies and
quantifiable objectives pertaining to ESG and climate change mitigation,
thereby advancing the sophistication of its ESG management
framework and performance outcomes.

Risk Management

The Board acknowledges its fiduciary responsibility for establishing
and maintaining effective risk management and internal control
systems, as well as conducting periodic assessments of their
operational effectiveness. In accordance with corporate governance
best practices, the Board has delegated specific risk management
and internal control oversight responsibilities to the Audit Committee.
This specialized governance body supervises management in the
design, implementation, and continuous monitoring of the Group’s risk
management and internal control frameworks. The Board conducts a
comprehensive review of these systems’ effectiveness at least once
annually.

During the current Reporting Period, the Group systematically
incorporated ESG-related risk factors into its enterprise risk
management framework and annual risk assessment processes,
with support from an independent external consultancy. The Group
conducted a thorough evaluation of potential ESG-related risks,
including but not limited to: regulatory developments and compliance
requirements, environmental investment considerations, natural disaster
preparedness, climate change impacts, low-carbon economy transition
challenges, human capital management, occupational safety protocols,
supply chain environmental and social risks, customer relationship
management, data privacy safeguards, information technology security,
intellectual property protection, and anti-money laundering compliance.
Following this comprehensive assessment, no material ESG risks were
identified for the Reporting Period.

For additional information regarding the Group’s corporate governance
framework and practices, stakeholders are directed to the “Corporate
Governance Report” section of this annual report.
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Compliance Management

The Group maintains strict compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations, recognizing that non-compliance could adversely impact
business operations, financial performance, and corporate reputation.
In cases of severe non-compliance, the organization may face
regulatory enforcement measures. To ensure comprehensive regulatory
adherence, the Group has implemented sophisticated internal control
systems that ensure strict compliance across all business operations.
Each functional department is responsible for continuously monitoring
and assessing regulatory developments relevant to its operational
domain.

During the Reporting Period, the Board and senior management confirm
that, to the best of their knowledge, there were no material breaches
of, or instances of non-compliance with, any applicable ESG-related
laws and regulations that would have significantly impacted the Group’s
operations. Furthermore, no legal proceedings related to corrupt
practices were initiated against the Group or any of its employees.

Laws and Regulations
with Significant Impacts

BREE
AEBEEETHBERNERLER - B
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on the Group

Possible Material Impacts

HEKMEEARENEERER

Emissions ° Law No. 2/91/M
° General Regulation of
Public Place approved by
Administrative Regulation No.

28/2004
e Law No. 22/2020
HER o FE291/MFEE

o Z£28/2004 5 1THUERILAER
CREMTRBE)
o 5 22/2020 58 %12

MREARE

The violation of relevant laws and regulations may result
in administrative and economic penalties, and may
also affect the progress of the project and damage the
reputation of the Group.

EBMBARLER A REBEITRREHEE R - EAl 8
FERBEREYREAEERE -

Employment ° Law No. 7/2008
o Law No. 21/2009
° Law No. 8/2020

5 7/2008 57512
. £ 21/2009 57 % 12
o 8/20205% k2

The violation of employment-related laws and
regulations may lead to a large number of talent losses,
face administrative penalties, and may lead to litigation
cases.
BEEREBERELERFREHRAEALREL B
TTRURE - WA e SRR -
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Laws and Regulations
with Significant Impacts

on the Group

HEKMEEARENEERER

Possible Material Impacts
HEATE

The violation of health and safety-related laws and
regulations can lead to administrative and financial
penalties and affect project schedules. Safety incidents
can threaten the safety of employees and lead to costly
litigation.
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The violation of relevant laws and regulations may result
in administrative and economic penalties, and damage
the Group’s reputation.
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Occupational Decree Law No. 44/91/M
Health and Law No. 3/2014
Safety
BEEERLR S 44/91/M A S
55.3/2014 5% 512
Labour Law No.7/2008
Standards Chief Executive’s Dispatch No.
343/2008
Chief Executive’s Dispatch No.
344/2008
LIRE 25 7/2008 5% A 12
28 343/2008 5E AT K B #L 7R
55 344/2008 57 TR B #E R
Product Chief Executive’s Dispatch No.

Responsibility

88/2010
Law No. 44/91/M
Law No. 3/2014

EmET %88/20105 1T LR B #t '~
F44/91/MER LR
5 3/2014 58512

The violation of relevant laws and regulations not only
affects reputation and competitiveness in the market,
but may also lead to administrative penalties, exposing
the Group to high litigation and seriously affecting the
Group’s profitability.
BEMBERNER T EREREERBNHEAET ST
WBRFE N BEERTRES - EASEREFLRERE -
VEREXEREBMHOBNEET

Anti-corruption

Law No. 19/2009

5 19/2009 58 %12

The violation of relevant laws and regulations can
weaken the Group’s ability to operate and damage its
reputation.
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Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder engagement is a cornerstone of the Group’s approach
to business growth and sustainable development. We recognize
and value our stakeholders’ significant contributions and their role
in enhancing our ESG management framework and performance
metrics. To understand and address ESG matters from stakeholders’
perspectives, we maintain systematic communication protocols and
foster collaborative relationships with these key groups.

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted a comprehensive
stakeholder mapping exercise to identify principal stakeholder groups
and implemented structured engagement initiatives through various
communication channels:
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Materiality Assessment Cy R

During the Reporting Period, the Group engaged an independent SR&EHIA  ANEBZEBSTEMEREBL
consultant to conduct a comprehensive materiality assessment using K =#E5ETEENEZ M TG o LRES
a structured three-step approach. This framework was enhanced BEFAEESZMREA(RABIEHTKEE
by applying the double materiality principle, which evaluates both N FEEE ) MBI #E - BIEFTH A
financial materiality and impact materiality. Based on the assessment & » ANEEH B H ¥ AR FH RS M ELEW
results, the Group identified critical ESG matters essential for strategic Z=MEZMESGEIE °

enhancement and performance optimization.

Identification o The Group systematically identified 21 relevant ESG issues through

% Bl comprehensive analysis of the ESG Guide, current reporting trends,
and industry peer benchmarking.

e AEBEFBETHEHNESGIES| - BRINBREBHE AR KRR EELE
BEEMFR T 21 THEBEESGHE ©

Prioritisation ° The Group solicited participation from diverse internal and external

BEEEIER stakeholders through a structured online survey instrument designed
to quantitatively assess the materiality of identified ESG issues.

o Stakeholder perspectives regarding both the impact of issues on
the Group’s enterprise value and the Group’s impact on economic,
environmental, and societal domains were methodically collected
and analyzed to determine comprehensive materiality ratings for each
issue.

o A multi-dimensional materiality matrix was subsequently developed in
conjunction with a hierarchically prioritized issue inventory.

e AEHEFBHEBINFELAETIAR BFTRAHRNBRINDRFNES
- AS(LRHEE BAIESGHEENEE L -

s BEEMKREITHIMBFHELRZENAZERAEECEREEARSE
SEYHEE REMEBRHENTENER  URESEZENEE

BEMFAR -
e MBRAZR—(EAZHENEZUHEE SEAERIDELZBREE -
3 Validation o The ESG Committee and the Board of Directors conducted a thorough
WmE review and validation of the materiality assessment findings.
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The materiality matrix below visually represents the relative significance
of the 21 ESG issues evaluated. It illustrates how each issue impacts
the Group’s business value and shows the Group’s effect on economic,
environmental, and societal dimensions. Issues in the upper right
quadrant have the highest materiality and constitute the primary focus
areas in this ESG Report.
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Based on our enhanced materiality assessment methodology, we
identified four issues of material significance during this reporting
cycle: Occupational Health and Safety, Labour Standards, Product and
Service Quality and Safety and Business Ethics.
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Tier Materiality
Issue (in descending order of materiality) BE (REEMREFEES) & 5l BEEH
11 Occupational Health and Safety BEEEREZE
12 Labour Standards 4 T8
13 Product and Service Quality and Safety EmiMREEERET D .
) ) . Material
19 Business Ethics [EESEE 1 sz
8 Employment Practices BT AR
14 Customer Engagement EF2H
10 Training and Development El R
20 Risk Management oy
17 Responsible Supply Chain Management BEEMNHEREER
9 Diversity and Equal Opportunity Zlb R FEH#S
6 Materials R 5 Moderate
16 Responsible Marketing BEANTISEHE &
15 Privacy and Data Security RALRERZR
21 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights I ERERE
4 Energy EEY
18 Community Engagement and Investment MESERKRE
3 Waste EEY
5 Water X 3 Monitored
1 Air Emissions & RBER E5
2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions B ZERESHER
7 Climate Change and Resilience RIREL REELEH

Material Issue

EERE

Occupational Health and Safety
BERELLZE

Labour Standards
2 TAA|

Product and Service Quality and Safety
EmMREEERLZ S

Business Ethics

[EESEEE

Relevant Section in the Report
WEAEREL

Building a Supportive Workplace — Occupational Health and Safety
BYERNTIESH — BERRELZ S

Building a Supportive Workplace - Labour Rights and Standards
B BN TS — SR RRE

Driving Operational Excellence - Delivering Quality Services

HEEEHEE — REEERYE

Driving Operational Excellence — Upholding Corporate Ethics
HEFWEE — BFEBEE

BIREERERAR 2024 FEHeE
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BYEHBNITFESH

AEEBERARE—EFEXNTHERE -
BANERRBERATANEE - RFIHE
BHZEREENBERERL20E R
B BRMNAIEBA S Y IENE R’
T RMIBREEEREREZNLER
B WARNBABEFINMBESTHE -
BRZEFEBCNETEIRBR - HAINEF
EIREESNHERMNBHE - ERAILR

Building a Supportive Workplace

The Group is firmly committed to creating a professional work
environment that values human capital as our greatest asset. Our
holistic approach includes robust occupational health and safety
protocols, protection of employee rights, and enhancement of well-
being through targeted initiatives. We recognize employee development
as a critical business imperative and invest significantly in professional
training and career advancement opportunities. Through these
structured programs and policies, we aim to foster organizational

loyalty, professional fulfillment, and exceptional performance among all R HEI TERIR -
our personnel.
Occupational Health and Safety BEREREZR

Focus

Purpose

=R:)

Policy

BUR

Work Site Safety Require site workers to adhere to various Provide guidelines on fire prevention, manual

Reference occupational safety guidelines work, construction materials and the use of
personal protective equipment

(T 22 %) ERTHMT ABTERBEL2IES BB FIMEE - BEMHREAY #ERE

=R REHES

26

Accident Handling
Guide

(FHBEEIEIES)

Make orderly arrangements and reduce
hazards in case of emergencies

EEZBRATHHBERFLS  BRESE
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Provide comprehensive guidelines for the
prevention of and systematic response to
accidents and injuries on site
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Protecting Our Employees REES

The Group prioritizes the well-being of all personnel, with occupational ~ AEELAFFHE E THEIE BE % - B2 E
health and safety being a fundamental operational imperative. We are %42 2@ EAEIK - KRB ENA
committed to establishing and maintaining a safe and healthy working g T4 — AR 2@ EN TIEBIE -
environment for all staff members. Our objective is the complete B E R AR BN ERERERY
elimination of work-related injuries through continuous improvement plEs . =R NBRTIESN - RIFEBAE X
of occupational health and safety standards. This commitment is G M 2 T M R0 2 4 B A B R

demonstrated through the systematic implementation of comprehensive e N
NB 12 y=3 FENEER
safety protocols, positioning our workplace as an exemplar of L TIESHELRBRERRZ M2

occupational health and safety excellence. LD -
Policies and measures o The Group has implemented the “Work Site Safety Reference,” which
BERE provides comprehensive guidelines regarding fire prevention protocols,

manual handling procedures, construction material management,
and the appropriate utilization of personal protective equipment.
Supervisory personnel conduct both scheduled and unscheduled
inspections to verify employee compliance with established safety
directives.

° The Group systematically evaluates the efficacy of these policies and
measures through periodic reviews to ensure continued alignment
with evolving employee requirements and industry best practices.

e ZXEEEEMIIHLZEZ2Z] SEMHNE  ATRBEREF  BEM
HEBREAADERENESERRHEEEES - TEABSHETTE
HRTEHNRE  UREEESTETHENLRIES °

o  AEBEFEBTHME B REOMITEZEFBR LIEHRA RN - BIRE
BRETHEZENEEERRITERETEHR

Incident Management o The Group has established an “Accident Handling Guide” to facilitate

EHER prompt and effective response to health and safety incidents.
This comprehensive guide delineates protocols for managing on-
site accidents and injuries, with an emphasis on preventative risk
management strategies.

° In the event of a work-related incident, the Project Management Team
implements immediate assistance protocols for affected individuals.
Subsequently, a thorough causal analysis is conducted, followed by
the submission of a detailed investigation report to the Group. Based
on these findings, appropriate corrective measures are developed and
implemented to prevent recurrence.

o AEECHIEIEHREEBIES]  WARBREHERER L2 HH -
REEES B EBIVSERRGENNE - WiRATEY RRERR o

e —BEATSSH BEEBRERBAXTEALTERAKEDNE
BERReETHRENRARI N TAAKERIFANASTRE - RIT
ZEREHER  HEURITEE O ERFR - U IEFRERESE -
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Education and training °
HE RIEI

The Group is dedicated to providing comprehensive education and
training on occupational health and safety matters. Supervisory
personnel and experienced employees provide detailed instruction
regarding operational procedures, proper utilization of safety
equipment, appropriate tool handling techniques, and workplace
environmental awareness.

° In addition to completing mandatory government-regulated safety
certification programs, employees are required to participate in site-
specific safety training initiatives. This approach ensures personnel
possess requisite competencies for their designated roles, thereby
safeguarding their well-being in the workplace.

° The Group maintains a structured disciplinary framework whereby initial
safety protocol violations result in formal warnings and mandatory
retraining. Subsequent infractions may result in employment
termination, underscoring the Group’s commitment to maintaining
rigorous safety standards.

e FEETNRHEEEBERERZZ2FENZEHEEIR - TEA
BREREESHRBIFIEF LE2REOERER EENTARE
RIGA R TESPEIRR BB AF A 45 5 -

o BREABITHRTEREIML 2REREIN - BB INEL NG E S
Z2IRES - kAR HRES ABREITRETREMTINE N - 1
MRE B FETESHANE S

e ZFAEBEAFEBIENLEER BRERZZHNENEEHXIIER

ZE R ERF - BILE B EERRE - LB AR EE G FER

R IR AN A
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Monitoring Subcontractor

The Group recognizes the strategic importance of our subcontractor
relationships and maintains transparent, professional communication
channels to foster sustainable, mutually advantageous partnerships.
We place paramount importance on the occupational health and
safety of all site personnel, requiring mandatory possession of the
Occupational Health and Safety Card for the Construction Industry prior
to commencement of any site activities. Our Engineering Department
implements proactive measures, including specialized training for high-
risk operational functions and enforcement of personal protective
equipment requirements. Through these comprehensive initiatives, we
endeavor to create a secure operational environment for subcontractor
personnel, thereby mitigating health and safety risks and enhancing
workforce confidence and productivity.

During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved zero work-related
injuries. Furthermore, we maintain a consistent record of zero work-
related fatalities across the past three consecutive reporting years,
including the current Reporting Period.
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Talent Management

Policy
BE

Purpose

BH

Employee Handbook Establish a definitive framework for human

(BT FHM)

Employee
Recruitment
Procedures

(BTHRERRF)

Diversity Policy

Statement

(ZTEBRER)

Code of Ethics

(BEBRTRD

resources management to ensure equitable
and objective management principles,
fostering a respectful, fair, and harmonious
working environment
BIANBEREENPEER BEAF -
FENERRA BEEE - AT RMEN
TR

Standardise the Group’s human resources
acquisition and allocation protocols, optimise
recruitment efficiency and enhance talent
selection methodologies

BEEAERENANERBERLEENS
BIEBBRERBIEATBREITA

Secure and retain highly competent
personnel who substantively contribute to the
organisation’s long-term strategic objectives
BRI BEHEBRRPRBEEEELER
WEF AT

Mandate employee comprehension of and
adherence to the Group’s business ethics
principles and requirements

EREETHRIBTASENHEBRRA
R EFR

AT ER
Focus
B

Provide comprehensive guidelines on
staff remuneration, dismissal, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, diversity, anti-discrimination,
labour standards and benefits

HEIHM - BE BE S ILERH.
fiRA - FEHE 2l RERK BIEF
ERBANREZEAIES

Delineate the Group’s recruitment strategies
and principles, clarify departmental
responsibilities, specify application
requirements, and establish candidate
selection criteria

BN AEBNBERBERRE - #EFPIH
B AmBREER WEIREATRERE

Articulate the Group’s commitment and
systematic approach to workplace diversity

MARKEYH TIESEMZ TN ARERA R
BT

Encompass comprehensive guidelines for
conducting the business operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries in accordance
with the highest standards of business ethics
AERRERERERRERRARRILA
MEBARREEENZEIES
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The Group recognizes that its ongoing business success depends
directly on the expertise and contributions of its workforce. Protecting
employees’ rights and interests, while developing exceptional talent,
is not only essential for the Group’s long-term growth but also a
fundamental requirement for sustainable organizational progress.

The Group has established comprehensive employment policies
that provide clear guidance on remuneration, dismissal, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, holidays, equal opportunities, diversity, anti-
discrimination, labor standards, and employee benefits. These policies
are fully documented in the “Employee Handbook,” which is distributed
to all personnel.

Talent Attraction and Retention

To retain skilled personnel and attract new talent, the Group offers a
competitive remuneration package. This includes fair base salaries,
performance-based incentives, professional allowances, and additional
compensation. The Group provides employees with various benefits
such as educational subsidies, compassionate leave, parental leave,
and comprehensive medical coverage. Additionally, the Group
recognizes outstanding employee performance through structured
feedback, including performance appraisals, salary adjustments, career
advancement opportunities, and Long Service Employee Awards.
These practices enhance workforce satisfaction and organizational
commitment.

Diversity and Equal Opportunity

The Group endorses and implements equal opportunity and diversity
principles throughout its operations. We firmly uphold equality across all
employment dimensions, offering equal opportunities to all employees
regardless of race, ancestry, origin, ethnicity, language, citizenship,
religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, age, marital status, physical
or cognitive abilities, or socioeconomic circumstances. All recruitment,
advancement, and compensation decisions are based solely on
objective, performance-related criteria. The Group maintains a zero-
tolerance policy toward any form of harassment or discrimination in the
workplace.

Recognizing the needs of nursing mothers in our workforce, the
Group has established dedicated lactation facilities. Through
these accommodations, we foster an inclusive environment that
acknowledges and respects the diverse experiences and challenges
faced by different segments of our workforce.
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Labour Rights and Standards

The “Code of Ethics” explicitly affirms the Group’s recognition of the
intrinsic and universal nature of human rights, in accordance with
established international agreements and treaties. These include
the United Nations International Human Rights Conventions and the
standards established by the International Labour Organisation.

To prevent child and forced labor, the Human Resources department
verifies the age of all prospective employees by requiring valid
government-issued identification before employment begins. The
Group has also implemented a standard five-day workweek and
provides appropriate overtime compensation as required by law,
thereby protecting employees’ fundamental rights. For both voluntary
resignations and employment terminations, the Group follows
prescribed legal procedures to ensure fair treatment of all personnel.

Employee Engagement

The Group fosters a constructive and collaborative work environment
through diverse communication channels, including regular
departmental meetings, dialogue sessions, and performance evaluations
that gather employee input and suggestions. To build team cohesion
and strengthen organizational identity, the Group organizes various
activities such as seasonal celebrations and annual corporate events,
which often include employees’ family members. These initiatives help
reduce work-related stress and promote a unified corporate culture,
creating a supportive and inclusive workplace.

When potential violations of employment policies or labor standards are
identified, the Group encourages employees to report misconduct or
irregularities. Reports can be made to immediate supervisors, human
resources personnel, or submitted in writing to the Board of Directors.
The Group has implemented robust protections against retaliation for
employees who, in good faith, report concerns about business conduct
or participate in internal investigations.
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Talent Development

The Group recognizes talent development as a fundamental strategic
imperative for sustainable organizational growth. In alignment with
operational objectives, the Human Resources department works with
executive leadership to implement comprehensive evaluation and
advancement protocols.

We are committed to providing extensive professional development
opportunities. Our strategic objective is to facilitate the acquisition of
position-relevant expertise in accordance with our “Code of Ethics.” We
have implemented a comprehensive portfolio of educational initiatives
designed to address the diverse requirements of various organizational
divisions and functional roles. These initiatives include:

Target Audience  Training Program

2 3IET &

BEAR

Newly recruited
employees

Orientation training

MABEBT AR

All employees Regular on-the-job training

H
i
]
H

\
i

JEHIE R

Employees involved
in the site operation

Additional training courses

SEBISEFNE T BIMOEFIERIE

The Group provides full financial support for continuing professional
development courses for certified technical personnel. This investment
in human capital enhancement both augments specialized knowledge
acquisition and fosters intellectual engagement and motivation for
professional advancement.
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Facilitate understanding of organizational
culture, protocols, and regulations,
while clarifying individual rights and
responsibilities

R E B AR OB RERO T
() By 75 (B AR 2 B AE

Develop essential competencies and
knowledge for safe and effective task
execution, including occupational health
and safety protocols, anti-corruption
measures, and related operational areas
BERRZE2BURITEBOERGE N KA
B RRERBRERERL2HNE RES
e M AR RE 2 E R

Enhance domain-specific skills,
ensuring familiarity with current industry
methodologies and best practices
BERERINRE  BRAKE D
EXETERKETR
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Driving Operational Excellence

The Group places paramount importance on the continuous
enhancement of construction quality and the cultivation of client
confidence. Furthermore, the Group implements a comprehensive
quality management system to establish mutual trust with clients and
suppliers, thereby fostering enduring strategic partnerships.

Delivering Quality Services

Purpose
B®

Policy
BER

Project Management Ensure and enhance the quality of construction
Guidelines
(TR ERES) BENRGRIEE

Delivering high-quality products and services to clients is a core
organizational value. The Group applies strict quality and schedule
control methods in its operations, as outlined in the “Project
Management Guidelines,” to ensure construction excellence across all
projects.

The structural integrity and quality of our buildings are essential to
our business sustainability. Our Project Management Team conducts
thorough inspections of building quality and safety. These assessments
verify that projects conform to established plans and standards while
identifying potential construction issues early. We regularly hold
cross-functional meetings to review safety protocols, environmental
compliance, schedule adherence, design specifications, and site
coordination requirements.

The Group values client feedback as a vital element in enhancing
customer experience and driving organizational improvements. We
distribute all client communications to relevant operational units,
including the Project Management Team. We are firmly committed to
analyzing client feedback, evaluating service quality, and incorporating
stakeholder recommendations into our operational protocols. During
the Reporting Period, the Group received zero client complaints,
demonstrating our commitment to service excellence.

HEaHEE
AEERERHRFERAREDRUR
BERFED - W ARAEREERE
ERRL REPRUBERILR LT
(R AR R -

RUEBERK
Focus
B

Set out procedures for contracting, execution
and completion of works
I TIRAB - 1T MK P
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Upholding Corporate Ethics

Purpose

=R:)

Policy
BE

Employee Handbook Provide employees with guidance on how to
deal with conflicts of interest and ensure they
understand the circumstance under which
they should exercise caution

CEITFD RETIRMHOAEENSEHRNOES - HER
HTMEZETENBR
Code of Ethics Require employees to understand and adhere

to the Group’s business ethics principles and
requirements, including the confidentiality of
information

EBRETTHRIETAEENEEERRY
REF - BHRERRE

(BizaEsral

Technology Ensure that the data provider understands

Resources Use Policy and agrees with the Group’s use and handling
of relevant data, and standardise the way
employees handle the relevant information.

(RUTERERBR) HRBURRRMHE IR R S5 A% B HHE R 2
BHERMRERE REETREBHEBEND
WY
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BRiFhEEE
Focus

Summarise the code and guidelines for
handling conflict of interest and require
employees to avoid any situations that could
lead to a conflict of interest

MR R & ReERI RIES - ERKET
R AT BE S| BN R & RA BN

Contain general guidelines for conducting the
business of the Company and its subsidiaries
consistent with the highest standards of
business ethics, including handling company
and customer information and prohibiting
disclosing any customer or internal information
and data to third parties without approval
AEEREeRRERRERRARRILA
MELRRIEBH—KRIES  BEREEAFAR
BEPENURREHENSRAE =7 REE
A% P NEE R R BIE

Describe the ways and principles of the
Group’s collection and processing of personal
data of customers and others, including
collection for use and disposal
HAAEEREREERTP kit AMMEAEE
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Anti-corruption

The Group upholds stringent business ethical standards by
implementing comprehensive anti-corruption measures through robust
corporate governance structures, internal control systems, and risk
management frameworks — all under continuous Board oversight.
The Group has established the “Employee Handbook” and “Code
of Ethics” to provide thorough guidance to all personnel regarding
professional integrity, particularly emphasizing anti-corruption and
anti-bribery compliance. To further institutionalize ethical business
practices, the Group follows standardized operational procedures and
conducts regular ethics training for Board members and employees at
all organizational levels.

The Group has implemented a confidential reporting mechanism
that allows employees and business partners to anonymously
report suspected violations of anti-corruption protocols or other
ethical improprieties. These reports can be directed to the Human
Resources department or other designated organizational units
via telecommunication or electronic correspondence. All reported
incidents undergo thorough investigation and are managed with strict
confidentiality in accordance with internal governance frameworks and
applicable regulatory requirements.

R&ES
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Data privacy and intellectual property rights

In today’s digital transformation landscape, the construction sector
increasingly incorporates sophisticated data management practices.
The Group continually enhances and implements advanced
technological systems to optimize operational efficiency and maintain
competitive advantage.

Unauthorized disclosure of clients’ confidential information poses
significant reputational and operational risks to the Group, with potential
adverse financial consequences. To mitigate these risks, the Group
employs comprehensive cybersecurity infrastructure — including
network surveillance systems, intrusion detection mechanisms, and
vulnerability assessment protocols — ensuring the integrity of network
communications, data repositories, and personal information assets.

The Group respects intellectual property rights (“IPR”) and their owners,
and is firmly committed to safeguarding all IPR within its business
operations. To enhance IPR governance, the Group has established
the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics alongside the Technology
Resources Use Policy. These frameworks create standardized protocols
for the administration, preservation, and supervision of intellectual
property assets.

Promoting Sustainability in the Supply Chain

Policy Purpose
BUR B
Engineering Establish comprehensive standards and

Procurement and
Subcontracting
Guidelines
(IEHRBR

D HESD

protocols for supplier engagement

BUHEH2ENZERERNE

Code of Ethics Articulate explicit supplier requirements to
facilitate judicious and equitable vendor
selection

(BERBERESTAD MR HERER  UMRBE - 2F
IR EHER

Sustainable Supply  Codify the Group’s consolidated sustainability

principles and implementation frameworks
throughout the supply chain

Chain Management
Policy Statement

(RAIFFE e AREHERTREASENGRAATRFER
BEEBRRER) R AR EHEER
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Focus

Delineate specific implementation processes
for procurement methodologies, including
competitive tendering, direct appointment,
and strategic sourcing initiatives
AERBAZHABERERE &
BIE BEEEH RRBIEREE

BIER

Specify compliance parameters for suppliers,
emphasizing ethical conduct and operational
safety as fundamental prerequisites for
business engagement
REEEETARSE BB BET
BRETEBEENERTRIGH

TREE

Articulate our commitment to comprehensive
supplier ESG risk assessment, environmentally
responsible product procurement, and
structured supplier communication protocols
AR MY 2 mHEEBESGRAR T - HIR
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As the Group advances its strategic objectives, the operational
performance of our suppliers and contractors has become increasingly
integral to our effectiveness. The Group has instituted standardized
evaluation methodologies for supplier and contractor assessment,
developing and implementing “Engineering Procurement and
Subcontracting Guidelines” to govern these relationships. The Project
Management Team conducts rigorous supplier evaluations based on
multiple criteria — commercial parameters, cost structures, market
reputation, quality management systems, organizational governance
frameworks, and geographical operational scope. During the reporting
period, these procurement protocols were systematically applied across
the Group’s entire supplier network.

The Group acknowledges the strategic importance of effective
environmental and social risk management throughout its supply
chain. Through cultivating environmental stewardship and promoting
constructive practices among supply chain partners, we maintain
that such initiatives not only enhance operational excellence but also
contribute substantively to environmental sustainability and community
well-being.

In accordance with the Environmental Policy Statement and the
Sustainable Supply Chain Management Policy Statement, the Group
ensures comprehensive communication of its social and environmental
expectations to all suppliers, thereby facilitating alignment with our core
values and sustainability objectives.

The Sustainable Supply Chain Management Policy Statement
underscores our commitment to implementing structured supplier ESG
risk assessment protocols, prioritizing environmentally responsible
products, and maintaining systematic communication channels with
suppliers. The Group gives preferential consideration to business
partners demonstrating exemplary sustainability performance and
incorporates environmental criteria as a significant determinant in
subcontractor selection processes.

The Group maintains a strategic preference for suppliers exhibiting
strong environmental credentials. All prospective suppliers must
demonstrate adherence to the Group’s “Code of Ethics,” which
establishes definitive standards for ethical conduct and operational
safety — prerequisites fundamental to our business relationships.
Furthermore, the Project Management Team regularly reviews and
modifies procurement guidelines and supplier ethical standards in
response to evolving market dynamics and sustainability imperatives.
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REDUCING ENVIRONMENTAL
FOOTPRINT

The Group recognizes the significant environmental impact of its
operations and has implemented comprehensive measures to address
these concerns. We have established a multi-faceted approach that
includes emissions reduction, pollution prevention, energy and water
conservation, and waste management — all designed to achieve our
environmental sustainability goals. To ensure effectiveness, the Group
has implemented an environmental management system that enables
continuous monitoring and compliance verification. We provide practical
environmental conservation guidelines for our workforce and encourage
our supply chain partners to improve their environmental performance.

Policy
BR

Purpose
B®

Environmental
Protection Policy

Provide strategic direction for environmental
footprint reduction and sustainability

Statement advancement
CGRIRIEEH) REVRERTREBEAFEZERERE

77 1A

The Group remains firmly committed to its environmental stewardship
responsibilities and will continue to systematically monitor and review
its emissions profile and resource usage patterns. This analytical
approach helps us develop a clear understanding of our environmental
impact and formulate targeted strategies to mitigate adverse ecological
effects. Based on these assessments, the Group will establish
progressive environmental performance targets, demonstrating our
ongoing dedication to environmental leadership and responsible
corporate citizenship.
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Focus
B

Articulate specific environmental objectives
and implementation frameworks, including
carbon emissions reduction, resource
efficiency optimization, and pollution
prevention protocols, supplemented by
comprehensive monitoring and enforcement
mechanisms to ensure adherence
MEAARHIRE R ERERER - BN
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Our Roadmap to Environmental Target-setting
RPN ERREBZRRE

Phase 1

Phase 2

Phase 3

FE3MHER

Set directional and forward-looking goals

In consideration of industry performance metrics, the distinctive
characteristics of our business operations, initial evaluations of our
environmental performance, as well as data collection methodologies
and other pertinent considerations, the Group shall establish directional
and forward-looking environmental targets as a foundational step. These
targets shall encompass emissions reductions, waste minimisation, and
enhancements in energy efficiency and water conservation.

FIEL MR ATEERE
ERIATEBYIER EBHLENRFEY  REEXNOTTAEAREBIE
WEFEMEMMBBEE - NEBEBREZ T AT RATEESIRE BIRE
RERE - ZZEREBERIHEN - EVRE - REERWERELAK -

Develop quantitative environmental targets

The development of quantitative environmental targets shall be predicated
upon preliminary directional goals. This process necessitates the ongoing
collection, measurement, and review of quantitative data for both current
and projected environmental performance. These quantitative targets
shall be established in accordance with the principles of specificity,
measurability, attainability, relevance, and time-bound parameters.
FERBLLBRRBE
SIESBRREBREUNSTRAEER AR HBERTEFBENRE -
AERBRANENRRARBRESINSLEE -HIEZE2LEBRBER
BB alst =M A ERM - AEERERSEHRA -

Formulate action plans and track progress

Corresponding strategies and action plans shall be formulated based on
the established quantitative targets. Continuous tracking and systematic
review of performance data are essential to monitor progress towards
achieving these targets. The strategies and action plans shall be subject
to timely adjustments in accordance with the progress achieved.
FIETE A RESER

BREMRENENEZT  GIEHEEREIITENE - FEEHIERER
ABEMEHEREEEREZSARNERZHESZ - REMDNGHNER
Ko by R R B AT BN A& -
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R B

As a responsible member of the global community, the Group {EAZHEREEEIN—E  AEERHT
recognizes its obligation to act decisively in facilitating the transiton HASTHRIEH T REBEEERE
to low-carbon operational practices. We are actively implementing ZEH X - RFILEREBEHEHERE  F8A
a comprehensive strategy to reduce our carbon footprint through & T ZX BRI D @ BF - DA IR HE A N 32
methodical practices designed to mitigate emissions and enhance T%_éfﬁ ME ZEHEMBNEREERTN
resource efficiency. These measures not only yield environmental ARG R ERE - WRAR
benefits but also promote sustainable organizational growth and fFﬁfo&f“ = (ER RS o SRESVEIE BT
underscore our commitment to environmental responsibility. The

strategic initiatives include:

Emissions Reduction and Management

Operations Objectives Practices

EE B B4

Offices

Reduce carbon and air emissions and
waste generation through promoting
green practices in the offices
RBERAEHELEED R
FERBEMUA R EEWESE

Green Office:

° Encourage employees to turn off unused
appliances to prevent waste

° Post power-saving labels in offices
to promote the reduction of energy

consumption

Eco-driving:

° Utilises vehicles with lower emissions
of air pollutants and greenhouse gases
(“GHG”)

° Regularly check and maintain all vehicles
to ensure energy efficiency and lower
fuel consumption

o Drivers of the Group are required to pre-
plan the shortest routes and avoid idling
vehicle engines to reduce unnecessary
fuel consumption

BmEMAE:

e HEMEIMETERANER BRRE

s HERRERUDEFRE REMDER

HRE

RRER

s ERERSAMIAERE (BER®))
P EEIENEH

s TEHMENEEMBER  ERERN
A 3K 7

o  AEEMAIMARAREREERNR
oY IEEWSIEEE - LR
2 HYH FE
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Operations Objectives Practices

&E B &5

Green Business Travel:

° Use teleconferencing and
videoconferencing as much as possible
to limit unnecessary business travel

° Encourage the use of railways and sea
transport over air travel for short trips

o Evaluate the necessity, frequency, and
choice of mode for business travel

° Prioritise direct flights to minimise
emissions when business travel is
unavoidable

Waste Reduction:

o Encourage the use of paperless offices
and the reuse of single-sided printing
paper

° Use biodegradable and washable
straws, tableware, cups, and food
containers whenever possible, to reduce
plastic waste

° Promote employee awareness about
waste reduction and explore more
initiatives for waste recycling in the
offices

REER:

e FRUREAEFGHENLEHEEE R
T B ) 2 ik

e HBERKRTERERKREEE M=
&

e  FMEERMMEN  BEERFNERE

o  EBEIRTAELE BEZEERMIE -

BERDBENR

AR

e SBEREBR&LEHANEEERE@MIT
N4

o REMABRBHIE  BREEMRALEYE
BEBRNRE EA NTFRREVE
Z5

s RABIRENER LRREZHEH
NEHITERDEIRNEE
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Operations Objectives

&E B

Construction sites o Reduce the environmental footprint of
construction projects throughout their
whole life cycle, and safeguard the
health of employees and surrounding
communities through air emissions

reduction

FRETH o BAOEEIEE EEEAGABNRRER
B Wi ER AR RBEIREE TR A
B EAEE

GHG Emissions

The Group conducts regular monitoring and comprehensive
assessment of its GHG emissions to strengthen its carbon emissions
management framework. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total
GHG emissions amounted to 36.21 tonneCO, e, with an intensity of 0.033
tonneCO,e/sqm and 0.696 tonneCO,e/employee.
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Practices

&5

Cut recycled plastic containers in half
to create lids, which cover exposed
surfaces and prevent dust from
spreading when machines are in use
Regularly maintain equipment and
machinery to ensure they do not release
excessive dust into the environment
Investigate further into best practices
in waste management, such as reusing
materials during project construction
HEKREBRSIKMIEKNES B
MNBEZERRE I -5 E B R
EEYE AR

EHBERBERESE  UBRTEMER
BHRERB S O IRE
E—THAEERYERNREBE B
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AEETETHERL2AFHEEERES
P A DNE AR BEE IR AR - SREHR - A
EENEEREHENAZE A3621H —_4A1
MEE HZEA0MME_SHEE T
FK K% 0.696M8 —ELirEEBE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE #HERERRE

GHG Emissions'’ i % Change?
BERBHRE"
Scope 1 emissions?® tonneCO,e 3.51 4.03 -12.8%
HE1HEMES WE — L iRE &
Scope 2 emissions* tonneCO e 32.70 31.21 4.76%
HWE2HmE %ﬂ: e e
Total GHG emissions tonneCO,e 36.21 35.24 2.75%
l:l g /ﬂniﬁﬁxﬁpb_yi Ufﬂﬁi:%{tﬁﬁ%ﬁ
GHG intensity (by area) tonneCO ,e/sgm 0.033 0.032 2.35%
BRERBEE (REE) —&biREE TR
GHG intensity (by employee) tonneCO ,e/employee 0.696 0.518 34.43%
RERBEE (RES) —&aikmEE 1RBE
1 Emission factors were adopted from HKEX “How to prepare an ESG Report —  * HRETFRBEEBR ST 42 ESGH
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPls”. & — W2 - RRBEREIUREHERES ] -
2 The percentage changes provided in this report are calculated directly from raw 2 REBEREFRENES GO HEE
data, rather than from the rounded figures disclosed in the report. FRRBHSIEETTE  MIEFERERSE LT
3 Scope 1 emissions from the combustion of petrol from vehicle. WE e T ABEE -

4 Scope 2 emissions in 2024 and 2023 from the consumption of purchased 3 E[E 1R EEERE T HE SRR -
electricity of the office, emissions in 2022 and 2021 from the consumption of ¢ & [E 27k 52024 F N 2023 F A EEE Ea/lél ﬁ
purchased electricity of the office and warehouse. HBEINE - 2022 F K 2021 F R B MR E &

EREEEENERE -

BIREERERAR 2024 FEHeE
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Air Emissions

During the Reporting Period, atmospheric pollutants emanating from the
Group’s operations primarily derived from vehicular fuel combustion.
These emissions comprised 0.82 kilograms of nitrogen oxides
(NOx), 0.02 kilograms of sulphur oxides (SOx), and 0.06 kilograms of
respiratory suspended particles (RSP).

Air Emissions®

R

REBR - AEEKE EHEENERITE
YIEBREEERE - ZS UM EE0.82T
RRAEY  0.02 T ZHELYX0.06 T%
AT A SR Z B -

% Change®

22 R % 2 8he
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) kg 0.82 1.03 -20.32%
AELY T
Sulphur oxides (SOx) kg 0.02 0.02 -3.18%
nk=Rlat7) T
Respiratory suspended particles (RSP) kg 0.06 0.08 -24.47%
AR A E R T

Waste BEEY

The Group stringently adheres to the hierarchical waste management
principles, commonly designated as the “4Rs”: Reduce, Reuse,
Recycle, and Replace. The predominant waste streams generated
by the Group consist of domestic waste and paper products. These
materials are managed by authorised sanitation service providers,
who ensure appropriate disposal through landfill diversion or recycling
channels. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s non-hazardous
waste generation totalled 0.44 tonnes, corresponding to an intensity
of 0.897 tonnes per thousand square metres and 0.008 tonnes per
employee. Consistent with previous reporting periods, the Group
reported no generation of hazardous waste during the current Reporting
Period.

AEBMBRERETEZMERRA - BEATE
4R RE: Bl - BRA BREK
B AEFAEANTEBEEYRIELEN
IR o sZE YRR L E R B RS
EEERE HEBRREBHEEEDRKE
UCREETHENERE - REHR - A5EH
HEA044MERERREY - HBERE0.397
Wi,/ F 75 K % 0.0080F, & B - 3@ 1+ R
EHE B AEERARE AL EEE
BEBEED -

% Change®

Total non-hazardous waste generated tonne 0.44 0.44 -0.27%
EEXNBEEEREMEE 185
Non-hazardous waste intensity (by area) tonne/’000 sgm 0.397 0.394 0.73%
BEREYEE (ZEE) g, 55K
Non-hazardous waste intensity (by employee) tonne/employee 0.008 0.006 40.64%
BEREWEE (ZES) W E 8

5 Air emissions from the combustion of petrol from vehicle. Emission factors were 5 KEEWRHTHRENTE R B A 7

adopted from HKEX “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs”.

6 The percentage changes provided in this report are calculated directly from raw
data, rather than from the rounded figures disclosed in the report.
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Responsible Resources Management

The Group prioritises resource efficiency optimisation and cultivates
an environmentally conscious workplace culture, with the dual
objectives of minimising resource consumption and mitigating potential
environmental impacts.

EEENERERE
REE S ECERRENEEAL - WIFRA
BIRE B0 TEBFIL Eﬁtﬂiiﬁ
SEREREN R ENEERE

Resources Practices

&R 18 6

Energy o Require employees to switch off all electricity-consuming equipment before the end of the
day

o Set the operating conditions and temperature standards for air conditioners

o Post tips on conserving electricity to increase employees’ environmental awareness

° Perform regular maintenance of filters and fan coils for optimal performance of ventilation

systems

BEIR o EXRETITHABEMAERER

° REEHABITEMHOREZRE

e RUNHEARRET EPEIRSRRER

s THHEBRESINMAMRE  FARERFEDREERE

Water o Display water conservation tips and posters in hand-washing areas

o Enhance the daily maintenance and management of water equipment

o Promptly repair any damaged water supply pipes and facilities.

7K o ERFRRMEUVKIERNEH
o INEAKREHEEEEME

o REEECABRENHKEBMRE

Paper o Encourage employees to communicate through email and other online methods to

minimise paper usage

o Set printers and photocopiers to default to double-sided printing

° Use the blank side of the paper for drafting, printing, and receiving faxes

o Recycle used paper by transforming it into notepads

Aok e RBEIFAEBERLANER RIBMAE

o HSITENEANR BN R B A BA R & 51 £

o ERMEAMBN—E EER JINREKEERSE

o  HEARRKIERELEA  BRERFMA

BOTHEERERAT 2024 FEEFHE
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Energy

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s aggregate energy
consumption amounted to 66.55 megawatt-hours (MWh), with
corresponding intensity metrics of 0.060 MWh per square metre and
1.109 MWh per employee.

Energy Consumption

BEIR

MEHRN  AREBERREEESE 566.555K
T - MEEE 50.060 K LB EHKE
11090k BB /1R E -

% Change’

lﬁ\lé pid 7%' %% % g @ 7
Direct energy: petrol MWh 12.77 14.64 -12.80%
BHEELR M KB
Indirect energy: purchased electricity MWh 53.78 51.25 4.93%
AR - SMNEBE S K F B
Total energy consumption MWh 66.55 65.89 0.99%
RERERERE JK L
Energy intensity (by area) MWh/sgm 0.060 0.060 0.31%
BEREE (REE) K, F 75K
Energy intensity (by employee) MWh/employee 1.109 0.969 14.45%
REREE (REER) KEE, &8

Water 7K

During the Reporting Period, the Group procured potable water
exclusively from municipal supply infrastructure. The Group’s total
water consumption amounted to 110.00 cubic metres (m?), with
corresponding intensity metrics of 0.099 m? per square metre and 2.115
m?3 per employee.

Water Consumption

AR REBEER T REKER SRR
EHRAK - REBEMEHKE A110.0037
7K BERE A0.0993 kKT KK
21153 /5K B8 »

% Change’

K
Total water consumption m? 110.00 141.50 -22.26%
BAKE SR
Water intensity (by area) m3/sgm 0.099 0.128 -22.27%
RKEE (REE) VA A SV
Water intensity (by employee) mé/employee 2.115 2.081 1.65%
RKREZE (RES) MK EE

7 The percentage changes provided in this report are calculated directly from raw 7 AEBEREFPIRENES GO HEE

data, rather than from the rounded figures disclosed in the report.
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The Group recognizes that robust climate adaptation and resilience
strategies constitute essential components of its long-term sustainability
framework. To this end, the Group remains steadfastly dedicated to the
systematic evaluation and identification of opportunities for enhanced
environmental management practices across its operational portfolio.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has methodically incorporated %
climate-related risks into its comprehensive enterprise risk management
framework and annual risk assessment protocols, implemented with
professional guidance from an independent external consultancy firm:

Risk Type

N ki

Physical Risk

Y32 L

=

Climate Change and Resilience Rz

Description
it

Acute physical risks to the Group may arise from extreme
weather events including typhoons, heavy precipitation,
thunderstorms, and flooding. Such occurrences may
result in project delays, damage to documentation,
materials, equipment, and infrastructure, potentially
compromising employee health and safety. These events
may adversely impact the Group’s assets and operational
continuity, leading to restricted facility access, elevated
maintenance expenditures, and increased insurance
premiums.

BmmAREH (BERE - £/ EF KK ATeEHAR
SEERBRENYIERR GREHIREEEIEAL
B oM RERERREXE WAREEEE
IHNREELZR ZEFHARSHAEENEERE
BEAUERTNEE SRREEAXR  #EKAR
BMERERE IR -

Chronic physical risks may manifest through persistent
extreme weather conditions, such as prolonged elevated
temperatures. Potential consequences include increased
heat-related iliness risk for field and workshop personnel,
potentially resulting in elevated workforce turnover
and occupational injuries. Cooling requirements within
operational environments may intensify, potentially
increasing energy demand and associated operational
costs.

£ B V) 32 [E B AT 1 45 4B 0 i um KSR P 88 3R - I A
REBSR - BENERAUEBEFINERELHZ
BERIEN  SREMBE R THESIE M - TIERRS
BV BEIR TF SRS gL AN - W AT BE A N AN S B A9 RE TR TE K
NI EER AR -

%4

g

g =)

H
=]
MAE

e RIEERE N

AEEEHED  BREORGERIERERZE
NERBEDRPAIFHERRERNEZMANK
Moo milt - AEBEBRETIBERONE
HamA RS R HEE NRIR
BEREBOKES -

iR - NREEE A i R IR E R E R
ZHNCXRREBERRLFER
BRAHENE  WEBIBERARNER
EETEWR:

Risk Response

B B FE

The Group mitigates these risks
by conducting the majority of
operations indoors and strictly
adhering to established adverse
weather protocols, which stipulate
the suspension of work activities
during severe weather conditions.

AEEEBEERNETABLD &
B UBRBETREENELSRRL
EMREEBRHIRAMRATERERET
1EEED) AR K F R -

The Group mitigates these risks
by conducting the majority of
operations indoors and strictly
adhering to established adverse
weather protocols, which stipulate
the suspension of work activities
during severe weather conditions.

AEEEBEZERNETALD &
B WEBRBRETEENRSRAL
EBREERSRRMRATERFT
1EEE)) AR EZFRER -

BIHEIERARAR 2024FEHRSE
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Risk Type

i

Transition Risk

B LR

BE

Description

it

The Group must ensure compliance with increasingly
stringent climate-related legislation and regulatory
frameworks implemented by governmental and
regulatory authorities. Non-compliance may expose the
Group to potential litigation risk.

R BRI IR B R X0 B 5 AR
FIRAEM R REEIER - FETRAEA e AREE
B ) S ARELIR

As climate-related disclosure requirements become
progressively more comprehensive, inadequate
compliance may adversely impact the Group. This
is particularly relevant if the Group’s data collection
infrastructure and management systems are insufficient
to facilitate timely and thorough reporting.

HRNERREENREZRZNESEREE  HARE
ANET AREEHAREREEKRTMEE - HAKEH
BIRMEERRENERE RGN R NER LR EHEE
wE BRAGEREE -

Climate change may precipitate multifaceted market
transformations, including fluctuations in demand for
the Group’s products and services. Failure to anticipate
evolving market trends may result in consumer
preferences shifting toward more sustainable alternatives.
Additionally, evolving stakeholder expectations regarding
an organization’s role in facilitating the transition to a
low-carbon economy may impact the Group’s reputation
if appropriate strategic responses are not implemented.
RIRBCAIREEHZ T ENT SEL  BEEAEEE
X BRTS T SKEDIK & © MR RETERNET B L TH IS B 2

AR EBBURBERIFEMN EAIFENER M %W*
%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&&ﬁﬁﬁ%@ﬁ”ﬂ&#ﬁ%@
WEETEHZ( M REEES R EY WT%A
A $E Elr ﬁég °
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Risk Response

2, ek FE 4

The Group maintains vigilant
monitoring of relevant laws and
regulations through multiple
channels, including governmental
coordinators, news outlets,
ESG consultants, and industry
communications, ensuring
timely awareness of regulatory
developments.
REBE BB AEE - EE
# ESGERLERBREZEER
B HHEBEREEREESEE
B mRESERERER -

To ensure efficient maintenance
of timely and comprehensive
internal data for future analysis
and strategic consideration, the
Group has implemented routine
scheduled inspection, verification,
and documentation protocols.

RERMEBEYHELZANATE

BEHA S AR R DT R 2R W%§2%
AEECEBAITERRE BFE
KR dk 4 & o

The Group continuously sources
high-efficiency, energy-conserving
technologies, including premium-
quality compact fluorescent lighting
and water conservation systems at
competitive market prices. These
sustainability-enhancing systems
have been incorporated into recent
office renovation projects.
REBETEARZRF NHOTISER
RESMESERN  BEERESR
B BOR B K R R ENK R A o 225
RAATFEEN RS2 WAL
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The Group is committed to developing comprehensive policies and
practices to identify and evaluate climate-related risks and opportunities
relevant to its business operations with increased granularity. The
Group will furthermore develop and implement appropriate strategic
responses and mitigation measures to address these identified climate
risks and opportunities.

Contributing to the Communities

The Group is fundamentally dedicated to generating positive societal
impact through strategic initiatives that effectively address stakeholder
requirements and foster community development. Our engagement
approach encompasses multiple methodologies, including financial
contributions and sponsorships that provide direct monetary support
to critical projects and initiatives. Furthermore, the Group implements
employee volunteer programmes, enabling personnel to contribute
their professional expertise and time to meaningful causes. Strategic
partnerships with various organisations are also pursued to maximise
impact through collaborative resource utilisation.

In addition to corporate-level initiatives, the Group actively promotes
individual employee participation in community engagement activities.
The organisation maintains the conviction that individual contributions
significantly contribute to meaningful societal change, and consequently
cultivates a service-oriented culture within its workforce. Through
the promotion of active community involvement, the Group aims
to simultaneously contribute to societal development and enhance
employee satisfaction through meaningful engagement and the
establishment of robust community relationships. In subsequent
reporting periods, the Group will establish formalised policies and
practices to systematically identify community needs and guide
strategic community investment decisions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group provided maintenance and
repair services at substantially reduced margins to a charitable infant
care facility. Acknowledging the critical importance of maintaining safe
and appropriate environments for vulnerable populations, the Group
significantly minimised service costs for these essential infrastructure
maintenance activities.

The Group has additionally extended financial support to tertiary
educational institutions, recognising the fundamental importance
of education and academic advancement to societal development.
Financial contributions have been provided to support academic events
and initiatives, thereby contributing to the intellectual advancement and
enrichment of the broader community.
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KEY STATISTICS B AT BUE
Environmental Performance RIBEAN

Indicator i 2024 2023 2022

R By 2024 F 2023 % 2022 %

Air Emissions® 22 & # 5

Nitrogen oxides (NOX) & .1t #1 kg T 0.82 1.03 0.57 0.53

Sulphur oxides (SOX) B& &1L 17 kg T 7= 0.02 0.02 0.01 0.02

Respiratory suspended particles (RSP) kg T3 0.06 0.08 0.04 0.04

AR ASRE RERL )

GHG Emissions® /8 Z R.B& HE i °

Scope 1 Direct GHG emissions™ tonneCOe M — ALt E & 3.51 4.03 2.65 3.72

BEMTEEREREBHR

Scope 2 Energy indirect GHG emissions' tonneCO, el LR E & 32,70 31.21 29.39 28.97

HE2aRMEREREH N

Total GHG emissions & qu/ ERBHME tonneCOe M — A1 it E & 36.21 35.24 32.04 32.69

GHG intensity (by area) 2 EREZE (REE) tonneCO ,£/sqm 0.033 0.032 0.013 0.015

—&y i WEE/FAK

GHG intensity (by employee) tonneCO ,e/employee 0.700 0.518 0.525 0.554

RERETE (REEB) ﬁ1t}xag/ﬁ,§

Waste EE Y]

Total non-hazardous waste generated tonne 0.44 0.44 0.56 0.52

EENEESEEYAE

Non-hazardous waste intensity (by area) tonne/‘000 sgm 0.397 0.394 0.228 0.239

BEEZRVEE (RER) WE/ T HHK

Non-hazardous waste intensity tonne/employee i, /& & 0.008 0.006 0.009 0.009
(by employee) EZEENZE (REE)

Total hazardous waste generated tonne 0 0 0 0

EENEERENAS

Hazardous waste intensity (by area) tonne/sqmiE,/F 5 K 0 0 0 0

BEREZRYEE (RER)

Hazardous waste intensity (by employeg) tonne/employee i, /& & 0 0 0 0

BEREYEE (REE)

Energy £¢R

Direct energy consumption B %% 8£ R 5 7% MWh J& L i 12.77 14.64 9.67 12.88
Petrol ;5

Indirect energy consumption [ 42 5 3t 7 MWh Jk F B 53.78 51.25 47.40 35.33
Purchased electricity N & /)

Total energy consumption 5 8 42 2 MWh JK L B 66.55 65.89 57.07 48.21

Energy intensity (by area) (£ % (R ETE) MWh/sqm K FLB,/F 75 K 0.060 0.060 0.023 0.022

Energy intensity (oy employe) MWh/employee JK FLE /& B 1.109 0.969 0.935 0.817

EHREEE(ERES)

Water Ak

Total water consumption 7K = m33 J3 K 110.00 141.50 115.00 130.45

Water intensity (by area) /K% (IR ETE) m¥sqm 3z 5K,/ ok 0.099 0.128 0.047 0.060

Water intensity (oy employee) /K% & (12(E8) m%employee L 5K (B8 2.115 2.081 1.885 2.224

8 Air emissions from the combustion of petrol from vehicle. Emission factors were ~ © KB B TH AR ZE RPN - BEE F IR

adopted from HKEX “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting HEEAR S HAEUESGRE — ik
Guidance on Environmental KPIs”. 2 IRREARBERIEERNERIES ] -

° Emission factors were adopted from HKEX “How to prepare an ESG Report —  ° HHEATFHAEEER S A HERESGH
Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”. & — MiER2  IRRBBRERUREWERIES] ]

10 Scope 1 emissions from the combustion of petrol from vehicle. 10 EE 12k A BERGE VB ELEMNBER

n Scope 2 emissions in 2024 and 2023 from the consumption of purchased ' FE 2K H2024F M2023 FHANEHEH ﬁ
electricity of the office, emissions in 2022 and 2021 from the consumption of HIBERE - 2022 F K 2021 F R A WA E &
purchased electricity of the office and warehouse. EREEEENERE -
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RIE #HERERRE

Social Performance HEEM
Key Performance Indicators 2024 2022

BRENEE 2024 & 2022 £

Total Employees'{g 8 2 & 12

By gender 4 7 Male 514 41 57 52 50
Female 21 1 11 12 12
By age group F #4875 Under 30 30 5% A T 4 6 7 9
30-50 30 £50 5% 31 39 37 39
Over 50 50 7% 1A | 17 23 20 14
By employment type (& & 48 7! Full-time % B 47 64 60 56
Part-time 3 5t 5 4 4 6
By employment level {1 /8 4} Senior management 9 9 9 9
BREBAE
Mid-level management 3 3 3 2
FREERAB
Junior management 2 2 2 2
MHEBAE
Front-line employees 38 54 50 49
—REE
By geographical region i & Macau 2 [ 49 65 61 59
Hong Kong & 78 3 3 3 3
Total 5t 52 68 64 62
Total Subcontractor Workers™® A T A g
By gender % 3 Male 55 1% 7 67 33 40
Female 2 1 0 0 1 0
By age group F ik 48 5 Under 30 30 5 A T 0 12 7 9
30-50 30 £50 7% 5 48 24 28
Over 50 5057 = 2 7 3 3
Total 5t 7 67 34 40
New Employee Rate" ¥ {E & Lt & 14
By gender £ 7 Male 514 36.6% 28.1% - -
Female 2 4 0% 0% - -
By age group F &40 51 Under 30 30 5 A T 50.0% 16.7% - -
30-50 30 £ 50 5% 25.8% 25.6% - -
Over 50 50 7% A | 29.4% 21.7% - -
By employment type & & 481! Full-time % 5% 29.8% 25.0% - -
Part-time 3 5 20.0% 0% - -
By employment level (& & /€ & Senior management 0% 0% - -
BREBAE
Mid-level management 0% 0% - -
HREEAB
Junior management 0% 0% - -
MEBEEANE
Front-line employees 39.7% 29.6% - -
—BEE
By geographical region it /& Macau 2 [ 30.6% 24.6% - -
Hong Kong &% 0% 0% NATEA  NATEA
Total &t 28.9% 23.5% - -

12 Total number of employees at the end of the year, and there were no other RERNESRE  BXEEMTA -

workers. 18 RERNEBEITABE - 2339 BRI R
18 Total number of subcontractor workers at the end of the year, all of which are MEBTA-

full-time workers in Macau. 4 FEBLR=ZEFEEAE RNERNE
14 New employee rate = number of new employees of the category/total number B42%x100% °

of employees of the category at the end of the year x 100%.
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RE -HERERRSE

Key Performance Indicators

Employee Turnover Rate'® & T i % & 15

2024
2024 F

2023
2023 F

By gender £ 7 Male S 75.6% 15.8% 9.8% 37.2%
Female 22 1% 0.0% 9.1% 0.0% 8.0%
By age group F ik 48 5 Under 30 30 5 A T 100.0% 33.3% 0.0% 38.1%
30-50 30 =50 5% 48.4% 7.7% 7.9% 33.0%
Over 50 50 5% A _F 70.6% 21.7% 11.8% 23.1%
By employment type {& & 48 7! Full-time 2 B 66.0% 15.6% 5.2% 30.9%
Part-time % i 0% 0% 40.0% 40%
By employment level {E % /& 4% Senior management 0% 0% 0% 0%
BMEEBAE
Mid-level management 0% 0% 0% 0%
HREEABR
Junior management 0% 0% 0% 0%
MREBRANE
Front-line employees 81.6% 18.5% 10.1% 39.3%
—BEE
By geographical region i /& Macau & 63.3% 15.4% 8.3% 33.3%
Hong Kong & /& 0% 0% 0% 0%
Total # 5t 59.6% 14.7% 8.3% 33.3%
Health and safety@ER % &
Employee EE
Work-related fatality Bl T T-# 0 0 0 0
Work-related injuries T 5 {8 % 2 0 0 4
Work-related injury rate'® 3.85% 0 0 6.78
THBERLE™S
Lost days due to work-related injuries 4.08 0 0 33
AIEEEELAIER
Subcontractor workers RE & T A
Work-related fatality & T 1= 0 0 0 0
Work-related injuries T 15 E% 0 0 0 1
Work-related injury rate'” 0 0 0 2.5
THERLET
Lost days due to work-related injuries 0 0 0 1
AIEEEELIERE
1 Employee turnover rate = number of turnover of the category/total number of 1 BIRAR=ZERRRIAE NERNZE
employees of the category at the end of the year x 100%. Bl{E B 42 8ix 100% °
1. Work-related injury rate = number of work-related injuries/total number of 16 THEEAREER=TEHERERAL RERNEE
employees at the end of the year x 100%. 42 x 100% °
7 Work-related injury rate = number of work-related injuries/total number of 17 TEHEERER=TEEREAZ REXNEER

subcontractor workers at the end of the year x 100%. 7T A#EEIx100% °
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Key Performance Indicators

Employee Trained Rate® ZHI|{E & Lk & 18

By gender 14 7 Male S 39.0% 36.8% 14.0% 60.4%
Female 2 1 27.3% 27.3% 18.2% 72.7%
By employment level (& { 4% Senior management 55.6% 66.7% 6.0% 55.1%
BREEAE
Mid-level management 33.3% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%
HREEAE
Junior management 100.0% 50.0% 33.3% 100.0%
MmEBAE
Front-line employees 26.3% 31.5% 83.3% 100.0%
—RER
Total &t 36.5% 35.3% 14.8% 62.7%

Average Training Hours™

FHBHER

By gender % 5 Male E 1% 1.46 1.49 3.54 7.33
Female 2Z 4.14 2.86 4.73 6.00
By employment level {E & /& % Senior management 5.17 4.61 0.18 2.81
BREEAE
Mid-level management 0.33 0.00 0.00 2.00
HREEAS
Junior management 16.00 12.00 2.00 2.00
MREBAE
Front-line employees 0.68 0.89 35.67 29.42
—RER
Total 5 2.03 1.71 3.75 7.04
Suppliers { FER
By category £8 7! Services fR % 80 85 - -
Materials #1 £} 75 69 - -
By geographical region i [& Macau /& 104 110 94 163
Others (Hong Kong, China) 51 44 35 31
Hi (F& - h &)
Total # 5t 155 154 129 194
Anti-corruption Training X 23513l
Total training hours of directors received 5 5 - 50
BEEXIIERH
Total training hours of employees received 2 2 - 10
1E B X5 420 21
Total &t 7 7 - 60

8 Employee trained rate = number of employees trained in the category/total 1@ ZIRELR=28AZIEE AL REFEXR

number of employees of the category at the end of the year x 100%. X AR B2 B 488X 100% -
1 Average training hours = total hours of training received by employees of the — ° FHZIEE=ZEREEZ IR NEF
category/total number of employees of the category at the end of the year. REZEREBBE -
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Environmental, Social
RIE -HERERRS

and Governance Report

HKEX ESG GUIDE CONTENT INDEX 58X

Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description

Page/Remark

B - —#RIFERKPI 3t

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BRERERE

Governance Structure (i)
(i)
(iif)

BARE (i)

(i)

(il

A disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG
issues.

The board’s ESG management approach and
strategy, including the process used to evaluate,
prioritise and manage material ESG-related issues
(including risks to the issuer’s businesses).

How the board reviews progress made against
ESG-related goals and targets with an explanation
of how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.

KEEFSHESGEEMNEE -

EEEMESGEEH KK - BTG - B
IR EEBEEMNESGHRMEE (BREBITAER
HERR) BBIE o

EXemIZESGHMA B R EE UREE
Il BB FEIT A KRB RAE -
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RIE #HERERRE

Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

Reporting Principles Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the 16, 22-25
process to identify and the criteria for the selection of
material ESG factors; (i) if a stakeholder engagement
is conducted, a description of significant stakeholders
identified, and the process and results of the issuer’s
stakeholder engagement.

Quantitative: Information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools
used, and source of conversion factors used, for the
reporting of emissions/energy consumption (where
applicable) should be disclosed.

Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG
report any changes to the methods or KPIs used, or any
other relevant factors affecting a meaningful comparison.
EE 3 R A BEM  ESGIMEREE : ()i&nEZESGHE =R B
NEEZERZAER (R ETHEMHERE - B
RN EZEFH ERHER RBETARFHELENBERRER -

E1k : BHIE YR RN (ER) A NS
5% BRESHETANEN  URFRAZ
R 0 TR ME T B -

— M BITAREESGRETHEMRAHTTEX
KPIMWEE - HEMHEMEEAERELBMHEREE -

Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the 16
ESG report and describing the process used to identify
which entities or operations are included in the ESG
report.
bEE R %3 ] FRIZESG S AVE MEBE - Nt BRI PR L B B S K 75
M AESGIEHBIE -
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

A1 Emissions

A1 B

General Disclosure Information on: 20, 38-44
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

—REE BHERRBERBHN kR THNIES BER
BEREMOELSH :

(@ BX: k&

b) ETHEITAGERZENRBAERAGNER -

Al The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 43-44, 50

A1.1 PED IR AR M AR R BE R BUE -

Al1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) 43-44, 50
greenhouse gas emissions and intensity.
A1.2 B (BE) RREZ (BE2) R=RBHERREE -
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RIE #HERERRE

Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE - —RHEERKPI i BR B
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and intensity. 44, 50
A1.3 ELANEEBEMEERTE
Al1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity. 44, 50
Al.4 MEANEEBEZNEERTE -
Al1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to 39-42
achieve them.
A1.5 PRI S O BE R E B IR R RERE & B IRPAEREREV T 8K -
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 39-42, 44

wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

A1.6 HilRERENEZTEEMN AL - REAPTRI L HR
ERIERAEDE L BRI B -
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RIE HERERRE

Aspects, General
Disclosure and KPIs
BH - - —REERKPI

A2 Use of Resources

A2 &R M

General Disclosure

— R
A2.1

A2.1

A2.2
A2.2

A2.3

A2.3

A2.4

A2.4

A2.5

A2.5

Description
g

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BEREAER(BIERER - KREMEME) BBEER -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in
total and intensity.
REASSNEER SHEEEREEERTE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BFEKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

TR MR EA NGB R RAERE LB IRATH
EXEY 28R

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

i SKEGE R KR E R B FEERBE - A RAEIZE
K B IR R RERE L BARFTERER Y 2P 5% ©

Total packaging material used for finished products and
per unit produced.

HRmARBEERMHNRERNEEEEMIGE
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Page/Remark
BR B

45-46

46, 50

46, 50

39-42

There were no issues in
sourcing water fit for purpose.

SKEGE RKRR B RE -

The use of packaging
materials is irrelevant to

the Group’s operating
businesses.
BEMEEEREASERN
RS TSR -
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RIE #HERERRE

Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs
BHE - —RKIFERKPI

Description

i

Page/Remark
BR B

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

ASEER RXRARER

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on 38-39
the environment and natural resources.
—MEEE WIRBITABRERRAEREKRERNZENBR -
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the = 38-39
environment and natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them.
A3.1 B EBRBHRRERRABERNEATEREEHTE -
A4 Climate Change
A4 RIRE 1L
General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant This issue is not
Disclosure climate-related issues which have impacted, and those material based
which may impact, the issuer. on the results
of stakeholder
engagement.
The Group will
continue to adjust
the management
approach and
information
disclosure approach
in accordance
with the materiality
principle.
—MRIXEE Bl REHERRAIAGHBETAEELENERARIKE REMNRBRESRE
HEEENBER - BIAER - LR A
BE - AKEGES
RIEE M RAIRE
ERTERERHE
Tk e
A4 Description of the significant climate-related issues 47-49
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
A4.1 HIER KA G HBETAEELENERREEBE

H - REHTH-

BIHEIERARAR 2024FEHRSE
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

B1 Employment
B1{Ef&

General Information on: 20-21, 29-31
Disclosure
(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

—RRIREE EEFMNEE  BEKEA  TERS - &R 5
e - Zork  RIEGUREMGEREF

(@ BX: &k

b) ETHEITARERZENRBEIELAGNER -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group  51-52
and geographical region.

B1.1 ZMR - EEEE  FRAJNKMEZ S HES L

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 51-52
geographical region.

B1.2 IR FEARI KR E D KBS MALLE o
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

B2 Health and Safety

B2REHEZE
General Disclosure Information on: 20-21, 26-28
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
—MRIRE BRARMLZE2TERERREREMEBELEETN
(@ BER: &
(b) BEFHBEITABERZENEEERZRAOIRER
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in 52
each of the past three years including the reporting year.
B2.1 BE=F (BREAREFE) BFRITHHABRLEX -
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 52
B2.2 RIGEATIERE-
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures 26-28
adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
B2.3 HEA PTER ANV B SR (2 PR ER 22 2 e - DA AR 1T Mo B
RAE -

BIREERERAR 2024 FEHeE 61



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE HERERRE

Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI i BR B

B3 Development and Training

B3 & & R iE 3
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills 45-46
for discharging duties at work. Description of training
activities.
—MRIE BRARTES BT TIERE M AHE R MR - fiitt
SEHES) -
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and 46, 50
employee category.
B3.1 BRURIRESENEDNXIMEEA DL
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by 39-42
gender and employee category.
B3.2 RURRESERE S  BREETHIINNFIRE -
B4 Labour Standards
B4 % T %8|
General Disclosure Information on:
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
—MEE BB IEE T a5 645 TH
(@ BE: R
(b) BFHBEBITABERZENHEBERZRAGINER
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices
to avoid child and forced labour.
B4.1 AR S R E G IE e AR R E T RIS T -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices The Group did not encounter
when discovered. such practices during the
Reporting Period.
B4.2 MO EHBRZRBREHREAIB AR TR - AEBEREHARER I
A% -
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RIE #HERERRE

Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

B5 Supply Chain Management

B5 i EHEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of 45-46
the supply chain.

—RIRE EEHEENRERESRAROBR

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 46, 50

B5.1 B DWHERRE -

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 46, 50
number of suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

B5.2 M EAEAMERNED - EERTEABOIRHE
BEE  ARMEARITRERTE -

B5:3 Description of practices used to identify environmental 39-42
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B5.3 it AR BRI e PRI Rt @R R A1 H] - A K AE
BT MBS X

B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally

preferable products and services when selecting
suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B5.4 HilEREHERRREESZBRFRERMRBHOED -
A RBBAMITRERTA -
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

B6 Product Responsibility

B6 EmE{E
General Disclosure Information on: 21, 33, 36
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.
— MR FAMRHEERNRENREE LS  BE  REEIL
BEEARFER T ER
(@ BX: &k
(b) BTFTHETABEARZENHBERZNADINER
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to The issue is irrelevant to
recalls for safety and health reasons. the Group’s operating
businesses.
B6.1 EEHACEZXEMBETRL2EEEEAMARNKYN ZFBEEENESEEERS -
A
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RIE #HERERRE

Aspects, General
Disclosure and KPIs
BHE - —RKIFERKPI

B6.2

B6.2

B6.3

B6.3

B6.4

B6.4

B6.5

B6.5

Description
it

Number of products and service-related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BEERRNERNLRENRFBEAREH L -

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

ROl R M RE A EE S B -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

Rt EERERTFMEMOWRER

Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, and how they are implemented and monitored.
i E B EERMRE RFLBECR - AREERITRER
JE e

Page/Remark
BR B

33

36

The Group was not involved
in any recall procedures.

B AH R EYARFF o
36

BIREERERAR 2024 FEHeE
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

B7 Anti-corruption

B7 RE’S
General Disclosure Information on: 21,35
(@ the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
—MEE BRANT ILBRRS - B3R - BRGRF ROEEREY ¢
(@ BX: X
(b) BTFHBEITABERZENHEEERZRAGINER
B7.1 During the Year, the Group did not have any concluded

legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
itself or its employees.

B7.1 RAFE  AEETREFME A S RESRLIEES
BWESFHRARMY -

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- 35
blowing procedures, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

B7.2 M SEE R R BRZT - ARBRARITRERT L -

B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to 32, 53
directors and staff.

B7.3 HimMEFEREIRHENREFE -
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Aspects, General

Disclosure and KPIs Description Page/Remark
BE  —REERKPI it BR B

B8 Community Investment

B8t ER &
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the This issue is not material
needs of the communities where the issuer operates based on the results of
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the stakeholder engagement. The
communities’ interests. Group will continue to adjust
the management approach
and information disclosure
approach in accordance with
the materiality principle.
—MEE FAMR2ENER  EETREEMEHENTE X REMNZHEEE2ENER
WHERHEETEB GBREE Bt &N - ILRETNEE - NREEFE
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. ﬁ*ﬁ%iﬁgi%fﬂ%%ﬁ
B8.1 A - ARERREE
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area.
B8.2 EZIHBABAER -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND OTHER INFORMATION

TXE

ARk EHE R

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance
standard and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and
quality of disclosure in order to enhance the value for the Company’s
shareholders (the “Shareholder(s)”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to the
maintenance of good corporate governance practices and procedures.
The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of the Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its
business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and
accountability.

During the Year, the Company has applied the principles of good
corporate governance and complied with the code provisions as
set out in Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix C1 (the “CG Code”) to the Rule Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) except for the deviation from
code provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code. Code provision C.2.1
of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Mr. Cheong Ka Wo (“Mr. Cheong”) is currently
the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company. In view of
the fact that Mr. Cheong has been assuming the responsibilities in
the overall management and supervision of the daily operations of the
Group since the establishment of Kento Engineering Company Limited
(a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) in January 2011,
the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Cheong taking up both roles for effective management and operations.
Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation from such code
provision is appropriate. Notwithstanding such deviation, the Board is
of the view that this management structure is effective for the Group’s
operations and sufficient checks and balances are in place.

PURPOSE, VALUES AND STRATEGY

The Company is committed to ensuring that its business is conducted
in accordance with its culture and values in maintaining our integrity,
humility, teamwork, continuity and high ethical standards to achieve its
long-term objective which is a sustainable development for the Group.
By doing so, the Company believes that shareholder value will be
maximised in the long term and that its employees, those with whom it
does business and the communities in which it operates will all benefit.
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The Company has always committed to promote the principles of good
corporate governance. These principles highlight effective board, good
management and internal control systems and its transparency and
accountability. The Board considers such commitment balanced the
interests of the stakeholders and the Group as a whole. The Company
ensures that the corporate culture and expected behaviours are
clearly communicated to everyone in the Group. Appropriate policies
and procedures are in place to promote and reinforce the need for
employees and others who deal with the Company to act with honesty
and integrity.

Having regard to the corporate culture reflected in the policies and
practices of the Company, the Board is satisfied that the purpose,
values and strategic directions of the Company are aligned with its
culture.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries
of all the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed that he/she has
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

Pursuant to paragraph B.13 of the Model Code, the Directors have
also requested any employee of the Company or director or employee
of a subsidiary of the Company who, because of his/her office or
employment in the Company or a subsidiary of the Company, is likely to
possess inside information in relation to the securities of the Company,
not to deal in securities of the Company when he/she would be
prohibited from dealing by the Model Code as if he/she were a Director.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board has adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”). Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, in considering
the declaration and payment of dividends, the Board shall maintain
adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capital requirements
and future business growth and take into account the following factors
of the Group:

a. the Group’s results of operations;

b.  cash flows and financial conditions;

c.  operating and capital requirements;

d. statutory and regulatory restrictions;

e. future prospects (if any); and

f. any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.
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The Board has discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the
Shareholders, subject to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”) and the applicable laws and regulations.
The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular
amount for any given period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership of the Company, and is
responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing the
operation and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved
for its decision or consideration matters covering overall group strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim
results, recommendations on Directors’ appointment or re-appointment,
approval of major capital transactions and other significant operational
and financial matters. The management was delegated the authority
and responsibility by the Board for the daily management of the Group.
In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board committees. Further details of these committees are set out in
this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
report, the Board consists of five Directors including two executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leong Kam Leng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Kit
Mr. Law Lap Tak
Ms. Lee Sze Ming

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board
composition is formed to ensure strong independence exists across
the Board. The composition of the Board reflects the balanced skills
and experience for effective leadership. The biographical information
of the Directors is set out on pages 89 to 93 under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.
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Directors’ Training

According to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contributions
to the board remains informed and relevant.

All Directors namely, Mr. Cheong Ka Wo, Mr. Leong Kam Leng,
Mr. Chan Ming Kit, Mr. Law Lap Tak and Ms. Lee Sze Ming, have
participated in continuous professional development and provided to

the Company a record of trainings they received for the Year.

The individual training record of each Director received for the Year is
summarised below:

Name of Directors

Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Leong Kam Leng 2R
Chan Ming Kit BoR &% £
Law Lap Tak EWNTE
Lee Sze Ming TEE

REN(EEFREENTE)

EE5ET

RIFEEERTRIM TR EC1.415
PRESRDERBEXER  BERE
MEMBE R BREEENEERTH
EEgFHENNER -

EREF(AREMEE REREE K
BETE  BMERERFERLL)HE
DHEPBEHEEERR  WOAARRRHRKSE
RAFEADEZNEIRE -

DR ATESEEDELHEAL
6%

Attending
seminars/reading
materials
relevant to the

director’s duties
HE
ERESHEN
mEE EEYE

NSNS S

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the responsibilities
between the chairman and the chief executive officer to be segregated.

Mr. Cheong is currently the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of the fact that Mr. Cheong has been assuming the
responsibilities in the overall management and supervision of the daily
operations of the Group since the establishment of Kento Engineering
in January 2011, the Board believes that it is in the best interest
of the Group to have Mr. Cheong taking up both roles for effective
management and operations. Therefore, the Directors consider that the
deviation from such code provision is appropriate. Code provision C.2.7
of the CG Code requires that the Chairman should at least annually
hold meetings with the independent non-executive Directors without
the other executive Directors present. During the Year and up to the
date of this report, Mr. Cheong held two meetings with the independent
non- executive Directors without the presence of the other executive
Director.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term and they are also subject to the retirement by rotation at least once
every three years in accordance with the Articles of Association. Further
details of the term of appointment of the independent non- executive
Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Report

— Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters Of Appointment” of this
report.

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high
caliber, with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of
legal, accounting and finance. With their experience gained from various
sectors, they provide strong support towards the effective discharge
of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent non-
executive Director gave a confirmation of his/her independence to the
Company, and the Company confirms it considers each of them is
independent for the purpose of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board and Management

The Board is primarily responsible for establishing the overall strategies
of the Group, setting objectives and business development plans,
assuming responsibility of corporate governance and monitoring the
performance of senior management.

The management, under the leadership of the executive Directors,
is responsible for implementing the strategies and plans established
by the Board and reporting on the Group’s operations to the Board
on a regular basis to ensure effective performance of the Board’s
responsibilities.

All the Directors have separate and independent access to the Group’s
senior management to fulfill their duties and they have been provided
with monthly updates on the Group’s performance and financial
position to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties.
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The Board has also established mechanisms to ensure independent
views are available to the Board, including providing the Directors with
sufficient resources to perform its duties and shall seek, at the Group’s
expense, independent professional advice to assist the relevant
Directors to discharge their duties if necessary.

The Board shall at all times comprise at least three independent non-
executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the Board, such
that there is always a strong element of independence on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

All the Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
are given equal opportunity and channels to communicate and express
their views to the Board and have separate and independent access to
the management of the Group in order to make informed decisions. The
chairman of the Board will hold meetings with the independent non-
executive Directors without the involvement of other Directors at least
annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by written resolutions. Such Director will be
required to declare his/her interests before the meeting and abstain
from voting and not counted towards the quorum on the relevant
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose
associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the Board
meeting.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the mechanisms are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided to
the Board during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in
the Board and is committed to enhancing quality of opportunity in all
aspects of its business. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration against a range of objective criteria, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The Company
will also take into consideration its own business model and specific
needs from time to time in determining the optimal composition of the
Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity
Policy to the nomination committee of the Board (the “Nomination
Committee”). The Nomination Committee will make recommendations
to the Board on measurable objectives for achieving diversity of
the Board (if applicable) and monitor the progress on achieving the
objectives.

With regard to gender diversity on the Board, the Company recognizes
the particular importance of gender diversity. As at 31 December 2024,
the Board comprises one female Director and four male Directors.
Hence, we consider gender diversity has been achieved based on
the current female representation of approximately 20% at the Board
level and targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation. The Company will ensure that gender diversity is taken
into account when recruiting staff members of mid to senior level and
ensure that sufficient resources are available for providing appropriate
trainings and career development to develop a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board and maintain gender diversity.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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Board Meetings

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular board meetings to provide
all Directors with an opportunity to attend and propose matters to be
discussed in the meeting agenda. Agendas and accompanying papers
shall be sent not less than 3 days before the date of Board meeting
to ensure that the Directors are given sufficient time to review the
documents.

The Company held 5 Board meetings and one annual general meeting
during the Year. The attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings and annual general meeting held during the Year is set out
below:

EEEER
EXEEEBFANEFTEHRRTELN
REZREH MBEEFEEPTEZNAEA
ARERBTHELTOREE2BES
EERESARSEFEZARREZH/N
CEFFRETIWMNEE - RERMEXHE
REFEERAPZAMEL =ZRERES
NHERESAERBEMBEXM -

REEE  AATRBTTSRESEE S
R—RBEBFAS - TRABIGEELRE
RAFEBRTEERRRRREEFEA
B

Attendance/Number of
meeting held

HEBITEBRE

Annual

Board general

meetings meeting

Name of Directors EEgEE RRETKE

Executive Directors HITES

Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) R (X EHFEEHNITE) 5/5 11

Leong Kam Leng 2K 5/5 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Chan Ming Kit PeR £4 15 5/5 11

Law Lap Tak EINE 5/5 1/1

Lee Sze Ming FRIS 5/5 11

Board minutes are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are open for inspection by the Directors.
Every Board member is entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

Appropriate insurance cover has been arranged by the Company in
respect of relevant actions against its Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates.

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference on 21 August 2020 which currently consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Lee Sze Ming
(as chairlady), Mr. Chan Ming Kit and Mr. Law Lap Tak. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Nomination Committee include,
but are not limited to, (a) reviewing the structure, size and composition
and diversity (including the skills, knowledge, educational background,
experience and diversity) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (b) identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board in the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; and (c) assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In considering the composition of the Board, the Board diversity will
been considered from a number of perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, industry
experience, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a director in accordance
with the Board Diversity Policy. The Company will also take into account
factors relating to its own business model and specific needs from time
to time. The ultimate decision is based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year to
review the structure, composition, size and diversity of the Board with
reference to the Board Diversity Policy and nomination policy and make
relevant recommendation to the Board, which included the re-election
of retiring Directors.

Name of Members

Lee Sze Ming (Chairlady) FRIE(FE)
Chan Ming Kit PR &8 4
Law Lap Tak ENE

RAFE REZEERTT -REH 8
tE2EEERZTEBRRRERABEE
MEZSNRE Al RERZTL X
MEESFEHABEBES ETeiEER
RIFE=E -

Attendance/
Number of

meeting held
HE BT
BEAH

11
11
11

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee with written terms
of reference on 21 August 2020 (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Ming Kit (as chairman), Mr. Law Lap Tak and Ms.
Lee Sze Ming. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
is currently made available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website.

Terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the model described in code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG
Code in its terms of reference.

The primary duties and roles of the Remuneration Committee include,
but not limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for the remuneration of all of Directors and senior
management personnel and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing the policy on such remuneration;
(b) making recommendations to the Board on the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management; (c)
reviewing and approving management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (d) reviewing
and/or approving matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules; and (e) making recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year to
discuss and consider the remuneration policy of the Directors and the
senior management of the Group.

Name of Members

Chan Ming Kit (Chairman) PREGHEE (/)
Law Lap Tak EE
Lee Sze Ming BIE

RAFE FHEEERTTMAERE &
Ltk EEAEEEEREREEREN
FENBUR -

Attendance/
Number of

meeting held
B RBIT
BRRH

2/2
2/2
2/2

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management
depend on their respective contractual terms under the employment
agreements, if any, and is fixed by the Board with reference to the
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee taking into account
their skills and knowledge, their job responsibilities and level of their
involvement in the Group’s affairs, the performance of the Group
and the prevailing market conditions. Details of the remuneration of
the Directors and senior management are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Senior Management’s Remuneration

The senior management’s remuneration for the Year falls within the
following bands:

ENEELaREEBNIeBARTHSE
SEREBEAHBZENENEKR (WE) Kk
HEFSEL2EHFNZESNER Tk
WEREMAE  TEBRE2EAERS
BHREE AEENRAMATTTIREE
E-BEEREAETEENTIFBEHRGS
BRI EE10 -

= A E EE r A
AEEERERBOFHN T U THE -

Number of

individuals

A

Nil to MOP1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 2 97T 4
MOP1,000,001 to MOP2,000,000 1,000,001 2 P97 = 2,000,000 2 97T -
MOP2,000,001 and above 2,000,001 8970 & A £ -

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Corporate Governance and Other Information

TRESREMER

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference on 21 August 2020 and
currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Law Lap Tak (as chairman), Mr. Chan Ming Kit and Ms. Lee Sze
Ming. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but
not limited to, (a) making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and any questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b) monitoring
integrity of financial statements and annual report and accounts, half-
year report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and
reviewing significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
and (c) reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditors regularly to discuss
any area of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee shall review
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board. The
Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements in
the review of the Company’s interim and annual report.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held 4 meetings to

° review the independence and the works done by the auditor;

° review the financial reporting system, compliance procedure,
internal control and risk management system, effectiveness of
the internal audit function and procedures and appointment of
external auditor; and

o review the annual results and annual report for the year ended 31
December 2023 and the interim results and interim report for the
six months ended 30 June 2024.
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Name of Members

Law Lap Tak (Chairman) BWNELE (FFE)
Lee Se Ming PR &4 14 55 A&
Chan Ming Kit EY

Attendance/
Number of

meeting held
HE BT
BERH

4/4
4/4
4/4

The Audit Committee noted the existing risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and also noted that review of the same
will be carried out annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The corporate governance functions are performed by the Board.

The corporate governance functions are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements, to
oversee the Company’s orientation program for new Director, to review
and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors, and to review the Company’s disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board has performed the above mentioned
corporate governance functions.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditors are set out below:

EHEERCAEAEENBEAREE
ROBEZHES  ATARRERREERE
EHATIRET -

EERMAE

TEERABESHEESRET -

CREABESEREENARALEKE
AHERRERABTEEERTARAE
MERREERT  EEARRHTESR
TTEVRATIZEFIRTE - BEREFEERER
EEENRIIRSESERR  #E  EH
MEZXERAREEREFENTATIRS
BFEM (A  UERBEHARARERE
SARE R

WAEE  EFRCRET LREEERBEE -

BB &

RAFE BN/ ENARBZEEMOME
ol

Fee paid/

payable

et ENEH

MOP’000

FHEFI T

Audit services EZRTE 1,690

Non-audit services* IEBEIZARTES* 76

Total: e - 1,766
* The non-audit services mainly include tax compliance services. * IEBZRFE EZBIEHRB A BRE -
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Chan Yat Lui as its Company
Secretary. Mr. Chan Yat Lui has confirmed that for the Year, he
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
The biography of Mr. Chan Yat Lui is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company is held each year and at the place as
may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an
annual general meeting, is called an extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an EGM

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the purpose of
making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit a
written requisition signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room
4801, 48/F, Hopewell Centre, No. 183 Queen’s Road, East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Such EGM shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of the
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
convene a physical meeting, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting enquiries by Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the attention
of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong Room 4801, 48/F, Hopewell Centre, No. 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong by post or by email to ylchan@kento.com.mo.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a Director for
election as a Director, the Shareholder must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 4801, 48/F, Hopewell Centre, No. 183 Queen’s Road,
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Notice must state clearly the name, the contact information of the
Shareholder and his/her/their shareholding, the full name of the person
proposed for election as a Director, including the person’s biographical
details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, and be signed
by the Shareholder concerned (other than the person to be proposed).
The Notice must also be accompanied by a letter of consent (the
“Letter”) signed by the person proposed to be elected on his/her
willingness to be elected as a Director.

The period for lodgment of the Notice and the Letter will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice by the Company of
the general meeting appointed for election of Directors and end no later
than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The Notice will be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Nomination Committee and the
Board to consider to include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting proposing such person to be elected as a Director.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals
at general meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman lIslands for Shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request
the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.
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VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of Shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll except where the Chairman,
in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
As such, all the resolutions to be set out in the notice of the AGM will be
voted by poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular
communication and reasonable disclosure of information to its
Shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the Shareholders in the
following manner:

° Delivery of annual and interim reports to all Shareholders;

° Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on
the Stock Exchange website, and issue of other announcements
and Shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules; and

o The general meetings of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and Shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION
POLICY

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders an
the Company has established various communication channels with
Shareholders, including general meeting, annual results and interim
results, annual and interim reports, announcements and circulars and
investor conferences. Shareholders may also make enquires with
the Company through other channels mentioned above, and provide
comments and recommendations to the Directors or members of
management at any time. Upon receipt of written enquiries from
Shareholders, the Company will respond to the Shareholders as soon
as possible. In addition, the Company updates its website from time to
time to keep the Shareholders updated of its recent development. In
view of the above, the Company considers the implementation of the
Shareholders’ communication policy during the Year was effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the
financial performance and cash flows of the Group for that year. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the Year, the Board
has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
internal control systems of the Group are designed to assist in the
achievement of the Group’s goals, to safeguard the Group’s assets
and to ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records and
compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities)
of risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, who
oversees management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control systems, and management
has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee (and the Board)
on the effectiveness of these systems for the Year. A review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems is
conducted by the Board at least annually.

Risk management

The Group has already reviewed its risk management framework and
processes and has implemented relevant measures resulting from
this exercise that aim to enhance its framework and processes. In
particular, the Group has developed, approved and implemented a risk
management system, which is defined and supported by its endorsed
risk management policy. The system comprises the following phases:

o Identification: |dentify ownership of risks, business objectives and
risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

° Analysis: Analyze the existing control, likelihood and consequence
of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the residual
risks.

Senior management of the Group is responsible for the annual risk
reporting process. Independent external consultant assists various
members of the senior management to review and assess risks and
discuss solutions to address material internal control defects. Risks
are compiled, and ratings are assigned and mitigation plans are
documented. The risk assessment is reviewed by certain members of
the senior management and presented to the Audit Committee and the
Board for their review.
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Internal control measures

The internal control system of the Group covers its major business
aspects such as revenue management, expenditure management,
human resources and payroll, cash and treasury management, financial
reporting, compliance and information technology. The internal control
measures are supervised by management team including executive
Directors. The management team is responsible to identify risks and
internal control deficiencies, evaluate the internal control system of the
Group from time to time and implementing additional control measures.
Once any internal control deficiency was identified, the management
would take immediate steps to notify the Audit Committee the findings
and implement relevant internal control measures with assistance of
any independent consulting firm as appropriate. Results of the internal
assessments, internal surveys and routine inspections would be
reported to the Audit Committee of the Board, which is responsible to
review the financial information and supervise the financial reporting
system and internal controls system of the Group.

Internal audit function

The Group does not establish a standalone internal audit department,
however, the Board has put in place adequate measures to perform the
internal control review at different aspects of the Group.

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material controls
such as financial, operational and compliance controls for the Year. In
addition, the Board has appointed an internal control review consultant
to review the internal control systems of the Group on an on-going
basis. Such review shall be conducted annually. The Board considered
that the risk management and internal control systems of the Group for
the Year were effective and adequate.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information, the
Group has adopted a policy on disclosure of inside information with the
aim to ensure the insiders are abided by the confidentiality requirement
and are fulfilling the disclosure obligation of the inside information.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLE-
BLOWING POLICIES

The Group has always adhered to high standards of business ethics,
preventing corruption through corporate governance, internal controls
and risk management, and is subject to ongoing oversight by the Board
of Directors. To ensure that all employees of the Group are able to
maintain a good sense of integrity at work, the Group has formulated
the “Employee Handbook” and the “Code of Ethics” that sets out
guidelines in areas such as anti-corruption and anti-bribery.

The Group also has a whistle-blowing policy that serves the purpose
of establishing whistle-blowing procedures for employees and other
relevant external parties of our Group, in order to report and escalate
any suspicious misconducts. In accordance with the policy, the
Group protects all whistle-blowers from any kind of retaliation. All the
information provided by the whistle-blowers will be strictly confidential.

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

The Group insists on the principle of fairness and voluntariness in
recruitment, and does not impose any restrictive requirements on
gender, ethnicity, nationality and region. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group had 52 employees in total.

The indicators on employees of the Group, including senior
management, as of 31 December 2024, are set out below:

Indicator
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As of 31 December 2024
BZE2024512A31H
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Male employees EHET
Female employees ZHEET
Employees aged under 30 0mATET
Employees aged from 30 to 50 30E50mE T
Employees aged over 50 50m A LB T

Percentage

of total

Number of number of
persons employees
HETHE

N Aok

41 79%

11 21%

4 8%

31 60%

17 32%
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The Group encourages gender diversity across its workplace. However,
taking into account the nature of the E&M industry where E&M roles
are generally taken up by male, such industry nature may make
achieving gender diversity across the workforce more challenging for
the Group. The Group is committed to maintain at least the current
proportion of female employees. We are committed to fostering a
positive working culture and striving to build an inclusive, equitable
and diverse workplace. The workforce is evaluated by performance
on its professional contribution, without regard to their differences or
similarities. To achieve diversity at workforce level (including senior
management), the Group has put in place appropriate recruitment
and selection practices such that a diverse range of candidates are
considered. The Group has also established talent management
and training programs to provide career development guidance and
promotion opportunities to develop a broad and diverse pool of skilled
and experienced employees.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company amend the Articles of Association and
adopted the third amended and restated Articles of Association, in
order to (among others) update and bring the Articles of Association in
line with the latest regulatory requirements pursuant to the Proposals
to Expand the Paperless Listing Regime and Other Rule Amendments
published by the Stock Exchange in June 2023 and the relevant
amendments to the Listing Rules of which came into effect on 31
December 2023 mandating the electronic dissemination of corporate
communications by listed issuers to their securities holders. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 27 March
2024 and the circular of the Company dated 25 April 2024.

The latest Articles of Association is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESREREEERBRERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheong Ka Wo, aged 45, was appointed as a Director in October
2017 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 17 April 2020.
Mr. Cheong is the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
and a director of all of the Company’s subsidiaries. He is responsible for
the overall management and supervision of the daily operations of the
Group. Mr. Cheong is entitled to a remuneration of MOP3,060,000 per
annum.

Mr. Cheong has over 20 years of experience in the electrical engineering
industry. Prior to establishing Kento Engineering in January 2011,
Mr. Cheong worked as an electrical engineer in various construction
contractors in Macau, where he commenced his career in the electrical
and engineering industry, including his role as an engineer at CAA City
Planning & Engineering Consultants Ltd. (¥ S RS2 TIREK A
R 2 7]), a company engaged primarily in urban planning, transportation
planning, urban renewal studies and cultural heritage studies from
October 2001 to January 2003, where he was responsible for E&M
system designs. From January 2003 to June 2004, Mr. Cheong was an
electrical engineer of Consolidated Engineering Co., Ltd. (& T2 AR
‘A 7/]), a company experienced in electrical and mechanical engineering
projects involving installation and maintenance of air conditioning
systems and electrical engineering works, where he was responsible
for management of electrical and ELV system engineering works. He
was also a technician of Institute for Tourism Studies (& F9 ik 17 £2p3), a
public education institute under the Macau government from July 2004
during which he was responsible for the management of engineering
works. Mr. Cheong then resumed his role at Consolidated Engineering
Co., Ltd. as an electrical engineer from May 2006 to December 2009,
where he was then responsible for management of electrical and ELV
system engineering works. From January to December 2010, he served
as an electrical engineer at San Ka U Engineering Co., Ltd. (¥73# L%
A BR A Fl), a company primarily engaged in electrical and mechanical
engineering projects where he was responsible for the management of
electrical and ELV system engineering works.

Mr. Cheong obtained his bachelor degree in electromechanical
engineering from the University of Macau (Universidade de Macau) in
July 2001.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREEERERE

Mr. Leong Kam Leng, aged 53, was appointed as a Director in
October 2017 and was re-designated as an executive Director on
17 April 2020. Mr. Leong is also a director of all of the Company’s
subsidiaries. He is responsible for the strategic planning of the Group.
Mr. Leong is entitled to a remuneration of MOP600,000 per annum.

Mr. Leong has over 30 years of experience in the electrical engineering
and maintenance industry. Prior to establishing Kento Engineering
in January 2011, Mr. Leong worked as a manager in Decoracao E
Engenharia Decol, Limitada (3 F| & E W & 5 B R 2 7)) in Macau, a
company engaged in the sale and distribution of air conditioners, from
January 1991 to December 2010, where he was responsible for on-site
management and operations. Mr. Leong has also accumulated more
than 20 years of management and operational experiences in the E&M
engineering services industry under several business ventures in Macau
which he has founded.

Mr. Leong obtained a diploma on electromechanical techniques of
industrial maintenance secondary technical — professional education
(curso de técnicas de electromecanica de manutencéo industrial
do ensino secundario complementar Técnico — profissional) from
the Luso-Chinese School of Technical Professional (Escola Luso —
Chinesa Técnico — Profissional) in June 2007. Mr. Leong obtained a
professional diploma in interior design from the University of Macau
in July 2008 and a certificate in construction safety supervisor
(Encarregado de seguranca na construcao civil) from the University of
Macau in February 2011.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREEERERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Law Lap Tak, aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non- executive Director on 21 August 2020 and he is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$144,000 per annum. Mr. Law held various positions
in an international accounting firm from July 1992 to October 1999
where he last served as a manager, responsible for audit planning and
control as well as supervision of audit staff. He joined China Rare Earth
Holdings Limited (previously named Yixing Xinwei Holdings Limited),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 769) which is primarily engaged in the manufacture and sales of
rare earth and refractory products, as financial controller and company
secretary from November 1999 to August 2023, where he supervises
the overall financial management including corporate accounting,
financial reporting and regulatory compliance of the company where he
has been familiar with relevant law and regulations of a listed company
as well as the obligations and duties imposed upon directors.

Mr. Law earned his bachelor degree in business administration in
accounting from Hong Kong Baptist University (previously known as
the Hong Kong Baptist College) in December 1992. He is currently a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(previously known as Hong Kong Society of Accountants) (since
November 1996), a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants (since July 2001) and a member of the Institute of Public
Accountants in Australia (since March 2013).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREEERERE

Ms. Lee Sze Ming, aged 52, was appointed as an independent
non- executive Director on 21 August 2020 and she is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$144,000 per annum. Ms. Lee has over 20 years of
experience in legal profession specialising in employees’ compensation,
personal injuries, property damage and conveyancing. Ms. Lee
joined Messrs. Lau Chan & Ko, a law firm in Hong Kong specialising
in property and conveyancing from August 2000 to September 2006
where she last served as a partner being responsible for handling
property related transactions, employees’ compensations and personal
injuries claims. She was also a partner of Messrs. Fongs (previously
known as Messrs. Fong Chan & Lee), a law firm in Hong Kong
specialising in conveyancing from September 2006 to February 2009
where she was responsible for handling property related transactions,
employees’ compensations and personal injuries claims. Ms. Lee is
currently a partner of Messrs. Rita Law & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong,
having joined the firm in March 2009 where she is responsible for
overseeing the litigation department, dealing with high value personal
injuries and employees’ compensation cases and providing legal advice
to the general public, and has developed an understanding of the legal
framework and areas of concerns of the construction industry.

Ms. Lee obtained her bachelor of laws and postgraduate certificate
in laws from The University of Hong Kong in December 1994 and
September 1995, respectively. Since December 1997 she was admitted
as a solicitor in Hong Kong.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREEERERE

Mr. Chan Ming Kit, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non- executive Director on 21 August 2020 and he is entitled to a
remuneration of HK$144,000 per annum. Mr. Chan has over 20 years
of experience in auditing, corporate finance and business valuation.
Starting from January 1993, Mr. Chan took on various roles at different
professional accounting firms, including as senior manager at various
offices in Hong Kong and the PRC of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
PricewaterhouseCoopers and Ernst & Young where he was responsible
for auditing works and financial services for clients. From October 2006,
Mr. Chan took his role as director of business and financial valuations
department at Sallmanns, a corporate valuation and consultancy firm
where he was responsible for development of business valuation
services. He later assumed the position as director of Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited (previously known
as Jones Lang LaSalle Sallmanns Limited) in February 2008, upon
the merger of Sallmanns with Jones Lang LaSalle Limited, and was
responsible for the development of business valuation services and has
experience in providing valuation and consultancy advices to clients
including development consultancy, feasibility studies, market studies,
cost analysis and business valuations for various industries, including
the E&M industry, which enables him to understand and evaluate the
various factors, including costs, timeframe, materials, design and
methods, that are relevant to the E&M industry. Mr. Chan is now serving
as regional director of Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and
Advisory Limited, being part of Jones Lang LaSalle, a Fortune 500
company and a leading professional services firm specialising in real
estate and investment management.

Mr. Chan is currently a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since December 2010 and a fellow
member of CPA Australia since May 2009. He was also elected as a
professional member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and
elected as a fellow member of Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors
in February 2014 and July 2016, respectively.

Mr. Chan gained his bachelor of commerce from the University of
Melbourne in Australia in December 1992.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREEERERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chang Hong Lun, aged 42, is the head of heating, ventilation
and air-conditioning (“HVAC”) department of the Company since
March 2012 and is primarily responsible for management of HVAC
systems works. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chang Hong Lun was
an air condition engineer at an experienced electrical and mechanical
engineering company, Consolidated Engineering Co. Ltd. (5 [E T
£ A BR A 7)), from October 2006 to December 2009, where he was
responsible for management of air-conditioning system. From January
2010 to October 2011, Mr. Chang Hong Lun also served as an air
condition engineer at San Ka U Engineering Co. Ltd. (T3 # T A
fR A B]), a company primarily engaged in electrical and mechanical
engineering projects where he was responsible for management of air-
conditioning system. Mr. Chang Hong Lun obtained his bachelor’s
degree in electrical and electronic engineering from the University of
Macau (Universidade de Macau) in October 2006. Mr. Chang Hong Lun
has become a registered professional engineer (“RPE”) in Macau since
2009.

Mr. Tai Hoi Tun, aged 43, is the head of electrical department of
the Company since December 2011 and is primarily responsible for
management of LV systems works and ELV systems works. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Tai was a mechanical engineer at Shun
Heng Construction Company Ltd. (i £ 7 52 5 fR A §]), a company
mainly involve in civil construction where he was responsible for
management of sub- contractors from May 2005 to August 2007.
From September 2007 to December 2009, Mr. Tai was an assistant
engineer in an electrical and mechanical engineering company,
Consolidated Engineering Co. Ltd. (5 [& T AR A7), where he was
responsible for management of electrical works. From January 2010
to December 2011, Mr. Tai also served as an E&M engineer at San Ka
U Engineering Co. Ltd. (373 # L2 B R A 7l), a company primarily
engaged in electrical and mechanical engineering projects where he
was responsible for management of E&M works. Mr. Tai obtained his
bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering and automation from the
South China University of Technology in July 2004. Mr. Tai has become
a RPE in Macau since 2008.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREEERERE

Ms. Wong, Joyce Kit Sin, aged 42, was appointed as the Group
finance controller on 25 November 2019 and is responsible for finance
management of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wong held
various positions since April 2006 at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, a
professional accounting firm, where she left as a senior auditor in May
2008. From May 2008 to June 2011, Ms. Wong was an internal auditor
of Galaxy Casino, S. A. (31 #2 4435 i% 17 /5 'R 2 7)), a subsidiary owned
as to 90% by Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (stock code: 27),
where her job duties include plan and budget audit assignments and
developing audit programs. Ms. Wong then joined Orient Town Project
Management Ltd. (23818 B B 12 A R A 7)), a property development
company from July 2010 to May 2011 as assistance finance manager,
where she was responsible for treasury management, preparation of
financial reports and monitoring accounting control. She was a finance
manager at Ponte 16 Group, a hotel-casino resort held as to 51% by
SJM Holdings Limited (stock code: 880) and as to 49% by Success
Universe Group Limited (E /23R 3k B IR 2 @) (stock code: 487), from
June 2011 to October 2015, where she was responsible for preparation
of financial statements and analysis report for hotel operations. From
October 2015 to September 2018, Ms. Wong was the finance manager
of China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. (7 B /& /N3 R G R A 7))
(stock code: 688), where she was responsible for overseeing all finance
matters relating to property development projects and hotel business
in Macau of the company. From December 2018 to August 2019, she
served various positions with her last position as assistant financial
controller of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited (28 i B &
EIEAR B BR A F) (stock code: 711), where she was responsible for
formulating financial models and tax planning for the new projects of
the company. Ms. Wong obtained her bachelor’s degree in business
administration in accounting from the University of Hawai’i at Manoa in
August 2005. She was admitted as a member of the CPA Australia in
June 2016 and the Certified ESG Planner in 2023.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAREEERERE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yat Lui, aged 41, was appointed as the company secretary
on 17 April 2020 and is responsible for company secretarial matters
of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan served various
positions with his last position being audit supervisor at Yiu Cho Yan
Certified Public Accountant from June 2005 to May 2011. From June
2011 to November 2014, Mr. Chan was a senior accountant in the
corporate recovery department in KLC Kennic Lui & Co. Certified Public
Accountants and was subsequently promoted to manager in the same
firm. From January 2015 to December 2015, he returned to Yiu Cho Yan
Certified Public Accountant serving as an audit manager. He served as
the financial controller and company secretary of Super Strong Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 8262) from January 2016, and resigned from the
position of company secretary and financial controller on 26 September
2017 and on 13 October 2017, respectively. He was also a company
secretary of Shanghai Realway Capital Assets Management Co., Ltd.,
a company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 1835), from November 2018 to October 2019.
Since November 2019, Mr. Chan has been appointed as a director of
Frank Forensic and Corporate Recovery Limited, a company primarily
engaged in providing financial investigations, forensic accounting,
expert witness and litigation support, corporate rescue and recovery,
and internal compliance advisory services where he is responsible for
leading company liquidations, personal bankruptcy cases, forensic
investigations, receiverships and compliance advisory engagements.
Mr. Chan has been a certified public accountant of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since February 2010, and is
currently a certified tax adviser (non-practising) of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan obtained an associate degree in business
administration in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in
November 2005.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERE

The Directors are pleased to present this report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in provision of E&M engineering services works in
Macau.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group for the Year and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development, as well as a discussion
on the Group’s performance during the Year are provided in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 8. No
important event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
Year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks involved in the Group’s operations, many of
which are beyond the Group’s control, including but not limited to those
relating to its business and the industry. Some of the major risks facing
the Group include the following:

o the gross profit margin depends on the tender price of each
project, which in turn is based on the estimated costs and time to
be involved

° the Company requires various registrations, licenses and
certifications to operate the Group’s business in Macau

° personal injuries, property damages or fatal accidents may occur
at work sites

° any changes in environmental requirements may increase the
Group’s compliance costs

° the Group operates in a competitive E&M services industry
Detailed discussion of the risk factors is set out in the section headed

“Risk Factors” in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 August 2020
(the “Prospectus”).
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Environment, Social and Governance Report of the Company for
the Year contained the information required under Appendix C2 to the
Listing Rules is set out on pages 16 to 67 of this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT
LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, as far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operation of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that employees are one of the significant
assets of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring
environment to employees and emphasis the personal development of
its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers,
subcontractors and suppliers. The Group aims to continue providing
quality services to its customers and establishing cooperation strategy
with its subcontractors and suppliers.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 121.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: Nil).

As at 31 December 2024, there was no arrangement under which a
Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group did not make any charitable donation (2023:
Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
FOR THE AGM

The 2025 annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) is
scheduled to be held on Friday, 23 May 2025. For determining the
entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Friday, 16 May 2025 to Friday, 23 May
2025 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of the Shares
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
all transfer forms accompanied by relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday,
15 May 2025.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately MOP85.8
million.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital during the Year are set
out in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.
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RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any
of the Company’s listed securities (including sale of treasury shares)
during the Year. As at 31 December 2024, the Company does not hold
any treasury shares.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the Directors
as required by section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the laws of Hong Kong) when this Directors’ Report prepared by
the Directors is approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong).

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 200 of this report.

DIRECTORS

The list of Directors for the Year and up to the date of this report is set
out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ka Wo (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Leong Kam Leng

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Kit
Mr. Law Lap Tak
Ms. Lee Sze Ming
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Pursuant to Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to the retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.
Further, pursuant to Article 83 of the Articles of Association, any person
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company after his appointment, and shall be eligible for
re-election. Accordingly, Mr. Law Lap Tak and Ms. Lee Sze Ming shall
retire from office at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has renewed his service agreement with
the Company, and each of the INEDs has renewed his/her appointment
letter with the Company, for a term of three years commencing from
11 September 2023 which can be terminated by either party with three
months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM
has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of independence for the purpose of
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company confirms it considers that
all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or their associates to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or debentures of,
the Company or in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement and
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
or an entity connected with such Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly subsisted at 31 December 2024 or at any
time during the Year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

During the Year, no contract of significance was entered into between
the Group, or any of its subsidiaries, and any of the Company’s
controlling shareholders or any of their subsidiaries, nor was there any
contract of significance for the provision of services to the Group by a
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or in existence during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements do not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are not subject to any
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND EERNRHOKRIEBERGDHE
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND mRKE
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests or short positions of the R2024%12A31H EFEN AR R HZSIT
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying B A8 R ARG HEMAE LB (FERE
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation B %FIE 571 E &5 RS G0 ((H5 R
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, & &4l ]) FHXV D) B - BRAR () & B4
Cap. 571 (Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were notified to the FEF @ HERIEES L EEMEXVEET
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of & 8% &BZB AN & A R 7] K B 22 AT &9 #E 25 5004
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are & (B IEH HR B EH M B E EHI 0% Z K
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which X & EE AEANERIKAE) » SR
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in &% & B & (517 55 352 1578 B B R RZ 16 BT
the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the i Z M AER AR » AR EIZESTEIR

Model Code, are set out below: TFERESIORBEFINT ¢
Interest in Shares of the Company RARABRMGD P HER
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of Director Nature of interest shares (Note 1) interest Wete 2
FRER
EEsA HEmtE RGEE #EY BN H D #E2
Mr. Cheong (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 198,450,000 (L) 39.7%
R&EE (BY7F 3) ZEHEE R
Mr. Leong (Note 4) Interest of controlled corporation 51,597,000 (L) 10.3%
R (Bt 4) REHEE S
Notes: Btat -

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the Company. (1) [LIKREXBBATRBDFAENTAE -

(2)  Based on 500,000,000 shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December  (2) X 20244 12 A 31 H A& 2 7] £500,000,000

2024. IRE BITRAD -

(3  Macau E&M Group Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Cheong. By virtue of the (3) HIHMEEEERAAMAREEZEHE -
SFO, Mr. Cheong is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company R 75 BRG] - oR S8 £ W AREROR T
held by Macau E&M Group Limited. Mr. Cheong, an executive Director, is also BEEEERAFAFANARARGTHE
the sole director of Macau E&M Group Limited. Bm T ESFREENARIKEERS

RARME—ES -

(4  Macau E&M Assets Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Leong. By virtue of the (4) RIHMEELEEAR QMR EEZEHE -

SFO, Mr. Leong is deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held R 5 R BRG] REEWARERORIT
by Macau E&M Assets Limited. Mr. Leong, an executive Director, is also the WMELEEERARNFAENETRARRORES
sole director of Macau E&M Assets Limited. Bm T ESREENARRIKEEES

RARME—ES -

BIKEERERAR 2024FEHeE 103
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, so far as the Directors or chief executive of
the Company were aware of, persons (other than Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Name of substantial shareholder Nature of interest

FERRES

BEME

Macau E&M Group Limited
FIMEEEBR AR

Beneficial owner

BEREREA

Ms. Lo Chao leng (Note 3)
BHORZ L (F7E3)

Interest of spouse

Fo Bt as

Macau E&M Assets Limited
BB EEERAA

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Ms. Leong Kam In (Note 4)
Rt (Hat4)

Interest of spouse

[ e

Mr. Tam Chi Wai (“Mr. Tam”) (Note 5)

EEEEE(TERE]D (HiE5) RESEEE R

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

One Wesco Inc.

Ms. Law Ming Chu (Note 6)
‘AR T (K17F6)

Interest of spouse

[N
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Interest of controlled corporation

B EXATIEEIN - R2024% 12 A31H -
BEARNBEERETZTHRAEBRARF
SRR EE (E& AEHFMBEKAE
XVED) Wk tn - MHERG REEZFEEIR
BELSRBEEFIEXVIEET RS EBAEH
CARNE MNEZTNEDSOAE (BIERE
FHERBERINEBEXEEREER
BAEBENEZLAR)  RAELNIRE
BERBAEGEHIEIS2EFEH S DM E
WmEAR - SREIZETAZANG A RE K&
B X AT s SRR ©

ETERRRNR A R EBERAD
THEERAR

R2024F 12 A31H MARAEZEFTHES
ITERABFATA  THAL (RRRIEEH &
STHABBRIN) RAR R B =k A8 B R
DHRBREREESNEEEMEXVIIEL
NEIDIARMANRFEEOERSIAE -
RIREES M EEDIE 3365 Em AN T
FENECMATRSMOERSAR

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding
shares Note 7) interest Wete 2
FRER

BOBE 20 BHE D w2
198,450,000 (L) 39.7%
198,450,000 (L) 39.7%
51,597,000 (L) 10.3%
51,597,000 (L) 10.3%
77,637,000 (L) 15.5%
77,637,000 (L) 15.5%
77,637,000 (L) 15.5%
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Name of substantial shareholder

FERRESR

Mr. Tsang Yuen Wai, Samuel
(“Mr. Tsang”) (Note 7)

SIRE £ - Samuel ([ B k4 ])
(Htex7)

Bridge Capital Limited

Ms. Li Sau Fun (Note 8)
FHERLL(HES)

Nature of interest

BEtE

SIESEE RS
Beneficial owner
EEMEA A

Interest of spouse
fic B 1 &

Interest of controlled corporation

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding
shares Note 1) interest (ete 2
KR

R EE @2 B E D #we2
47,316,000 (L) 9.5%
47,316,000 (L) 9.5%
47,316,000 (L) 9.5%

Notes:

()
@)

©

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Based on 500,000,000 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2024.

Ms. Lo Chao leng is the spouse of Mr. Cheong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lo
Chao leng is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Cheong is
interested.

Ms. Leong Kam In is the spouse of Mr. Leong. By virtue of the SFO, Ms.
Leong Kam In is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Leong is
interested.

One Wesco Inc. is wholly-owned by Mr. Tam. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tam is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by One Wesco Inc..

Ms. Law Ming Chu is the spouse of Mr. Tam. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Law
Ming Chu is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Tam is
interested.

Bridge Capital Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Tsang. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
Tsang is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Bridge Capital Limited.

Ms. Li Sau Fun is the spouse of Mr. Tsang. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Li Sau
Fun is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Tsang is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware of any interests
or short positions owned by any persons (other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company) in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO as at 31 December 2024.

B EXCRTIEE A
i%l?ﬂ

FRILIEZBALTRENHHOTE -

£ 72024 % 12 A 31 H 500,000,000 % & 2 17
Betn o

BMRZ L RREENES - RIFE S R
EEG - BMORZ T RIRERREEHE R
mE B R A

ﬁﬂutﬁi%%?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ RiRES L
EEA REBXIHBRERRELEHERE
mE B R A

One Wesco Inc. BB £ 2 EHA - RIEEF
K ERE &G - 38 5t £ #18 E 7 One Wesco Inc.
BENRDTHEEER -

AR T RBREENES - REBEFES R
EEG BRRZ I RREREEERERE
mE B A

Bridge Capital Limited A 2 5 =2 & A 1R
BEF LS 54 %R (ER Bridge
Capital Limited 8 B % (0 F ¥ A = o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 August 2020, the Company adopted the Share Option Scheme
which became effective upon the Listing and is subject to the
requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. As of the date
of this report, no option has been granted, agreed to be granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Details of the Share Option Scheme

(1)

(2

(3)

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions that the eligible participants had
or may have made to the Group. The Share Option Scheme will
provide the eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal
stake in the Company with the view to motivate the eligible
participants to optimise their performance efficiency for the benefit
of the Group and attract and retain or otherwise maintain an on-
going business relationship with the eligible participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of
the Group.

Participants

The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to any
full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, any directors (including non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers, distributors and such other
persons who in the sole opinion of the Board will contribute or
have contributed to the Company or any of its subsidiaries to
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with
paragraph (6) below.

The maximum number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and under any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue on the date of
the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(being 11 September 2020, the “Listing Date”), i.e. 50,000,000
Shares, representing 10% of the total number of Shares in issue
as at the date of this report.
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4)

(5)

The maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of the Shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue as at the date of
grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall
be subject to approval by the Shareholders in accordance with
the requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Acceptance and exercise of options and duration of
the Share Option Scheme

An option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
by the grantee and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer
document constituting acceptances of the options duly signed by
the grantee, together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof, is
received by the Company on or before the relevant acceptance
date.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the
expiry of 10 years from that date. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised more
than 10 years after it has been granted. No option may be granted
more than 10 years after the Listing Date. Subject to earlier
termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board,
the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from the Listing Date.

As at the date of this report, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is approximately 5 years and 6 months.

(4)

(5)
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(6)

(7

8

Subscription price for shares

Subject to adjustment under the Share Option Scheme, the
subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as
the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, but shall
not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
on the date of grant, which must be a day on which the Stock
Exchange is open for the business of dealing in securities; (i) the
average of the official closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal
value of a Share.

Number of options available for grant

The number of options available for grant under the Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 were
50,000,000 and 50,000,000, respectively.

Performance target

A grantee may be required to achieve any performance targets
as the Board may then specify in the grant before any options
granted under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus under the section headed “Statutory
and general information — D. Other information — 1. Share
Option Scheme”.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Macau E&M Group Limited, Macau E&M Assets Limited, Mr. Cheong
and Mr. Leong (together, the “Covenantors”) have entered into the
deed of non-competition on 21 August 2020 in favour of the Company
(for itself and as trustee for each of its subsidiaries from time to
time), under which each of the Covenantors has jointly and severally
undertaken to the Company that he/it shall not, and shall procure that
none of their respective close associates (other than members of the
Group) shall, during the period that (a) the Shares remain listed on the
Stock Exchange; and (b) either the Covenantors and their respective
close associates (other than members of the Group), individually or
jointly, are entitled to exercise, or control the exercise of, not less than
30% of the voting power at general meetings of the Company and not
less than 10% of the voting power from the substantial Shareholders; or
(c) any of the Covenantors or their respective close associates remains
as a director of any member of the Group, directly or indirectly, either
on their own account, in conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any
person, firm or company, among other things, carry on, participate or be
interested, engaged or otherwise involved in or acquire or hold (in each
case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether
for profit, reward or otherwise) any business that directly or indirectly be
involved in or any business that directly or indirectly competes, or may
compete, with the Group’s business or undertaking and any other new
business which the Group may undertake from time to time after the
Listing Date.

The Covenantors have confirmed to the Company their compliance with
the non-competition undertakings during the Year. The independent
non-executive Directors had reviewed the status of compliance and
the confirmation provided by each of the Covenantors as part of the
annual review process. On the basis that: (i) the Company has received
the confirmations from all of them regarding the undertakings; (ii) there
was no competing business reported by them; and (jii) there was no
particular situation rendering the full compliance of the undertakings
being questionable, the independent non-executive Directors are of the
view that the undertakings have been complied with and been enforced
by the Company in accordance with the terms.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors or their respective close associates is or was
interested in any business (apart from the Group’s business) that
competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business at any time during the Year and up
to the date of this report.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any disclosure obligation under Rules
13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this report, the Company is not
aware of any change in any of the information of the Directors required
to be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2)
since the last published interim report and up to the date of this report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No other equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the Year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2024 are set
out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has a bank mortgage borrowing

of MOP12.3 million related to the office premises acquisition on 1 July
2022.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the percentage of revenue attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 29.4% and 88.9% of the Group’s total revenue
respectively.

During the Year, the largest subcontractor and the five largest
subcontractors of the Group accounted for approximately 38.8% and
87.0% of the total cost of sales of the Group respectively.

During the Year, the largest supplier and the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 39.6% and 63.5% of the total cost
of sales of the Group respectively.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group enters into employment contracts with its employees in
accordance with the applicable labour laws of Hong Kong and Macau.
The remuneration package that is offered to employees generally
includes salary, allowance, benefit-in-kind, and fringe benefits including
medical insurance and contributions to pension funds and bonus.
The Group also operates the Share Option Scheme to incentivise its
employees, details of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” on pages 106 to 108 of this report. In general, the
Group determines salaries of its employees based on each employee’s
qualification, position and seniority. The Group has, from time to time,
provided training to its employees on various aspects including but
not limited to project management, occupational health and safety,
environmental protection, and accounting and finance. The Group
believes that the quality and safety of its staff play a crucial role in its
operations. It emphasises the importance of health and safety with
its employees and staff members, and provides on-site training to
its workers. All its workers are required to obtain certified training on
occupational health and safety before entering the construction sites.
As the Group is a main contractor for some projects, it applies for work
permits for its non- Macau resident workers on a project-by-project
basis.
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As at 31 December 2024, the Group had 49 (31 December 2023: 65)
employees in Macau, comprising 30 Macau residents and 19 non-
Macau residents (31 December 2023: 47 Macau residents and 18 non-
Macau residents). During the Year, the Group recorded staff costs of
MOP22.8 million (previous year: MOP23.7 million).

During the Year, the total contributions paid or payable by the Group
to the defined contribution retirement benefits schemes were charged
to the profit or loss, at rates specified in the rules of scheme. At 31
December 2024 and 2023, there were no forfeited contributions which
arose upon employees leaving the schemes. Forfeited contributions
(by employers on behalf of employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in such contributions) may not be used by the employer to
reduce the existing level of contributions.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for Year are set out in Note
10 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors waived his/her emoluments or has agreed to
waive his/her emoluments for the Year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date
of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 21 August 2020 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary
duties and roles of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited
to, (@) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
any questions of its resignation or dismissal; (b) monitoring integrity
of financial statements and annual report and accounts, half- year
report and, if prepared for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing
significant financial reporting judgments contained in them; and (c)
reviewing the financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group.
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The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Law Lap Tak (as chairman), Mr. Chan
Ming Kit and Ms. Lee Sze Ming. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

AUDITORS

There has been no change in the Company’s auditor since the Listing
Date. The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited
by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company for the subsequent year
is to be proposed at the AGM.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no important events affecting the Group that had occurred
after 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report.

By order of the Board

Macau E&M Holding Limited
Cheong Ka Wo

Chairman

Macau, 20 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % BLAT R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MACAU E&M HOLDING LIMITED
BOIMEERABRAF

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Macau E&M
Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 121 to 199, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

REETEE

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

BRIRSHHKE

We identified the revenue recognition of on-going
electrical and mechanical engineering works as a key
audit matter due to significant management judgements
and estimation are required in the determination of the
total outcome of the contracting service contracts as
well as the progress towards complete satisfaction of
contracting service.
HRERERAEETABRBANNEERLABRSE
2 5 THEE RS B R HET A5 BB R E
TTHOREIRRRZR REREFFE-

The Group provides services for electrical and
mechanical engineering works. The Group has
recognised revenue from electrical and mechanical
engineering works of MOP89,700,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2024 as disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.
EEERHEBRETIERE - EEECHEAEE2024F
12 A31 H I Er# E T 12 Y45/ 89,700,000)2FF 7T -
AHBEN G B RRMTES -

BRETSEE

ARETFRERBERMANERHE R
HABGEMBRRNEBIRREENSE
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REAEEE TN AR

Our procedures in relation to the revenue recognition for
on-going electrical and mechanical engineering contracts
included:
HPETHHRETRES
B

MRS FERM T AR

° Understanding and evaluating the relevant
key controls over recognition of revenue from
construction contracts;

o THREHAERIIREAQWEHEREBRIEEE

° Assessing the Group’s revenue recognition
practices to determine if they are in accordance
with the relevant accounting standards;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

REETEE

As set out in notes 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognises contract revenue of
electrical and mechanical engineering works according
to the management’s judgements and estimation of
the total outcome of the contracting service contracts
as well as the progress towards complete satisfaction
of contracting service which is measured based on
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation.
B EVBREMTIRGME X EXERBEERRE
HABRBEANNBEREREABRG 27 THEERE
HHHIE R RARELREGNNRE AP TITEE
7 EEERMERANETCHMNENS HaR AR
HENETNBRALRE -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEREFTHROMERN

On a sample basis,

AR AR & RE

o Agreeing projects contract sum to signed contracts
and variation orders;
o HEHFIWEGAREFESHEEESGNSHE:

° Assessing the reasonableness of the estimates used
by the management in arriving at the total budget
cost, agreed the estimates to supporting documents
and performing review of on-going projects;

e FMEEREEEENAEEKARAMGARESIE
18 5E 3 SR S KR B TR IR B T R BI RO (A ET

° Comparing the actual costs incurred during the year
to the supporting documents of subcontractors,
suppliers and direct labour to ensure the validity and
accuracy of the costs;

e HBFARAERKAESEE HEBIEESIHNE
B EATEL B - DARER AR 0 8 2001 I R e 1

o Visiting the construction sites and interviewing the
project managers, or tracing to final accounts of the
construction projects to understand the completion
status of the relevant construction project; and

e EERBRFEME WHIERLPEHA FEHEEE
BNEERENTHREFZEEENTIBER &

° Evaluating the reasonableness of progress towards
complete satisfaction of construction contracts to
test the accuracy of revenue recognition for the year.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards as issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% AT 3R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion
on the group financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3 A% A 3R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Man Ka Lai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEBEBEREMEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
NOTES MOP’000 MOP’000
K e FEFIT FEPIT
Revenue W %= 5 92,052 128,283
Cost of services PR 7% A, AR (84,831) (120,899)
Gross profit EF 7,221 7,384
Other income E A 6 5,092 3,805
Impairment losses under expected EHEEEERA T2
credit loss model, net BB EFEE 7 (547) (112)
Administrative expenses TTBRS (14,038) (14,861)
Finance costs B & B R 8 (193) (19)
Loss before tax B AIEE (2,465) (3,803)
Income tax (expense) credit Frs®i (AX) R 11 (25) 44
Loss and total comprehensive FEBEMZEMX
expense for the year FEkE) 9 (2,490) (3,759)
Basic loss per share (MOP cents) BRREREBE CRFIL) 13 (0.50) (0.75)

BIREERERAR 2024 FEHeE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE M BRI R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2024
202412 A31H

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHFI T FELI T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEkE 14 36,968 38,051
Right-of-use assets EHREEE 15 75 177
Deposits and receivables & M EWGRIA 17 99 -
37,142 38,228

Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BHEE 16 30,155 49,264
Trade and other receivables B 5 NH b EWFRIA 17 29,518 30,383
Pledged bank deposits AR ITER 18 43 42
Short-term bank deposits RHEIRITIF R 18 41,630 27,025
Cash and cash equivalents BehIReEEY 18 99,930 114,732
201,276 221,446
Current liabilities REBAE

Contract liabilities AHEE 19 088 2,310
Trade payables and accruals B S EMNFIENETER 20 22,063 38,884
Lease liabilities HEAR 21 54 102
Bank borrowing RITIE 22 546 516
Tax liabilities HIEAG 31 34
23,682 41,846
Net current assets RBEEZE 177,594 179,600

Non-current liabilities FkRBAE
Bank borrowing RITIEK 22 11,755 12,304
Lease liabilities HEAaR 21 24 77
11,779 12,381
Net assets BEFE 202,957 205,447

Capital and reserves EXRFHE
Share capital A&z 23 5,150 5,150
Reserves ] 197,807 200,297
Total equity EREEE 202,957 205,447

The consolidated financial statements on pages 121 to 199 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20
March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by:

F121 2199 BEMER A B T5 3R K B 722025 4
3A20BEEES L ENRETIZE  WH T
PIZEEREREE

CHEONG Ka Wo LEONG Kam Leng

R E A REW
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

Share
capital

TN

Share
premium
R4 E
MOP’000
FRFIT

MOP’000
TRFIT

Legal
reserves
EEE
MOP’000
FRFIT

(Note 1)
(Hrez1)  (MiaE2)

(A

Other
reserves
HithfE
MOP’000
FREFIT

(Note 2)

Retained
earnings
REZF
MOP’000
FRFT

Total
Azt
MOP’000
FRFIT

At 1 January 2023 720231 A1H 5,150 111,487 30 (35,509) 133,618 214,776
Loss and total comprehensive FABBRRZARIAE
expense for the year - - - - (3,759 (3,759
Dividends paid (note 12) RS (B 12) - - - - (5,570) (5,570)
At 31 December 2023 202312 A31H 5,150 111,487 30 (35,509) 124,289 205,447
Loss and total comprehensive FRNBBLZEMAZESE
expense for the year - - - - (2,490) (2,490)
At 31 December 2024 202412 A31H 5,150 111,487 30 (35,509) 121,799 202,957
Note 1:  In accordance with provision of the Macau Commercial Code, the subsidiary A7t 1 :  RBIEIRPIE K - FORPIRRIFTHR R
incorporated in Macau Special Administrative Region (“Macau”) is required (MR FMKRIHMBRRESFER
to transfer a minimum of 25% of the profit after taxation each year to the REBFNNRL2B5%EEE A TFRHE &
legal reserve until the balance meets 50% of its registered capital. The ERESRET AT MEARNS0% & 1E - 3
reserve is not distributable to shareholders. HETA DR TRE -
Note 2:  Other reserves represent the difference between the carrying amount ~ Aa72 : HibEERBER 2017412 A4B AEE

MOP60,000 of total equity of Kento Engineering Co. Ltd (“Kento”) satisfied
by the way of issue of shares by the Company for acquisition of Kento
by Macau E&M Company Limited, pursuant to the reorganisation which
was completed on 4 December 2017 in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

RRFBRORE BB E R DERAR (B
KA EmmsEAMES AR R AT
BN EMEEIRERAR ([#E])
BREI{E 60,0002 P T AR BRI REZRE
RARIKERENESE -

BIREERERAR 2024 FEHeE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SERETRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

2024
2024 &£

MOP’000

FHEFIT

2023
2023 F
MOP’000
FRFIT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEE
Loss before tax B 15 Al BT 48 (2,465) (3,803)
Adjustments for: BUATIHB fEH %
Finance costs BB KA 193 19
Depreciation of LTHEEMTE
— Property, plant and equipment o ERN S 1,082 1,094
— Right-of-use assets — EREEE 102 348
Loss on disposal on property, HEWE  WEREEBE
plant and equipment 1 1
Impairment losses under expected EHEEBEEXT ZRERE
credit loss model, net FEE 547 112
Gain arising from early termination RATKRIEHEE SN EEN WS
on lease contract - 9)
Bank interest income RITH BUA (5,026) (3,648)
Operating cash flows before LEEREPINKERERE
movements in working capital (5,566) (5,886)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 K E b e W IE R > 1,248 30,510
Decrease (increase) in contract assets AHEERD (3Em) 18,598 (7,333)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables B o REMNFIBERETER CRL)Em
and accruals (16,821) 8,953
(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities aHaE o) B (1,322) 2,310
Net cash (used in) generated from operations  #&4 (FTF) FT13IR & F 5 (3,863) 28,554
Income tax paid BTSSR (49) (944)
NET CASH (USED IN) REFZHFARA) MRS FHE
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (3,912) 27,610
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REER
Interest received B W F B 4,529 3,536
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWHE  BERZE - (2,695)
Redemption of short-term bank deposits FEEEHRITER 112,151 173,759
Placement of short-term bank deposits GTARHBIRITER (126,756) (102,334)
Redemption of pledged bank deposits BRI EEIRITFN 68 4,871
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEASERRITER (69) (3,298)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM REEE (FTA)MBREFE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (10,077) 73,839
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

2024
2024 &

MOP’000
FRPIT

2023
2023 F
MOP’000
FRFIT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES METED
Repayment of lease liabilities EEMEaR (101) (352)
Interest paid on lease liabilities BENHEEAERR (7) ®)
Dividend paid to shareholders ERREZRE - (5,570)
Repayment of bank borrowing EERITER (519) (503)
Interest paid for bank borrowing BATIRITEKFE (389) (387)
Subsidy from government on mortgage bank BT 5t 1% 18 $7 17 2 2R &0 4 B

borrowing 203 376
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METHTAREFEHE

ACTIVITIES (813) (6,444)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN ReERRESEEY OHD) ENFHE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (14,802) 95,005
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUNRERASEEY

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 114,732 19,727
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRRERASEEY

AT END OF THE YEAR
Represented by cash and cash equivalents NRERBFEEEFEMR7T 99,930 114,732

BIREERERAR 2024 FEHeE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BmERM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —BER

Macau E&M Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company and registered
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman lIslands on 24 October 2017. Its registered office is
located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal
place of business is located at Avenida da Concoérdia, nos 175-
181, Edificio Industrial Wang Fu, 10 Andar B e D, Macau.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries (together with the Company referred
to as the “Group”) are engaged in the provision of electrical and
mechanical (“E&M”) engineering works and maintenance and
repair services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Macanese
Pataca (“MOP”), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS

New and amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“lIASB”) for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 January 2024 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback
Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Amendments to IAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements
and IFRS 7

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to IFRS Accounting Standards in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

RAFE  AEEERRUGEUHE
HEBHXER T ABEER ST ERE
Ee ((ERETEIBES ) BAR
2024F1 A1 HAKRK A EEFEH
] 568 Il A4 3K 9 5 7T B B B 75 ik 5 E B
GEERRIBRTA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE IS R M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

128

STAN DARDS (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to IAS

1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year.

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at
least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

o specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current should be based on rights that are in existence at the
end of the reporting period. Specifically, the classification
should not be affected by management intentions or
expectations to settle the liability within 12 months.

o clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a transfer
of cash, goods or services, or the entity’s own equity
instruments to the counterparty. If a liability has terms
that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in
its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s own equity
instruments, these terms do not affect its classification as
current or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (continued)

New and amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”) and Amendments to IAS

1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date which are conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the 2022 Amendments specifically clarify that
only covenants that an entity is required to comply with on or
before the end of the reporting period affect the entity’s right
to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting date, even if compliance with the covenant is
assessed only after the reporting date. The 2022 Amendments
also specify that covenants with which an entity must comply
after the reporting date (i.e. future covenants) do not affect the
classification of a liability as current or non-current at the reporting
date. However, if the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability
is subject to the entity complying with covenants within twelve
months after the reporting period, an entity discloses information
that enables users of financial statements to understand the risk
of the liabilities becoming repayable within twelve months after
the reporting period. This would include information about the
covenants, the carrying amount of related liabilities and facts
and circumstances, if any, that indicate that the entity may have
difficulties complying with the covenants.

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group has
applied the new accounting policy to the classification of liability
as current or non-current retrospectively. The application of the
amendments in the current year had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture'

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

Amendments to IFRS 9 and Amendments to the Classification

IFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?®
Amendments to IFRS 9 and  Contracts Referencing Nature-
IFRS 7 dependent Electricity®
Amendments to IFRS Annual Improvements to IFRS
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards —
Volume 113
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in

Financial Statements*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027

Except for the new and amendments to IFRS Accounting
Standards mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all these new and amendments
to IFRS Accounting Standards will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO IFRS ACCOUNTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards in
issue but not yet effective (continuead)

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements,
which sets out requirements on presentation and disclosures
in financial statements, will replace IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements. This new IFRS Accounting Standard, while
carrying forward many of the requirements in IAS 1, introduces
new requirements to present specified categories and defined
subtotals in the statement of profit or loss; provide disclosures on
management-defined performance measures in the notes to the
financial statements and improve aggregation and disaggregation
of information to be disclosed in the financial statements. In
addition, some IAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to IAS 8 and
IFRS 7. Minor amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and
IAS 33 Earnings per Share are also made.

IFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with
early application permitted. The application of the new standard
is expected to affect the presentation of the statement of profit or
loss and disclosures in the future financial statements. The Group
is in the process of assessing the detailed impact of IFRS 18 on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by the IASB. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is considered
material if such information is reasonably expected to
influence decisions made by primary users. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

3.2 Material accounting policy information

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and the entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEMBHRERRREKRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SATHRERNNEREE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ()

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EABIBEXER @

(continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current
income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from loss before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of each reporting period.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEMBHRERRREKRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SATHRERNNEREE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ()

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EABIBEXER @

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEMBHRERRREKRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SATHRERNNEREE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL (&

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 ERGHBERER #)

136

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of property and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generated unit for impairment, corporates
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating units
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@ cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. "EMBBEBRREKRS
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL THERERNEREE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL (%)

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EABIBEXER @
(continued)
Cash and cash equivalents ReERASEEY

REAMBIRRAKRENNZRE R
ReEEMERRE:

@ He HEEFHERIR
EHER TEREIEE
REMEBHEBEARTE
HEBRLTERZRITHE
K

by BREFEY EeEEH
CBERIMEA/=EAX
) FRERERAEHM
BERcABESR QH
TRZERBMUERE -
ﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ
TARE - MIEBRKENL

HEa B -
@I HE
EEEEERNATIEASNEXH
TZ’JE AloEREsmEELS
RMEE-

CHEERSRABEVSIEATF
ﬁ%% BEFANEENESE
WK TERR SN - H ) 2018 15 B BR B
%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%égﬁé
AR AT E o MIIARERE - UREE
RBRTeMEERCRBEES
MEER RGBSR RFTA
cEREESCHBENATFER
HEeEBEERESBRABNLQTEE
IR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. ZEMBHRERRREKRE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SATHRERNNEREE
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL ()

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 ERGHBERER 1)

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including deposits, other receivables, interest receivables,
trade receivables, pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents) and contract
assets which are subject to impairment assessment under
IFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessments are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

()  Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(i)  Definition of default
For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(o) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data and forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables and contract
assets are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward-looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and contract assets
(continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
and other receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

S
> |

EI,'I:

Eop
HE
I S

X
=

3 %
2 bl
i >t
fi

(&

3.2 EXRETBERER #)

SRIA#E)
ETHEE (8)

(&

vy BEHMEEBEBRFTERER
(%)
DHBEEETE B
VA B £ 35 45 B 4H R BR 0
BEHRERUEERRER -

AEEERABMATRE
TRAMNEBEESREME
WHRIBARAKEE) MR
EER B N EREIRE
Wat sk BB XEBER
BRERERAEEAE -

HIFER B A E

Wt EEWRBRERELZ AR
MNERH eREECERA
AEECHERNEREERGR
Z A B E R K B HREE T 5
—EE AEMEEMRKLE

7
s ©

AR HERIRE HROANGT B S At
BER AEREEEDKNE

WHREEMZHHZENBEA
HERR

2024 FEHE

FTHEIERAR AR

147



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables and bank
borrowing) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

HE

2024F 12 A31 HILFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3.2 the management of the Group is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Construction contracts in respect of E&M
engineering works

The Group reviews and revises the estimated total costs to
complete the satisfaction of electrical and mechanical engineering
works and the margin of each project as the contract progresses.
Budgeted costs and margins are prepared by the management of
the Group on the basis of quotations from time to time provided
by the subcontractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management of the Group. In order to keep
the budget accurate and up-to-date, the management of the
Group conducts periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts
by comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual amounts
incurred. Such significant estimate may have impact on the profit
recognised in each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Construction contracts in respect of E&M
engineering works (continued)

Recognised amounts of revenue from electrical and mechanical
engineering contracts and related receivables reflect the
management’s best estimate of each contract’s outcome and
progress towards complete satisfaction, which are determined
on the basis of a number of estimates. This includes the
assessment of the profitability of on-going electrical and
mechanical engineering contracts. For more complex contracts
in particular, costs to complete and contract profitability are
subject to significant estimation uncertainty, the actual outcomes
in terms of total cost may be higher or lower than estimated
at the end of each reporting period, which would affect the
revenue and profit recognised in future years and adjustment
to the amounts recorded to date. The amount of revenue from
construction contracts in respect of electrical and mechanical
engineering works during the year ended 31 December 2024 is
MOP89,700,000 (2023: MOP124,738,000).

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
contract assets

Except for certain trade receivables and contract assets with
individual significant balances, which are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables and contract assets
are grouped based on internal credit ratings as groupings of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns. The internal credit
ratings are based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are
considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the contract assets, trade receivables and ECL
are disclosed in notes 16, 17 and 28b respectively.

At 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables (net of allowance for credit losses) of the Group
were MOP24,976,000 (2023: MOP27,805,000) (note 17). At 31
December 2024, the carrying amounts of contract assets (net of
allowance for credit losses) of the Group were MOP30,155,000
(2023: MOP49,264,000) (note 16).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5. Wz ko HER

INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue represents the amount received and
receivable for revenue arising on E&M engineering works and
maintenance and repair services.

AEEMRSERERETZARR
B RIS RRT W oy 2 W R B IKROR -

RERDBERRBEFEME AR A
MMITES (MAAKERE—2ENEB

For the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment, the executive directors of the Company, who are

also the directors of Kento Engineering Company Limited, the
sole operating subsidiary of the Group, being the chief operating
decision maker (“CODM?”), review the overall results and financial
position of the Group as a whole prepared based on accounting

ARABRETIRERABMNES A1
ZRERRE ((EREEBEREE)))F
BIRESMHEFFPAENENEE LS
ERABRAA SRR AN AEH

BRE MR -

policies stated in 5(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies.

At AEEES—EE K& E
WEZIZE— DB HE— P ARY
BER R $E°I4ETBZE§%_F§$EI
BEMABODT RESEMEHR
WEFRMRERTEZEERRENH
BL -

() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts () REEFEANKZZ
with customers Fiilay

Accordingly, the Group has only one single operating segment
and no further discrete financial information nor analysis of this
single segment is presented. No analysis of the Group’s assets
and liabilities is disclosed as such information is not regularly
provided to the CODM for review.

2023
20234

MOP’000 MOP’000
THFIT TRFIT

Revenue from construction contracts BESHWE

Electrical and mechanical engineering works HETE 89,700 124,738

Provision of services RHR%E

Maintenance and repair services 1R B M AE RS 2,352 3,545
92,052 128,283

Timing of revenue recognition KRR

Over time BE RF R HERS 92,052 128,283

BIREERERAR 2024FEHE 151



152

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(i

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies

Construction contracts

The Group provides electrical and mechanical engineering
works to customers. Such services are recognised as a
performance obligation satisfied over time as the Group
creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced.

Progress towards complete satisfaction is measured based
on input method, which is to recognise revenue on the
basis of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction
of a performance obligation (i.e. contract costs incurred
for work performed to date) relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation (i.e.
total estimated contract cost), that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.

For construction contracts that contain variable consideration
such as variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payment, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled using the most likely amount. The
estimated amount of variable consideration is included in
the construction contract only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(i

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers and revenue recognition policies
(continued)

Construction contracts (continued)

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the
same contract, is recognised over the period in which the
construction contracts are performed representing the
Group’s right to consideration for the services performed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance in achieving specified milestones. The contract
assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, are classified as contract assets, which ranges from
one to two years from the date of the practical completion
of the construction. The relevant amount of contract asset
is reclassified to trade receivables when the defect liability
period expires. The defect liability period serves as an
assurance that the construction services performed comply
with agreed upon specifications and such assurance cannot
be purchased separately.

When the Group receives upfront payments or cash
advances before construction activities commence, contract
liabilities will arise at the start of the relevant contracts, until
the revenue recognised on such relevant contracts exceeds
the amount of the cash advances.

Provision of services

The Group’s maintenance and repair services involve the
provision of services on the low voltage systems, heating,
ventilation and air-conditioning systems and/or extra low
voltage systems to customers.

The Group provides such services as a fixed-price contract,
with contract terms generally ranging from one year to three
years. Revenue from fixed price contracts for delivering
such services is recognised over time, when the customers
simultaneously receive and consume the benefits from the
Group’s performance. Such services are recognised using a
straight-line basis over the term of the contract.

5. kxR

DEER @)

{7] =) r’]ﬁ?ﬂﬁ’] = n/jé{F (?D
B‘%:. HMBERERNEITEESHOH
e i 2 73 A 52 [t P R 4 AR 7% W
RRENEN RARZSEN
BREAEBERRBLOZEKRETER
RER TAFE - -AHNEER
AZERNKABERTREREE
5 FE WA

P& W R [E] & 70 R B B B JE i AT
DERAMNEE  BREEETHN
FERET AHEF —EWF -

BHEENEARSBERNREEET
HERSEBERDBEER S RUK
B RIEEEH AR EER
BB R HERIEH —BIRE
MmzRETSEBRE -

BN B E R B 1R BT R

BNREREBREF  GHA8E

HREBEENRBRES BT

REESHNERN K HERRS
BREERIL -

=R

AEBENRE MEEREBRER
E)E'?E'rf BREERG KRBZ=
R HIBBEME RS

AR B L FERF TR E E B
REHNFE ManFEH RN
F—FE2=F - N BARBH
Bl E ERAHNERENEF R
BIAFEMARARNEEELNF
FE PR - BRRBREHF
HRIREREMER -

STHEBIZERARADT 2024FEHRSE

153



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE IS R M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5. Wz RkoHER @

(i) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) "HMEEFPENFGHE
performance obligation for contracts with NEE E’JB‘E%E%
customers

DEERBBHOEL CREKK
By RIERE) R 5B K
AU TR RS T

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) and the
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows:

At 31 December 2024 A2024F12H31H

154

—FR

Within one year

Electrical and
mechanical
engineering

works

IR
MOP’000
FRFIT

61,137

Maintenance
and repair
services
RER
#IEIRE
MOP’000
FEFIT

1,887

At 31 December 2023

M 2023412 A31H

Electrical and

mechanical Maintenance

engineering and repair

works services

rER

WE TR HAE IRTS

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRFIT TFEFIT

Within one year —F K 67,277 2,309
More than one year but not more than ~ —F A _H{B R{BB M E

two years - 1,859

67,277 4,168
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)
(iv) Geographical information

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from operations in
Macau and the Group’s non-current assets are all located in
Macau as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

5. Wz koHER ®

(iv) tEER

2024 4 2023412 A31H -
AEERWEEBRERRPID
X% MAEEMIERSEEY
Az PARPT o

Electrical and

mechanical Maintenance and

engineering works repair services

BEITRE REREERE
2024 2023 2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F 2024 2023 F
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FEF5 T FHEFI T FHEFIT TRFIT
Macau P 89,545 124,738 2,352 3,545
Sri Lanka HEER 155 - - -
89,700 124,738 2,352 3,545

(v) Information about major customers

Revenue from customers in respect of electrical and
mechanical engineering works and maintenance and repair
services of the year contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group are as follows:

Customer A =EPA
Customer B =FB
Customer C ®FC
Customer D ZFD
Customer E ZEFE
Customer F BFF
Customer G BFEG

v) FEEFER
R A EE BRI 10% 1)

ETRRRERBERBEP
MR ERE ST

2024 2023
2024 & 2023 F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHEFI T FEFIT
27,064 N/A 38 A *
20,035 38,035
12,792 N/A T~ A *
11,750 N/A A~ 3 A *
10,176 N/A A~ 3 A *
N/ATRER* 30,713
N/A 38 F * 15,213

*

The correspondence revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

- R ek 3 A R B 4 o s O L RR
T8 10% °
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ARE IS R M A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HUA

2024 2023
2024 &£ 2023 £

MOP’000 MOP’000
FTRFIT TRFIT

Bank interest income RITF B YA 5,026 3,648
Interest income from trade receivable B 5 W EIER WA 66 127
Others Efb - 30
5,092 3,805
7. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES UNDER 7. B EEREEXT 2
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS MODEL, BB B FEER
NET

2024 2023
2024 &£ 2023 £

MOP’000 MOP’000
FTRFIT TRFIT

Impairment losses recognised (reversed) on:  FtIA T B #ER (B @) B EEE

— Trade receivables — B S EWFIE 36 136
— Contract assets —ENEE 511 (24)
547 112

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 28b. EBRAEMT O BHNME28b ©
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REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. ME M

2024 2023
2024 &£ 2023 £

MOP’000 MOP’000
FTRFIT TRFIT

Interest on: LATEEBEZHE

— bank borrowing (note) — SBITER (K1) 186 11

— lease liabilities - HEaE 7 8

193 19
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2024, the interest on bank Kiat - E £ 2024F12 31 B It FF © iR 17
borrowing MOP389,000 (2023: MOP387,000) was net off by the fi& 5L 2.389,00032 9 T (2023 4 -
government subsidy MOP203,000 (2023: MOP376,000). 387,0005% P 7T ) LA AT # B) 203,000 2

P97t (2023 4 : 376,000/2FF7T) K 8

9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 9. FRNEIE

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F

MOP’000 MOP’000
FRFT  TRAT

Loss for the year has been arrived at FREBENER GTA)

after charging (crediting): TR IEBIERR
Directors’ emoluments (note 10(a)) EFh2 (M 10() 4,150 4,109
Other staff costs: HE T :

— Salaries and other allowances — ¥e R EAEEL 18,597 19,474

— Retirement benefit scheme — RIRENEEI 5K

contributions 88 88
22,835 23,671

Less: amounts included in cost of services  J& : 5+ A IRFEAANHY 0B (14,218) (15,704)
Total staff costs =B 8,617 7,967
Auditor’s remuneration A G e

— audit services — EZRTE 1,690 1,650

— non-audit services — EEZIRE 76 334
Depreciation of e

— Property, plant and equipment — W BERZE 1,082 1,004

— Right-of-use assets — (EREEE 102 348
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10.EENEEMS
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors (a) £
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RIBER ETHRBRES QARG
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong PEENEAFEESRERTTH
Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: ABHMOT :
Year ended 31 December 2024 BZ2024F12A31HLFE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fee allowances contributions Total

FER BIKEA
ik H iR s EIfR st
MoP’000 MoP’000 MoP’000 MoP’000
TRFIT TRFIx TRFIx TRFIx

Executive directors (Note a): BOTES (Hita)
Mr. Cheong Ka Wo REMEE
(“Mr. Cheong’) ([REE]) - 3,081 1 3,082
Mr. Leong Kam Leng REREE
("Mr. Leong’) ([REE]) - 620 1 621
- 3,701 2 3,703
Independent non-executive BUFRTES
directors (Note b): (Fiatb) -
Mr. Law Lap Tak BinELE 149 - - 149
Ms. Lee Sze Ming FRBLT 149 - - 149
Mr. Chan Ming Kit BReff S A 149 - - 149
447 - - 447
447 3,701 2 4,150
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REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10.EEREEME »
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors (continued) (@) EF @)
Year ended 31 December 2023 HZE2023F 12 A31 B ILFE

Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fee allowances  contributions Total

ek RIRER
ik H At 228 TR a5t
MOP’000 MOP000 MOP’000 MOP000
TR TEFIT TRFIT TRFIT

Executive directors (Note a): HITEE (Hita):
Mr. Cheong REAE - 3,060 1 3,061
Mr. Leong REE - 600 1 601
- 3,660 2 3,662
Independent non-executive BUFRTES
directors (Note b): (Fietb) -
Mr. Law Lap Tak EmErL 149 - - 149
Ms. Lee Sze Ming FRBERT 149 - - 149
Mr. Chan Ming Kit BReff S E 149 - - 149
447 - - 447
447 3,660 2 4,109
Notes: Hiat
(a)  The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their (a) FHMITEENMEARERE
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the BARRRAE B EBRER
Company and the Group. Mr. Cheong is also the chief executive BEE o REETARERR
of the Group for both years. MEFEZEERITE °
(b)  The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown (b) ERBURRTEZFAOME AR
above were for their services as directors of the Company for ERMEFEREERRARESAAN
both years. RHRBHME -
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

10.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year
include one (2023: one) executive director. The emoluments

10.EEREEME »

b) EE

AEERAFENRERSH
A LBE— % (20234F : —

of the remaining four (2023: four) individuals of the Group for B)RTES -AEBEHRTE
the year are as follows: (2023 4F : IO%) AAREFER
B&mT
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 &
MOP’000 MOP’000
FH#FI T FBFIT
Salaries and other allowances e M HE A ERL 3,168 2,934
Discretionary bonus (Note) BISTEAL (M at) 264 1,995
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR K48 K 5 24 7% 23 4
3,455 4,933

Note: The discretionary bonus is determined by reference to the duties
and responsibilities of the relevant individual within the Group and
the Group’s performance.

The number of highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

Kiat - BBTEA T2 ZE A S BN ER
ATHBBREFARREBD
RIMEE °

FINNATEEBWIEARAF
ExzeaFHMEEHBANT

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F

Nil to Hong Kong Dollar (“HKS$") £ % 1,000,000 7T ([38 5T 1)
1,000,000 4 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T = 1,500,000 % 7T - 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals (including directors and employees) as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. No director has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.
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REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 1. S%EZ(ER)

2024 2023
2024 &£ 2023 £

MOP’000 MOP’000
THRFIT TRFIT

Macau Complementary Tax RIS

Overprovision in prior year WS ERERE - (5)
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERENEN

Current tax charged BVER#R 18 31 34

Overprovision in prior years BT ERERE (6) (73)

25 (44)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and ARABIRFAEBESTMALIERES
registered in Hong Kong. The Cayman Islands tax is exempted, g -FHENENBERE  BEXAR
but the Company is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and it RAIEBMB B RS E FEH R
is qualified for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first BHOER - ERBRFEF2EES
HK$2 million of the assessable profits is taxed at 8.25% and the TR 8.25% F T - 4 T FE R B & A 1%
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. 16.5% @ HK
The Company’s operating subsidiary is subject to Macau A F) & B MY B A F]ZA Bt 2 ) 600,000
Complementary Tax at a rate of 12% on the assessable income B P9 7T B FE SR T WA LA 12% & B 32 4%
exceeding MOP600,000. No provision for Macau Complementary MRFIFTISE TR o ARE 22024 5
Tax has been provided as a subsidiary of the Company incurred K2023F 12 A31 B EFEARRAFH
loss for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023. —XWBARSESEE Rt ES

RFEFS MR R E R -
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

1. EHRMAX (BR) @

(continued)

Income tax expense (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as follows:

FAMBHAS (Ke) A E2ifAE%
N E A 2SR AR BT ATE R Y
BRUR

2024 2023
2024 2023 F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FHF T FRFIT
Loss before tax BB RIEE (2,465) (3,803)
Tax charge at Macau Complementary 1 12% R PI FTIS /I o 1 K
Tax rate of 12% ATEMRIES D (296) (456)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for ~ TR KIIFIER X 7 BT E
tax purposes 36 171
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBTRAZHIBZE
tax purpose (405) (416)
Tax losses not recognised KRR IEE R 710 751
Overprovision in prior years BT ERERE (6) (78)
Effect of different tax rate of entity EHEAM RDEE & E KERE R
operating in other jurisdiction TREBENTE (14) (16)
Income tax expense (credit) for the year FAFGERAR (ER) 25 (44)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately MOP12,179,000 (2023: MOP6,262,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of these tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised
tax losses are losses of approximately MOP5,917,000 that will
expire on or before 31 December 2027 and MOP6,262,000 will
expire on or before 31 December 2026 (2023: MOP6,262,000 will
expire on or before 31 December 2026).
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REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

12.DIVIDENDS

12. 1R &

2024 2023
2024 &£ 2023 £

MOP’000 MOP’000

Dividends for ordinary shareholders of the ~F AR A Ik &)

Company recognised as distribution AAREBRRIRE -

during the year:

FRFI T THFIT

2023 Final — Nil (2023: 2022 Final 2023 FARE — &
— HK1.08 cents (equivalent to (20234 : 20224
MOP1.11 cents)) FEF — 1.08 8L
(FBER1A1RFL)) - 5,570
- 5,570

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of
the Company during 2024, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period.

2024 4F 3 48 K 1 3 SR A2 7 %
BSR4 5 R DA N AR
BB AR -
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

13.LOSS PER SHARE 13.5RE#E
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of RATHEB AEESREAREBTIZ
the Company is based on the following data: N TEIEAE -

2024 2023
2024 &£ 2023 £

MOP’000 MOP’000
THRFIT TRFIT

Loss [ =]
Loss for the purpose of calculating basic & &% E A Fi8 1 E 18
loss per share (2,490) (8,759)
‘000
F iR
Number of shares RO EE
Weighted average number of ordinary TEOREAREED
shares for the purpose of calculating LB IE
basic loss per share 500,000 500,000
No diluted loss per share is presented for both years as there BRAMETEHECBITEELRR -
were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both years. AL 25 R EFE 2 S IREEEE -
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REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
premises

BOBH
MOP000

THFg 7
R[]

Leasehold
improvements
BENREE
MOP’000

Motor
vehicles
EL]
MOP'000

-

14.9% - BERRE

Office
equipment
BARE
MOP'000

Furniture and
fixtures
BARKE
MOP'000

-

Machinery Total
BR @t
MOP'000 MOP'000

-

cOST RA

At 1 January 2023 R20231 418 35,748 1,979 269 268 438 9 38,711
Additions RE - 2,656 - 39 - - 2,695
Disposal e - (1,430) (140) - (18) - (1,588)
At31 December2023 12023412 A31H 35,748 3,205 129 307 420 9 39,818
Disposal e - - - 87) (206) - (293)
At31December 2024 120244124318 35,748 3,205 129 220 214 9 39,525
DEPRECIATION ik

At 1 January 2023 20231418 - 1,431 180 235 405 9 2,260
Provided for the year ~ FE#fE 75 320 % 17 16 - 1,004
Eliminated on disposals 7! & B - (1,429) (140) - (18) - (1,587)
At31 December 2023 12023412318 715 322 66 252 403 9 1,767
Provided for the year ~ FE&#E 715 320 2 16 5 - 1,082
Eliminated on disposals 7 ! £ B - - - 87) (205) - (292)
At31 December2024 12024412 A31H 1,430 642 92 181 203 9 2,557
CARRYING VALUES  KEfE

At31December 2024 120244124318 34318 2,563 37 39 1 - 36,968
At31December 2023 120234124318 35,033 2,883 63 55 17 - 38,051

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, at the following rates

per annum:

Office premises

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Machinery

2%

Shorter of useful lives and
the term of the lease

20%
20%
20%
20%

M- BERERETINEGR A EM
FHANBRERIATEMNEINE -

N
HEWMERE

=
Y
RAREE
i
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

15.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15.FAEEE

Office
premises Warehouse Car parks Printers Total
N EE BEE T EN @t
MOP000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000  MOP’000
FHEFTT FHEFTT FHEFTT FHEFTT FHEFIT
COST B
At 1 January 2023 #®2023F1A1H 2,804 2,916 210 329 6,259
Additions NE - - 187 44 231
Disposal & (2,804) (2,916) (139) (329) (6,188)
At 31 December 2023 and  12023%F 12 A31H &
31 December 2024 202412 A31H - - 258 44 302
DEPRECIATION nE
At 1 January 2023 #®2023%F1A1H 2,152 2,781 184 327 5,444
Provided for the year FEEE 131 135 76 6 348
Eliminated on disposal FA HH 65 R 1 84 (2,283) (2,916) (139) (329) (5,667)
At 31 December 2023 %2023 12 A318 - - 121 4 125
Provided for the year FERE - - 93 9 102
At 31 December 2024 #2024 12 A31 8 - - 214 13 227
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2024 R2024F12 A31 8 - - 44 31 75
At 31 December 2023 2023%F12 A31H - - 137 40 177
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REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

15. 5 FAEEE @

2024 2023
2024 &£ 2023 £

1 5.R|GHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

MOP’000 MOP’000
THRFIT TRFIT

Expense relating to short-term leases B HIAE B MM 31 69
Total cash outflow for leases (Note a) MERS RN B (Hita) 139 429
Additions to right-of-use assets (Note b) RNEFREEE (Kitb) - 231
Notes: Hiat -

(@) Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease
liabilities and short-term leases. These amounts are presented in
operating or financing cash flows.

(b) Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases entered
and lease modification.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group leases car
parks and printers (2023: office premises, warehouse, car parks
and printers) for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed terms of one year to five years (2023: one year to five
years). Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain different terms and conditions. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for car parks.
At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the portfolio of short-term leases
is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-
term lease expense incurred during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, MOP231,000 of lease
liability is recognised with related right-of-use assets attributable
to new leases entered into. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used
as security for borrowing purposes. These are the major non-cash
lease related transactions for the previous year.

@ ZEBEEHERENEAS RS
UREHEE ZEcEIRBERS

mERET -

() ZeBEERENETOREEENERE
BEREEE -

HE2024F12A31HIEFE K&
BEHEEES RITEK (20234 : it
DEF - BE - EBEHRITH#E) AR
HeB HEAHNETHRAIF
E54F (2023F 1FE5F) - HEK
RIOBRBEBENEE TEERE 25
BEBTR ARG AR - REE
M E ARG EE N RER - A&
EEBANONTEETETA LA &G
HITHYEARS o

AEBTHMEESIILOPHAE -
#2024 F 2023412 A31H - 52 &
HEHABELUNEHEERINER
EAMGEHEEARS -

HZE2023F12A318IFE -
231,0002FI T E B BT A
HEMEBHETRAEEERR HEW
FEWEBMEMRZELATE REAA
BAECHEEERNEREZRRRIN -
HEEETHEREREHNER -
ZERGABAIFEFEIRSHE
HERS -

BOTHEERERAT 2024 FEEFHE
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

16.CONTRACT ASSETS 16. 5 EE

The contract assets arising from electrical and mechanical
engineering works, and maintenance and repair services are as
follows:

BETRARREREERTELEN
BHEEWT :

2024 2023
2024 & 2023 F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEFI T FEFIT
Contract assets from contracts with BERPANELENANEE
customers 30,696 49,294
Less: allowance for credit losses (note 28b) i : 1= B & 1845 (K7L 28b) (541) (30)
30,155 49,264
Represented by: (A
Electrical and mechanical BITRR
engineering works 30,102 49,207
Maintenance and repair services REREERTE 53 57
30,155 49,264
Analysed as current AT R BN ER
Unbilled revenue EGE L& 17,508 32,035
Retention receivables JEURIREE & 12,647 17,229
30,155 49,264

At 1 January 2023, contract assets amounted to MOP41,907,000.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditioned on the Group’s future performance in
satisfying the respective performance obligations at the reporting
date on construction contracts in respect of electrical and
mechanical engineering works and maintenance and repair
services. The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables
when the rights become unconditional.

Change of contract assets as at 31 December 2024 and 2023
represents the contract revenue recognised ahead of the
accumulated progress billings.
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e M RRME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

1 G.CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
assets recognised are as follows:

Construction contracts

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group requires
certain customers to provide upfront deposits and typically net
offs the deposits with first payments. Unbilled revenue included
in contract assets represents the Group’s rights to receive
consideration for works completed but not yet billed because
the exercise of such rights is conditional upon customers’
satisfaction on the contract work completed by the Group,
customers’ or external surveyors’ issuance of certification on the
works or the payment milestones being met. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group obtains
certification of the completed contract works from customers or
external surveyors or meets payment milestones.

The Group also typically agrees to a retention period ranging
from one year to two years for 5% to 10% of the contract value.
This amount is included in contract assets until the end of the
retention period as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment
is conditional on satisfying the defect liability period of individual
contracts. The Group typically reclassifies contract assets to trade
receivables when defect liability period expires.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal operating
cycle.

At 31 December 2024, retention money held by customers
for contract works amounted to MOP12,647,000 (2023:
MOP17,229,000). Retention money is unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable at the end of the defect liability period of individual
contract, ranging from one year to two years from the date of the
completion of the respective projects.

16.8HEE w)

FTEOHERBNEESENETENRK
AT

ZEAK

AEBEZREANBRNTERE
ME—BEETHEIER BAR
TR EERRIE AREEK
ETEPREMNYZE YBENUE
HENREHEES ANEETEEDN
AARRmREAEEARERD <
REHAFRENIENRE  RER
TELBENNGRTEEFHASE
TRHAEHNTREIME TP
MASMEZETIRERZTAIET
NRERBR I AITE - BERMER
EFMEE (AR SAKEREF I
A EREE KA K TIZMERNL
ZRNRERRE)  ARNEERBEBREE
B 5 WA

AEE-RNTABERE - FERFN
REH REMNEEMNS%E10% -
AR AN B AR Rl B & AR ERFE &
THET ARESILEENR  Bit
ZeRERBMERIBIFASHE
EoEREETHERS ~EE—
BBENEEEN D BREHREFUR -

ARASEEHEN LR EEERA
BRANEE BAKERZETAL
BEDBRRBEE °

MR2024F12 A31H  BEAMHFBA L
TR{REE % 512,647,0008F9 7T (2023
& :17,229,00008F97T) - REB & AE
R 2 ERARBERNEHONTES
BIEH T E BT —FEMFRR
bAE (EERR UL -

EOLMBIRRAIR AT 2024 FERE
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

1 6.CONTRACT ASSETS (continued)
Construction contracts (continued)

The following is an aging analysis of retention money which is to
be settled, based on the expiry of defect liability period, at the end
of the reporting period.

16. 5 EE »

BiESN®)

RBEHR  RREEEHIHE S
DHFEBERESHNREDTAOT

N

2024 2023
2024 &£ 2023 £

MOP’000 MOP’000
THRFIT TRFIT

Within one year R—FRA 7,828 8,982
After one year —F1& 4,819 8,247
12,647 17,229

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no retention money is past
due. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

To measure the ECL, contract assets and trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The
contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables
for the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for the trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the contract
assets.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 28b.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

17.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17.EZ R EfEWFIE

2024 2023
2024 &£ 2023 £

MOP’000 MOP’000
THRFIT TRFIT

Trade receivables from contracts with REBFEHNNE S EWRGIE
customers 25,303 28,096
Less: allowance for credit losses (note 28b) i : 1= & & 185 (K7L 28b) (327) (291)
24,976 27,805
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments £ b & I FUE « 2 & N Fa {5008
— Deposits (Note 1) — & (M) 155 91
— Prepayments — JE A 3,359 1,899
— Interest receivables — EUFE 1,028 531
— Other receivables — H bl sRIA 29 57
4,641 2,578
Total trade and other receivables B NH M EW A AR 29,617 30,383
Analysed as: AT
Current mEh 29,518 30,383
Non-current JERED 99 -
29,617 30,383

Note 1: As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the deposits primarily represented
(i) the performance guarantee money placed to the customers as
securities of the performance of the Group’s E&M projects while the
project has completed; and (ji) rental deposits.

As at 1 January 2023, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to MOP40,780,000.

Htit1 - 20244 202312 A31 8 » 1%
FE2HREOAEERTFTHRIEATR
HEBHNERNBORES  %BE
BO=A: Ri)AEES -

R2023F1A1H BFRFAYELED
B 5 fE T8 £ 40,780,0002 F9 7T ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

17.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The Group allows a credit period of 30-60 days to its customers.
The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at gross
amount based on invoice date at the end of each reporting period
are as follows:

17. € 5 R H B WFIE )

AEBGETHEEFII0EOANEER
Ho-MEREHKR  BIFHZEH S
PHAEERE HERFBEENREK
DITLR -

2024 2023

2024 F 2023 &

MOP’000 MOP’000

FEF T FEFIT

0-30 days 0E 30K 17,487 18,491
31-60 days 31 E£60K 1,484 6,050
61-90 days 61ZE 90K 209 501
Over 90 days HimI0 K 6,123 3,054
25,303 28,096

As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with an aggregate carrying
amount of MOP7,279,000 (2023: MOP9,605,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
MOP5,972,000 (2023: MOP595,000) have been past due over 90
days or more and are not considered as in default as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and amounts are
still considered as recoverable based on historical experience.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
customers from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of each of the reporting period. The majority of the Group’s
trade receivables that are past due but not impaired are from
customers with good credit quality with reference to respective
settlement history and forward-looking information without undue
cost and effort. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 28b.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

18.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENT

Pledged bank deposits EEMBITHER
Short-term bank deposits AR T 5K
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLFEY

18. 2R TIER S
BITER BHEeRBES
EEY

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
MOP’000 MOP’000
F B P 5T FHEFIT
43 42
41,630 27,025
99,930 114,732

Pledged bank deposits represent bank deposits which are
pledged to secure bank guarantee to the Group. At 31 December
2024, the pledged bank deposits carried interest at a fixed rates
ranging from 1.9% to 2.5% per annum (2023: ranging from 1.9%
to 3.4% per annum).

At 31 December 2024, the short-term bank deposits carried
fixed interest rates ranging from 3.8% to 4.1% per annum (2023:
ranging from 4.2% to 4.5% per annum) and with original maturity
more than three months.

At 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents include bank
deposits with original maturity of three months or less carried
fixed interest rates ranging from 3.3% to 4.0% (2023: 3.4% to
5.0%), remaining cash and cash equivalents carry at prevailing
market interest rate of 0.01% (2023: 0.01%) per annum.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

HK$ BT

EERFETERIECEFUERR
FAREBEMRITERDBITFER - R
202412 A31H  EHEMETHER
RETFEEMENFA1.9% £ 2.5% (2023
FEMENF1.9%E3.4%) 58 -

R2024F12 A31H 2L L HE T
GFHRFEFENT3.8% E4.1% (2023
FFEMENT42%E45%)  BIR
EIEpEEBB=MA -

R2024F12831H BEhREE
BYERERINPEA=ZEAXEEN
RITHER FFENT3.3%E4.0%
(20234 : 3.4% £5.0%) ' #f RS
MRS EEWERATMBSNERF S
0.01% (20234 : 0.01%) st &

AEEMDERRITER  BHRT
TFHRARRE RIREFEYIIZAR
MHRIERBHINEE BB AN B EHE -
ol

2024
2024 F

2023

2023 fF
MOP’000
FAEFIT

MOP’000
FHFIT

95,337 117,645

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 28b.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

19.CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The contract liabilities arising from E&M engineering works are as
follows:

Contract liabilities from contract with

customers in relation to E&M works EHatE

19. 5 WEE

KETIREENAQEENT :

2024 2023
2024 &£

2023 £
MOP’000
FEFPT T

MOP’000
FRPIT

HERETRAREFPANELN

988 2,310

At 1 January 2023, there is no contract liability.

Contract liabilities are classified as current as they are expected
to be settled with the Group’s normal operating cycle.

Change of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2024 and 2023
represents the reduction of accumulated progress billings ahead
of the contract revenue recognised.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities:

Revenue recognised that was included in the ¥t A AL B BB

B RS

contract liabilities balance at the beginning
of the year

20231 A1H  BiEEHAEE-

HRAENAEEIRNASE —REE
BEAGE  BUHEIBERARPAE -

R20244F 2 2023F 12 A31HANE
BEEHIEERRE WS R EE
BRE A -

TRETCERRaTREEANE
AR SR

2024 2023
2024 &£

2023 £
MOP’000
FHEFT T

MOP’000
FHFIT

2,310 -

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities recognised are as follows:

Construction contracts

When the Group receives upfront payments or cash advances
before construction activities commence, contract liabilities
will arise at the start of the relevant contracts, until the revenue
recognised on such relevant contracts exceeds the amount of the
cash advances.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

20.TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

20.ES5ENRERESE

H
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FH#FI T FHEFTT
Trade payables g S ENFIE 5,721 15,733
Accruals: JEEtEA
— Accrued construction costs — EEFEERA 14,559 19,515
— Accrued staff bonus — ERFEB ITIE4L - 1,695
— Accrued legal and professional fees — BRERREEEA 1,473 1,424
— Other accrued charges — Hithfgst &R 310 517
22,063 38,884

The credit period on trade payables ranges from 0 to 90 days. The
aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on invoice
dates at the end of each reporting period are as follows:

B RERNFENEEMNTFOEIX
RERSHR AEEREZAHE
DB ZRNFAREK DT -

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F

MOP’000 MOP’000

FIEFG T FEFIT

0-90 days 0ZE 90K 783 11,695
91-365 days 91 £ 365K 4,938 4,038
5,721 15,733
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

21.LEASE LIABILITIES 21.HE8E
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEFIT FEPIT
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEAE:
Within one year —FR" 54 102
Within a period of more than one year —F L BT HBBMRF
but not more than two years 9 54
Within a period of more than two years MF A EETHBBAF
but not more than five years 15 23
78 179
Less: Amount due for settlement within o R 12E A AR EEERE 2
12 months shown under current liabilities FIEGIARBAEER) (54) (102)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 7 1218 A& 2| HiE & 2 718
shown under non-current liabilities BIASERBIEE) 24 77
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease HRAREEaENMEFHIEEEN
liabilities is 5% (2023: 5%). IR 55% (20234 : 5%) °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

22.BANK BORROWING

Secured bank borrowing EEIRRITE N

22 R ITIER
2024
2024 &£

2023

2023 F
MOP’000
FHEFIT

MOP’000
F AT

12,301 12,820

AR REEAE

The carrying amounts of the above
borrowing are repayable*:

2024
2024 &£

2023

2023 F
MOP’000
FHEFIT

MOP’000
FHFIT

Within one year —F KN 546 516
Within a period of more than one year —F U E BT BB F
but not exceeding two years 562 535
Within a period of more than two years MELA LB BBRE
but not exceeding five years 1,784 1,704
Within a period of more than 5 years AFLAE 9,409 10,065
12,301 12,820
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as set out in * EIH

the agreement.

At 31 December 2024, the bank borrowing bear interest at Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) +1.3% or Prime Rate -3%
(2023: HIBOR +1.3% or Prime Rate -3%, whichever is lower),
whichever is lower. The bank borrowing was secured by office
premises and the promissory note provided by the Company.
Details are set out in Note 29.

Effective interest rates per annum of bank borrowing for the year
are fixed at respective contract dates as follows:

Effective interest rates

JEAS & R E A p a8 P B0 51 B TR
H o

R2024F12 A31H  RITERRE
BIRITRERE ((BBRITRAZERE])
+1.3% 3k & 1B B FI % -3% (2023 % :
EARTREFRE1.3%HREEF
E-3% (ARIEH BXE))FTE - UERIE

F B - IR1TE KA KRR R R4 A9 %
DR RARZBRERTR - FHBHER
MFE29 ©
FRIBITEANERFFENEELH
HHIETWT
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
2.875% 3.125%
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

23.SHARE CAPITAL 23. 1k A<
Number of Share
shares capital
R EE [
MOP’000
FEFIT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FAz0.01 B TR E @R
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December R2023F181H -~ 2023F K&
2023 and 2024 2024F 12 A31H 2,000,000,000 20,600
Issued and fully paid: EREITREE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 72023F1 A1 8 ~ 2023F &
2023 and 2024 202412 A31H 500,000,000 5,150
All shares as at year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 rank pari REE2024F £ 2023F 12 A31 8 I-
passu with the then existing shares in issue in all aspects. FELHERNRAABIEEER 2R

BERTROZERASES -

178 Macau E&M Holding Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2024



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

24.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below.

Place and
the date of Issued and
Place of incorporation/ fully paid
Name of subsidiaries operation establishment capital

AL, ERTR
o) PR EEME  RYBERAH BRBRAR

Directly held:

BERR

Macau E&M Company  BVI British Virgin Islands HK$1

Limited 30 October 2017

FEIREFRAT KBELEE RERELHS 18T
2017410 H30H

Indirectly held:

&R

Kento Macau Macau MOP60,000
27 January 2011

B R P 60,0002 P9

201141 H27H

25.RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Employees employed by the Group’s operation in Macau are
members of government-managed social benefit schemes
operated by the Macau government. The Macau operation is
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the social benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the social benefits scheme operated by the Macau
government is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

24.FEME N TIFE

ARBRBERREERBEFAZ
i3] BEEHT -

Shareholding/
equity interest
attributable
to the Company  Principal activities
AAFEMGEBRE
R 7 A TEXEH
2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F

100% 100% Investment holding
REZR
100% 100% Electrical and mechanical

engineering services,
maintenance and repair
services

HETRRRE  RER
IR

25. 3R 48 F 5 &l

AEBERFEBIEMNES SHIRF
B B AR BT B IR AL & 48 A 5t 81 /Y
FXE - RPIEF AR &8N 8IX
NEABRERT  SERBEMNEHRE
& o BERPIBFE ML &R A G
FME AERENE-EERRER
Bt EIEL AR (AR
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HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

\

26.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 26.LL R BEBRZNRK

TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 21 August
2020 (“Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to provide employees, executives or officers,
subsidiaries, directors, advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers
and distributors of the Group (“Participants”) with the opportunity
to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
Participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company with a flexible
means of either retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to Participants. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on 11 September 2020 and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, shall remain in force for
10 years from that date. As at 31 December 2024, the remaining
life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately 5 years and 8
months.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price is
determined by the directors of the Company, and will not be less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant, (ji) the average closing price of the shares for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i)
the nominal value of the Company’s share.

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, no option has been granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

27.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to its stakeholders and maintaining an
adequate capital structure. The Group’s overall strategy remained
unchanged from prior year.

The Group regards capital as the equity attributable to owners of
the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The management of the Group regularly reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the cost
of capital and the risk associated with the capital. The Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and new shares issues as well as the issue of new
debts.

27. E X EBER

AREEREEA  ARRA R E
BRI EEE AR RALHE
1R BB R A B AL -
BB F AL AR BB
REETE -

AEEHERNTRARBHER AEME
B (BREALER)

AEEEEERFEHEARARBET
EHm  WEBERHKARRER
HERR AEEERRERS
BITHBRARBTHES FEEER
BARIE -
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28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. €W T H

28a. Categories of financial instruments 28a. R T M D3

2024 2023
2024 F 20234

MOP’000 MOP’000
THFIT TRFIT

Financial assets SREE
Amortised cost BEIHRCR 167,861 170,283
Financial liabilities TREE
Amortised cost AR 18,022 28,553
Lease liabilities HEaE 78 179
28b. Financial risk management objectives and 28b. M A B B R KK
policies ®
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade AEBMETESHMITAERER
receivables from contracts with customers, deposits, interest BEXFAEHNNE S ERFIE - }E
receivables, other receivables, pledged bank deposits, & EWFE - HAh B FRIE
short-term bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade EEFRTER  REBRT 7(?
payables, bank borrowing and lease liabilities. Details of HBeRkBeEEYD BHE
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective NIE - RITERRBEEEE -
notes. ZESRITEMNFBERSMHEF
¥ o
The risks associated with these financial instruments include mzEemT AEENARBIE
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and sensitivity mimRRE (B8R R ﬂ$ﬂ
analysis), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how RGRESN) - FERBRRE
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management PELAR BEANAMEKZS
of the Group manages and monitors these exposures to B BEEEH N T o AEEE
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely BEEENEEZESRE - A
and effective manner. RE AR EREUEE & o
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28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. €M T B )

28b. Financial risk management objectives and 28b. M % Rl B3 B R KK
policies (continued) )
Market risk ™ 45 & B
Currency risk =0
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through rEEEENEERREIERS
receipts from customers and purchase of raw materials that BEPKRRRACEERBYEEE

are denominated in a currency other than the group entities’
functional currency. The currency giving rise to this risk is
primarily HK$. The management of the Group considers that
the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange risk is
insignificant as the majority of the Group’s transactions are
denominated in the functional currency of each individual
group entity and HK$ is pegged with MOP.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The carrying amounts of certain significant foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of each reporting period are as follows:

Assets

&E

2024

2024 F
MOP’000
FHEFI T

HK$ BIT 115,332

2023

2023 4
MOP’000
:F/ /S ?75

126,084

IASNY B EHE R R LR S -
EEHBRBRNERIERL
T ARBERERS  ARK
SEAH DX ZAERIEEE R
FEEMMEEREREITER
FITC 80 - #UA 5% [ P E R A0 91
BRI TERX o

7 EE 5] 3R B 0 4 HINDEE SR EROR o
AT - AN BB IR E B HME R
EREETEERTENBRLT
15 & & EE R E KR IMNER R °

REBREMRE TERAINES
ENEBEENERRENKRE
Bt :

Liabilities
=L
2024
2024 £
MOP’000
FHFI T

2023

2023 4
MOP’000
FHEFIT

17,980 27,413
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HE

2024F 12 A31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank deposits, bank balances and
bank borrowing. The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate pledged bank
deposits and fixed bank deposits.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 20 basis point (2023:
20 basis point) increase or decrease in variable-rate bank
borrowing is used represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest rates. Bank
balances are excluded from sensitivity analysis as the
management considers that the exposure of cash flow
interest rate risk arising from variable-rate bank balances is
insignificant.

If interest rates had been 20 basis points (2023: 20 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2024 would decrease/increase by MOP25,000
(2023: decrease/increase by MOP26,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowing.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

HE

2024F 12 A31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties
will default on their contractual obligations resulting in
financial losses to the Group. At 31 December 2024 and
2023, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of respective financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its
financial assets.

The management of the Group performs impairment
assessment for financial assets and contract assets
under ECL model. Information about the Group’s credit
risk management, maximum credit risk exposures and
the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below:

Trade receivables and contract assets arising
from contracts with customers

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has concentration
of credit risk as 55% (2023: 70%) of the total trade
receivables and contract assets are due from the Group’s
five largest customers. The major customers of the Group
are certain reputable organisations and management of the
Group considered that the credit risk is insignificant after
considering their historical settlement and credit quality.

In order to minimise credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated its finance team to develop and
maintain the Group’s credit risk gradings to categories
exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The
finance team uses publicly available financial information
and the Group’s own historical repayment records to rate
its major customers and debtors. The Group’s exposure
and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously
monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

HE

2024F 12 A31 HILFE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising
from contracts with customers (continued)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Trade receivables
and contract assets with individual significant balances
or that are credit-impaired are assessed for impairment
individually, the remaining trade receivables and contract
assets are assessed collectively using a collective basis
with appropriate groupings. In this regard, the management
of the Company considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Deposits, other receivables and interest
receivables

Management of the Group makes periodic collective
assessment on the recoverability of these items based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information.

The management of the Group believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of deposits and interest receivables.

Pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. £ E T A »)
28b. Financial risk management objectives and 28b. Bf 5 EL B E 38 B 12 K K
policies (continued) R #®)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) FEER B NBEG(E)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment REEHNATEERR SR
comprises the following categories: BIEA TR

Internal Trade receivables/ Other

credit rating Description contract assets financial assets

ABEEFR Hil BESEUHNE ANEE HittemEE

Very lowrisk  The counterparty has a very low risk of default  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due amounts
R R R XHHEFHEHRREE  TETMANKRE 2HRHCEHE -EEERE 12EARBEEER

Low risk Debtor frequently repays after due dates but ~ Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired 12m ECL
usually settle in full
9ENE BERALERIHEREN BRE2ELEE 2URHCEHRE - BEERE 12AARBEESRR
High risk There have been significant increases in credit  Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired Lifetime ECL —
risk since initial recognition through not credit-impaired
information developed internally or external
resources
= AR BRBANKIIBERMENENETNR 2HRNEEHE - BEERE 29RHESEERE
BRE  FERRBEZEEM - EEENE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired Lifetime ECL —
credit-impaired credit-impaired
B B RAREHRESRE PHRMEESE - FHEHEESRE
BREEERE —BEAEERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtoris ~ Amount is written off Amount is written off

in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

a8 BIFGRAEBARARENMBRS - OETRE 3 TRIEC WM 58
AfmAEERERENTEYT
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. £ T B (#)
28b. Financial risk management objectives and 28b. B 5 EL B E 38 B 12 K K
policies (continued) R(#E)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) EER R EET &)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TERAMINEAEEEHEER
Group’s financial assets and contract assets, which are EHEENEERR ZZ2/
subject to ECL assessment: BENAGHEERETEREER
BRI
External N CIE]]
credit rating credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
HBEETR ABEEIR 12@AR2HEREEFSE RHAE
At 31 December
W12A31H
2024 2023
2024 F 2023F
MoP’000 MOP’000
FRMT FEFIT
Deposits 17 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 155 91
(Note 1)
®e TR 1B REAEREERSE
(Ht1)
Other receivables 17 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 99 57
Hit R FIA TR 1B REAEREERSE
Interest receivables 17 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 1,028 531
PR & AA+ TiER REAEREERSE
Trade receivables from 17 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL 9,388 24,642
contracts with customers (collective assessment)
EPafELNESRE TR (Hfzt2) PHREBEERE (RBTM)
Yeros
High risk Lifetime ECL (individual 15,915 3,212
assessment)
BER 2R HBEEBE (ERIF)
Loss Credit-impaired - 242
B BEEFERE
25,303 28,096
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REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

External
credit rating

HBEEFR

28. T B »)
28b. B EMEEBEZERK
e )
EERBRRAESEE)

Internal
credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
RABEETSR 12BAR2HANEEER fREAE

At 31 December

W12A31H
2024 2023
2024 F 20234
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRF T FEFIT

Contract assets 16 N/A (Note 2) Lifetime ECL 30,696 49,294
(collective assessment)

BHEE A (Hi7t2) 2HEREEEE (RBIH)

30,696 49,294
Pledged bank deposits 18 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 43 42
BERRITER A+ TR 12EARSEEHE
Short-term bank deposits 18 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 41,630 27,025
RBRTER AA+ TiEA REREREEESE
Cash and cash equivalents 18 AA+ N/A 12m ECL 99,930 114,732
ReREEEEY AA+ TiEA REAREREEEE
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REMBHRRWEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. £ E T A »)
28b. Financial risk management objectives and 28b. B 5 EL B E 38 B 12 K K
. L

policies (continued) R (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) FEER B NBEG(E)

Notes: Btat -

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group 1. RABEERBREREMS - A%
uses past due information to assess whether credit risk has B £ A8 SR B VR ER
increased significantly since initial recognition. REERBELEEEILM-

Not
past due Total
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRFIT FHEFIT
At 31 December 2024 A20245F12A31H
Deposits Re 155 155
At 31 December 2023 A2023F12A31H
Deposits ik 91 91

2. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied 2. RESERZEBRAGNEEM
the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance T ASBEEERABRBEMB®RE
at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with significant outstanding FRIEIFHE LT ELHE
balances or credit-impaired, the Group determines the ECL on HEEEENEERE HBAE
these items by using collective basis, grouped by internal credit BEAREBEERICBREEFER
rating. BREBAIN  REBEFEHRER

EERABEEEROB)EE
ZEHBEMBEHEERE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. €@ T A »)

28b. Financial risk management objectives and 28b. Bf 5 EL B E 38 B 12 K K
policies (continued) ¢ )
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued) FEER B NBEG(E)
Internal credit rating RSB 15 B 7FAR
As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group ERAEEFEERRE RN —
applies internal credit ratings to assess the impairment for S AEEHEFPHEARBEE
its customers because these customers consist of a large LA ERE REAZER
number of small customers with common risk characteristics FPREXEAEFXFARRFHN
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all NHERE HREEFREEGH
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The TR Z T FT A B BAFIERIBE S »
following table provides information about the exposure to TEREVNEBESEBFIERE
credit risk for trade receivables and contract assets which HEEMNEERBRMOMNER
are assessed on a collective basis within lifetime ECL (not DREHEHREEESE (B(E
credit impaired). Trade receivables and contract assets BRE) AR LR EEFTE - »
with significant outstanding balances with gross carrying 2024F12R831H - AFEKXRK
amounts of MOP15,915,000 and MOPnil, respectively as EBEEHNESIERFERS
at 31 December 2024 (2023: MOP3,454,000 and MOPnil) #E EREAESD 515,915,000
were assessed individually, among which MOP15,341,000 R R ERF T (20234 ¢
of trade receivable was due to slow settlement (2023: 3,454,000/ 7T k. TR FIT) {6l
MOP2,183,000) and MOP15,281,000 has been settled AIEFTRE MG - A E 5 KK
subsequently. 1815,341,0002 P9 7T (2023 F :

2,183,00038 F97T) T [ 4% H 4B 12
8 8 - T 15,281,00032 FI 7T E
MEE S o
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HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

28. T B »)
28b. B EBEEEEZERK

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and

192

policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Internal credit rating (continued)

Gross carrying amount

)

S E AR KR AT ()
A BB 15 B 7FAR (48)
R/ (E

2024 2023

2024 2023 F
Internal Average Trade Contract Average Trade Contract
credit rating loss rate receivables assets loss rate  receivables assets
AR E R FPHERE EZRKTE GHNEE THUBFEX ZHRUE AHEE
MOP’000  MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FHRFIT TR TRFT TRz
Very low risk i 0.82% 2,882 - 0.01% 1,581 2,764
Low risk KRR 1.31% 6,506 30,696 0.07% 23,061 46,530
9,388 30,696 24,642 49,294

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
provided MOP121,000 and MOP511,000 (2023: provided
MOP12,000 and reversed MOP24,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables and contract assets under
collective basis, respectively. The Group also provided
impairment allowances of MOP157,000 and MOPnil (2023:
reversed MOP97,000 and MOPnil) for trade receivables and
contract assets due from debtors with significant balances,
and reversed MOP242,000 impairment allowance (2023:
provided MOP221,000) for trade receivables due from
credit-impaired debtors.
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REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

28b.Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)
Internal credit rating (continued)
Gross carrying amount (continued)

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables and contract
assets under the simplified approach.

Trade receivables

BAERTE

Lifetime
ECL
(not credit-

impaired)
2HRAEERR
(RESHE)
MOP’000

-

28. T B »)
28b.FEEBEEBEEZERK

)

S E B KR AT ()
AR BAFAR (48)
BREAE(E (&)

TREJIRBEZTENE SR
WHIERANEERRNEHE
HEEBRNES -

Contract assets

ANEE

Lifetime Lifetime

ECL ECL

(credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total

HRACERE 2URNGERSE
(BREGEHE) (BEEHE) @t
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP'000

T e~ T
FRFT BPITT )

!

As at 1 January 2023 R2023E1 818 134 21 54 209
(Reversal of) impairment losses under EHEEEEEA T2
ECL model, net of reversal (BE)RESE
MEEE (85) 221 (24) 112
As at 31 December 2023 R2023%12A31H 49 242 30 321
Impairment losses (reversal of under  EEIEEEBERT 2
ECL model, net of reversal AEEE#EE) -
i3 4! 278 (242) 511 547
As at 31 December 2024 R2024F12 8318 327 - 541 868

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or when the trade
receivables are over two years past due, whichever occurs
earlier.

REBRIATER T HBE S &
WA - ERERBREBAR
BEVBREEEERIRER
B MEMBAEXBRIEAR
ERF SHE5EKFAD S
HIHBEME ARBHLEEZERE) -
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HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. £ T B )

28b. Financial risk management objectives and 28b. B FE R B B 12 B 2 &
. L

policies (continued) R (&)
Liquidity risk REBESRER
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors REBRBESRRE  RN&EH
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed B REFEREERARBMNA
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s SEZERRIRERERBT
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash EmMEERENBReRREEE
flows. MK o
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRAFMAEESRABENHRT
maturity for its financial liabilities which has been drawn up EREHBR  EHOREBEAEE
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities RA R EREEN KT B %
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be TREBENRIBReRERE -

required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. TERBEMERASRESRE °
Liquidity risk HEELEE

Weighted LEEEL
average on demand Total Total
effective  or less than 3 months 1to2 2to5 Over5 undiscounted carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year years years years cash flows amount

WETS  RERER EN R
ERAZ  GON3fER  3EARME 122% 2855 BiB5F RELR REAE
% MOP’000 MOP'000 MOP’000 MOP'000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOoP000
FAMR FAAR FAMR FAAT FAMR Taf7 FAMR

At 31 December 2024 20245127310
Non-derivative financial FiEeRaRE

liabilities
Trade payables BAEMATE - 783 4,938 - - - 5,721 5,721
Bank borrowing RITER 2.875 223 669 892 2,676 11,224 15,684 12,301
Lease liabilities HERE 5 19 37 10 15 - 81 78

1,025 5,644 902 2,691 11,224 21,486 18,100
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

28.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. €@ T H (»#)
28b. Financial risk management objectives and 28b. M % Rl B3 B R KK
policies (continued) R (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESER(Z)
Liquidity risk (continued) MEEZERE &

Weighted Repayable
average on demand Total Total
effective or less than 3 months 1t02 Over5  undiscounted carrying
interest rate 3 months to 1 year years years cash flows amount

*

& ;
ION3EA  3MEARIE 1528 ES BR5F HEAE
MOP000 MOP'000 MOP 000 MOP 000 { MOP 000

At 31 December 2023 1202312310
Non-derivative financial FiE2RAR

liabilities

Trade payables BARMATE - 11,695 4,038 - - - 15,733 15,733

Bank borrowing BaAEz 3125 28 683 910 2,731 12,365 16917 12820

Lease liabilies EEaE 5 27 81 5 % - 189 179

11,950 4802 966 2756 12,365 32,839 28732

28c. Fair value measurements of financial 28c. e TEMN A FEFE

instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are TREEREHMABENATET

determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing RBEERUBRERESTHR

models based on discounted cash flow analysis. REBERNETE -

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities REHKANENeREERS

carried at amortised cost approximate their carrying BEEN A TEEERMERES °

amounts.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

29.PLEDGE OF ASSETS, PERFORMANCE 29.BXRXRRAREE
BONDS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITY

Certain customers of construction contracts undertaken by the REBMAEZBEAGONETERE
Group require the group entity to issue bank guarantees for KEBEBERUBHREFLARENT
the performance of contract works in the form of performance EHRITRHEBITERIL AD KR
bonds and secured by pledged bank deposits (see note 18). The T (RKFE18) 1EIEIR - BAIRE
performance bonds are released when the construction contracts TS S K TT A SR B TE R B R bR o

are completed or substantially completed.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had outstanding REREHR  AEBEBHRBTEY
performance bonds as follows: RBEWOT -

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 4F

MOP’000 MOP’000
FRFET PRI

Issued to the Group by a bank H—RIBITEAREE D 1,216 1,216

At 31 December 2024, the Group has issued the following R2024F12A31H  AEEEB 817

promissory notes: T &R EE

(@ an amount of MOP14,366,000 (2023: MOP14,366,000) (@) & %8714,366,000/2 97T (2023
to secure the bank borrowing of MOP12,301,000 (2023: % :14,366,00002 I ) A — K
MOP12,820,000) in favour of a bank (see Note 22), which MITRAE@m ANERLERE E
is also secured by office premises with carrying amount of #%12,301,000/8 F9 7T (2023 4 :
MOP16,230,000 (2023: MOP16,568,000); and 12,820,0003% P 7T) BI R 1T & 5K

R (RHtsE22) @ ZRITHE
IR A B B /4 16,230,000 S8 P9
7T (2023 £ : 16,568,000 %2 F97T)
BN FTIEIR IR - %

(b) an amount of MOP20,000,000 (2023: nil) to secure a credit (b) 4 %8 /20,000,000 97T (2023
facility of MOP20,000,000 in favour of a bank. FR)U—RBITAIZEAN
# H E % - £ 420,000,000 2

THEEREMER -

In addition to aforementioned, a credit facility of MOP41,260,000 B EXPratE I - —KIBITED

was granted by a bank which became effective from 5 March 41,260,0002FI THEERE - £ 8

2025 and was secured by a promissory note of MOP45,386,000 2025F 3 A5 HBAEM + WHAQRRE

provided by the Company. #t 45,386,000 8 P9 7T /) 5 5 B F EHE
o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

30.RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES 30.EAH AL E

Compensation of key management personnel FEEE A S
The remuneration of directors and other members of key RENEEREMETEZEETEAENTE
management during the year was as follows: BzA T

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F

MOP’000 MOP’000
FTHRFIT TRFIT

Short-term employee benefits HHEERT 4,598 4,682
Post-employment benefits BERL 2 12 A 22 22

4,620 4,704
The remuneration of key management personnel is determined ITREEBABZEMOBAREER
by the management of the Company having regard to the EREEARREDHBHEE -

performance of individuals and market trends.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

31.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES BM1L.REETHEENAGRH
ARISING FROM FINANCING AR
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRHAMASERETHEENARG
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash ZH)En (BEReRIFERSES) -
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for MELTHELINEBEEERERE
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in KR RRFEEREFREAEEHLEER
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows ERMERTOIEARETHEENR
from financing activities. EREMNBME-
Lease Dividend Bank
liabilities payable borrowing Total
HEEE EARE RITHER ‘et
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TFRFIT TRFIT FHEFIT TFEFIT
(note 21)
(Ktzt21)
At 1 January 2023 R2023F1 A1H 830 - 13,323 14,153
Financing cash flows (note) B& R4 m&E (A1:t) (360) (5,570) (514) (6,444)
Dividend declared EEIRRKE - 5,570 - 5,570
Lease modification MEEE] 231 - - 231
Lease termination HE&KIE (530) - - (530)
Interest expense FBEFAX 8 - 387 395
Subsidy g - - (376) (376)
At 31 December 2023 7R 2023F 12 A31H 179 - 12,820 12,999
Financing cash flows (note) B& IR & & (Afat) (108) - (705) (813)
Interest expense FEFMX 7 - 389 396
Subsidy =) - - (203) (203)
At 31 December 2024 2024912 A31 H 78 - 12,301 12,379
Note: The cash flows make up the net amount of repayment of lease liabilities, Wit - RernsmeGfeReRERTEER
dividend paid and bank borrowing in the consolidated statement of cash Ea8E BARERRITEREFE -
flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024
HZE2024F12 A31HILEE

32.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32.7& 2 A &R AT
OF THE COMPANY

2024 2023
2024 F 2023 F
MOP’000 MOP’000
FEFG T FEFT T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RSB RRNERE 35,569 35,569
Amount due from a subsidiary AN E S 48,999 49,890
84,568 85,459
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TERT5RIB 429 235
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEY 7,483 3,341
7,912 3,576
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals EETE R 1,492 1,449
Tax liabilities HEaE 31 34
1,523 1,483
Net current assets REBEEFE 6,389 2,093
Net assets EEFE 90,957 87,552
Capital and reserves EAXRFEE
Share capital & s 5,150 5,150
Reserves (Gegi 85,807 82,402
Total equity BT 90,957 87,552
Movement on the Company’s reserves P N/NSI A

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

B% 17 % 8 - | et

MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

FEPIT TP FEFIT

At 1 January 2023 7202361 A1H 111,487 (29,563) 81,924
Profit and total comprehensive FARFREEKEERE

income for the year - 6,048 6,048

Dividend %2 - (5,570) (5,570)

At 31 December 2023 7K2023% 12 A31 H 111,487 (29,085) 82,402
Profit and total comprehensive FRRMNR 2K BT

income for the year - 3,405 3,405

At 31 December 2024 202412 A31H 111,487 (25,680) 85,807

BIREERERAR 2024 FEHeE
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
M E MR

AEERAMAEMRFREZXZEREER
BENHE  BEBEEKERSEVBHRERNR
BRERHINMT -

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated
financial statements and the Prospectus is set out below.

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31ALEE

200

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
2024 & 2023 4F 2022 4F 2021 4F 2020 4F
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000  MOP’000
FRFExT FRFIT FHEFIT  FEPIT  FEPIT

RESULTS E45
Revenue = 92,052 128,283 143,046 184,496 276,790
(Loss) profit before tax BrELAT (B548) % 7 (2,465) (3,803) 10,524 29,104 29,764
Income tax expense g8 (25) 44 (1,212) (2,866) (3,091)
(Loss) profit and total FAN(ER) BN R

comprehensive income FHEBRLRE

for the year (2,490) (3,759) 9,312 26,238 26,673
Basic (loss) earnings BREX(EE)

per share (MOP cents) A7) CEPIL) (0.50) (0.75) 1.86 5.25 6.23

At 31 December

MW12H31H

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

2024 F 2023 4F 2022 4 2021 & 2020 4

MOP’000 MOP000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000

FHEFIT FEFIT FEFT FEFIT  FEFIT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ERERE

Total assets BEMRE 238,418 259,674 259,872 274,942 260,845
Total liabilities BEBE (35,461) (54,227) (45,096) (38,532) (50,673)
Net assets BEFE 202,957 205,447 214,776 236,410 210,172
Total equity IR AEER 202,957 205,447 214,776 236,410 210,172
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